
Public Accounts Committee 
 

Meeting Venue: 
Committee Room 3 - Senedd 

 

 

 

Meeting date: 
23 October 2012  

 

Meeting time: 
09:00 

 

For further information please contact:  

Policy: Tom Jackson 
Committee Clerk 
029 2089 8597 / 029 2089 8032 
Publicaccounts.comm@Wales.gov.uk  

  

 

Agenda 
 

 

Informal briefing (9:00 - 9:10) 

1. Introductions, apologies and substitutions (9:10 - 9:15)  

2. The estimate of Income and expenditure of the WAO for the year 
ending 31 March 2014 (9:15 - 9:50) (Pages 1 - 21)  
PAC(4) 23-12 – Paper 1 – Estimate of income and expenditure of the WAO for the 
year ending 31 March 2014 
 
Huw Vaughan Thomas, Auditor General for Wales 
Kevin Thomas, Assistant Auditor General for Wales 
Ann-Marie Harkin, Group Director, Wales Audit Office 
Terry Jones, Technical Manager, Wales Audit Office 
  

3. The Welsh Government's acquisition and action to dispose of the 
former River Lodge Hotel, Llangollen - Evidence from the Welsh 
Government (9:50 - 10:40)   
 
James Price, Director General, Business, Enterprise, Technology and Science 
Jeff Collins, Director Delivery   

4. Papers to note  (Pages 22 - 80)  
PAC(4) 23-12 – Paper 2 – Follow up of recommendations made by the Third 
Assembly’s Public Accounts Committee 

Public Document Pack



 
 
  

5. Motion under Standing Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude the 
public from the meeting for the following business:    
Items 6 and 7.  

6. Consideration of evidence on the Welsh Government's acquisition 
and action to dispose of the former River Lodge Hotel, Llangollen 

(10:40 - 10:50)  

7. Consideration of the estimate of income and expenditure of the 
WAO for the year ending 31 March 2014 (10:50 - 11:00)  



October 2012

www.wao.gov.uk

Estimate of the income and expenses of 

the offi ce of Auditor General for the year 

ending 31 March 2014

PAC(4)-23-12 Paper 1 Agenda Item 2

Page 1



Estimate of the income and expenses of the offi ce of Auditor General for the year ending 31 March 2014

Estimate of the income and expenses of the offi ce of 

Auditor General for the year ending 31 March 2014

Submitted to the Public Accounts Committee of the National Assembly for Wales under 

Paragraph 12 of Schedule 8 to the Government of Wales Act 2006

Huw Vaughan Thomas

Auditor General for Wales

Wales Audit Offi ce

24 Cathedral Road

Cardiff

CF11 9LJ

The Auditor General and the auditors he appoints in local government are the statutory external auditors of most of 

the Welsh public sector. They are responsible for the annual audit of the majority of public money spent in Wales, 

including the £15 billion of funds that are voted on annually by the National Assembly for Wales. Elements of this 

funding are passed by the Welsh Government to the NHS in Wales (over £5 billion) and to local government (over 

£4 billion).

The Auditor General and his staff together form the Wales Audit Offi ce, which was established in April 2005. The 

Auditor General is the Accounting Offi cer for the Wales Audit Offi ce and is personally responsible for its overall 

organisation, management and staffi ng as well as its procedures in relation to fi nancial and other matters.

A summary of the main operational activities of the Auditor General and the auditors he appoints in local 

government, alongside associated sources of funding, is provided in Appendix 1 of this estimate. The staff of the 

Wales Audit Offi ce deliver approximately two-thirds of the annual audit work. The remainder is contracted out by the 

Auditor General to private sector accountancy fi rms.

2

PAC(4)-23-12 Paper 1

Page 2



Estimate of the income and expenses of the offi ce of Auditor General for the year ending 31 March 2014 3

Contents

Introduction and summary of budget requirements 4

Strategic approach 9

Estimate of income and expenses 10

Reductions to fee income 12

Further savings and effi ciencies 12

Additional costs to be incurred 14

Areas of uncertainty 15

Appendices

Appendix 1 - Main operational activities of the Auditor General and the auditors 

he appoints in local government, and associated sources of funding 17

Appendix 2 - Estimated budget requirements of the Auditor General for the year 

ending 31 March 2014 18

Appendix 3 - Estimate of the income and expenses of the Wales Audit Offi ce for 

the year ending 31 March 2014 20

PAC(4)-23-12 Paper 1

Page 3



Estimate of the income and expenses of the offi ce of Auditor General for the year ending 31 March 2014Estimate of the income and expenses of the offi ce of Auditor General for the year ending 31 March 20144

Introduction and summary of budget requirements

1 As Auditor General, I must prepare an 

estimate of the income and expenses of 

my offi ce (the Wales Audit Offi ce) for each 

fi nancial year and submit the estimate to the 

Public Accounts Committee1.

2 I invite the Public Accounts Committee to 

examine and lay this estimate of my income 

and expenses for the year ending 31 March 

2014 before the National Assembly.

3 The estimate that I am presenting provides 

for an increase of £0.75 million in the amount 

of revenue funding requested this year, from 

£4.724 million to £5.474 million.

4 I am seeking £0.5 million of this additional 

resource specifi cally to increase the level of 

support that I can provide to public bodies 

looking to achieve increased effi ciency and 

improvement, through innovation, which is 

particularly important in the current economic 

climate: as I set out below £250,000 of 

this would allow me to support additional 

investment in sharing good practice and 

£250,000 would allow me to respond promptly 

to increasing requests for ad hoc work without 

delaying the delivery of my national studies 

programme.

5 Over the past few years, we have both 

facilitated and driven service improvement, 

value-for-money and citizen participation 

across Welsh Public Services through 

excellent knowledge transfer using the Good

Practice Exchange (GPX). While our good 

practice work is highly regarded, I consider 

that we are not yet fully maximising the 

potential of our audit knowledge and access to 

good practice to benefi t Welsh public services. 

We are now seeking to increase the level of 

annual investment in the GPX by £250,000, 

in order to deliver:

• further service improvements and better 

value-for-money through the widespread 

use of knowledge and good practice which 

will be disseminated through a process of 

face to face and virtual activities; and

• greater citizen involvement through active 

dissemination of information via the GPX.

6 Additional funding of £250,000 will also allow 

us to respond promptly to the increasing 

number of requests that I am receiving for 

special investigations and ad hoc pieces of 

work, some of which have come from the 

Public Accounts Committee. Recent examples 

have included the AWEMA and River Lodge 

investigations. Without this additional funding, 

there will inevitably be an impact on the 

number of pre-planned national studies I 

can deliver, which would affect my ability to 

provide comprehensive coverage of public 

sector expenditure within Wales. 

1  At least fi ve months before the beginning of the fi nancial year to which it relates, as laid out under Paragraph 12 of Schedule 8 to the Government of Wales Act 2006 (the 2006 Act).

PAC(4)-23-12 Paper 1

Page 4



Estimate of the income and expenses of the offi ce of Auditor General for the year ending 31 March 2014 5

7 The remaining £0.25 million additional 

revenue resource is required to fund the 

costs of the new arrangements set out in the 

Public Audit (Wales) Bill. These costs are 

set out in my letter of 12 October 2012 to 

the Committee in respect of the PAC inquiry 

into the general principles of the Bill and are 

outside of my control. The £0.25 million costs 

include estimates  of the salary and support 

costs of the new Chair and Non-Executives 

to the Wales Audit Offi ce Shadow Board, 

estimated external legal costs in connection 

with the legislative process, and the costs of 

Wales Audit Offi ce staff time, for example in 

dealing with the transfer scheme, revising the 

code of audit practice, revising or producing 

new internal technical and HR policies for the 

new Wales Audit Offi ce, and creating standing 

orders for the new Board. 

8 Other than this £0.75 million additional 

earmarked funding, which should be 

considered separately, my revenue request is 

frozen in cash terms at the level approved for 

2012-13, and in real terms represents a 

2.5 per cent reduction in the costs of my offi ce. 

The level of revenue requested for 2013-14 is 

the minimum necessary for the Wales Audit 

Offi ce to continue to provide an effective 

service to the bodies we audit on behalf of the 

people of Wales. 

9 I set out in this estimate my intention to hold 

overall fee levels at the same cash level as 

for 2012-13 (a real terms reduction of 2.5 per 

cent following further signifi cant real terms 

reductions in earlier years as illustrated in 

Exhibit 3). My ability to hold fee levels at this 

level, against year-on-year effi ciency savings,

is however dependent upon approval of 

the resource request contained within this 

estimate.

10 We will continue to seek further savings and 

effi ciencies wherever possible, which will 

require some diffi cult decisions being taken 

as is the case across the whole of the public 

sector. However, these savings will not be 

at the level achieved in 2011-12, where 

signifi cant reductions in our cost base and the 

generation of additional income enabled us to 

fund taxation provisions totalling in excess of 

£2.6 million.

11 The fact that we were able to fund these 

provisions from existing resources prevented 

a request for supplementary funding from the 

National Assembly in 2011-12. This situation 

could not have been achieved without the 

Wales Audit Offi ce deferring some expenditure 

originally budgeted for 2011-12, and without 

the support and commitment of many of 

my staff who worked extra hours to deliver 

additional projects that generated further 

income amounting to £1.4 million. 

12 Examples of areas where we had to defer 

expenditure in 2011-12 included delaying 

capital expenditure on additional video 

conferencing units which are necessary to 

further reduce our travel and subsistence 

expenditure going forward, and postponing 

commencement of our Ignite 2 management 

development training programme. This 

expenditure will need to be funded in 2012-13 

and in 2013-14.

13 The level of additional income generated in 

2011-12 was unprecedented and is unlikely 

to be repeated. I set out in my letter of 26 

September 2012 to the PAC regarding my 

annual report and accounts the main reasons 

why this additional income arose.

PAC(4)-23-12 Paper 1

Page 5



Estimate of the income and expenses of the offi ce of Auditor General for the year ending 31 March 20146

14 Exhibit 1 illustrates the cumulative real terms 

variance in the total net revenue resource 

requirement sought for each of the years 

2009-10 to 2013-14. Members of the Public 

Accounts Committee will note that even 

taking into account the additional £0.75 

million requested for 2013-14, there has been 

a real terms reduction in our net resource 

request over the five year period of 2.1 per 

cent. Without this additional request, which is 

required in order to help promote improvement 

in public services and in order to respond to 

legislative change, the reduction in real terms 

is 15.5 per cent. 

15 I provide in Exhibit 2(a) an estimate of how the 

net revenue resource requested for the year 

ending 31 March 2014 will be used. 

16 I have also included a capital resource request 

of £20,000 to support the development of our 

ICT infrastructure, such as renewal of our 

computer servers, which is at the same level 

in cash terms as my request for 2011-12 (as 

illustrated in Exhibit 2(b)).

17 My budget requirements for the year ending 

31 March 2014 are presented in a format 

appropriate for inclusion in the Ministers’ 

Budget Motion in Appendix 2, alongside 

reconciliation of the net resource requirement 

to the cash drawdown requirement from the 

Welsh Consolidated Fund.

18 In addition to the amounts shown in 

Appendix 2, I receive income from local 

government audit, assessment and inspection 

work, which does not form part of the amount 

to be authorised by Budget Motion but is 

included for information within this estimate. 

During 2013-14, these income streams 

are estimated to amount to £9.825 million, 

compared with £9.576 million in 2012-13 

(see Appendix 3 for a reconciliation of income 

accruals estimate to fees and other income 

total).

PAC(4)-23-12 Paper 1

Page 6



Estimate of the income and expenses of the offi ce of Auditor General for the year ending 31 March 2014 7

-16%

-18%

-14%

-12%

-10%

-8%

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14

Includes

additional

£750,000

request. 

Excludes 

additional

£750,000

request. 

-2.8%

-8.7%

-13.1%

-15.5%

-2.1%

Exhibit 1 - Cumulative real terms variance in the net revenue resource requirement sought by the Auditor 

General for each of the years 2009-10 to 2013-14

PAC(4)-23-12 Paper 1

Page 7



Estimate of the income and expenses of the offi ce of Auditor General for the year ending 31 March 20148

Exhibit 2(a) - Estimate of use of net revenue resource requirement in 2013-14 and comparison with approved 

requests for 2012-13 and 2011-12

Exhibit 2(b) - Estimate of net capital resource requirement in 2013-14 and comparison with approved requests 

for 2012-13 and 2011-12 

Year to 31 

March 2014

£’000

Year to 31 

March 2013

£’000

Year to 31 

March 2012

£’000

Value-for-money examinations and studies by the Auditor General 1,885 1,635 1,635

Working with others to share learning, including provision of the GPX 450 200 200

Providing support to the Public Accounts Committee and other National 

Assembly committees

250 250 250

Responding to issues that have been brought to our attention through 

correspondence from the public, elected representatives and others

80 80 80

Granting of approvals to draw from the Welsh Consolidated Fund 15 15 15

Contributions to the following:

Staff training and development 792 792 850

ICT infrastructure 772 772 850

Technical support, research and development 500 500 500

Business development and improvement 360 360 453

Meeting equality duties 80 80 0

Remuneration of governance committee members (and costs of 

proposed legislative changes)

290 40 0

Voluntary exit scheme 0 0 550

Total revenue expenditure requirement 5,474 4,724 5,383

Year to 31 

March 2014

£’000

Year to 31 

March 2013

£’000

Year to 31 

March 2012

£’000

Total capital expenditure requirement 20 16 20

PAC(4)-23-12 Paper 1

Page 8



Estimate of the income and expenses of the offi ce of Auditor General for the year ending 31 March 2014 9

19 I will shortly be consulting on a new corporate 

strategy that will cover the period 2013 to 

2016. Within my consultation draft I will be 

outlining strategic commitments to:

• undertake value-for-money work with an 

‘austerity emphasis’ to support the public 

sector in Wales in achieving savings and 

other effi ciency gains;

• enhance our work on benchmarking and 

performance comparison, and increase our 

sharing of audit knowledge and exchange 

of good practice to allow the public sector 

in Wales to benefi t from experiences 

elsewhere;

• revise our audit framework with a view 

to providing further assurance on the 

effectiveness of governance arrangements 

and other issues of public interest;

• report more comprehensively through our 

audit work on, and demonstrate our own, 

compliance with duties on sustainable 

development, equality and the use of the 

Welsh language; 

• work more closely with other external 

review bodies and improve the way we run 

our business through a period of transition; 

and

• improve our own use of, and report more 

comprehensively on whether others 

are making the most of, information 

technology.

20 My estimate has been developed to 

provide me with a foundation to support the 

achievement of these strategic commitments.

Strategic approach

PAC(4)-23-12 Paper 1

Page 9



Estimate of the income and expenses of the offi ce of Auditor General for the year ending 31 March 2014Estimate of the income and expenses of the offi ce of Auditor General for the year ending 31 March 201410

Estimate of income and expenses

21 My estimate of the income and expenses of 

the Wales Audit Offi ce, and the resultant net 

resource requirement for the year ending 

31 March 2014 is provided in Appendix 3.

22 Exhibits 3 and 4 illustrate the cumulative 

real terms reductions in Wales Audit Offi ce 

revenue expenditure and audit fee income 

respectively between 2009-10 and 2013-14. 

-25%

-20%

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14

(forecast) (estimate)

-16.8%

-14.0%

-20.2%
-19.6%

Exhibit 3 - Cumulative real terms reduction in Wales Audit Offi ce total annual revenue expenditure between 

2009-10 and 2013-14

PAC(4)-23-12 Paper 1

Page 10



Estimate of the income and expenses of the offi ce of Auditor General for the year ending 31 March 2014 11

23 Exhibit 3 demonstrates my ongoing 

commitment to reduce my annual expenditure, 

which I estimate will have fallen in real terms 

by 19.6 per cent between 2009-10 and 

2013-14 (including the additional £750,000 

I am seeking to fund through this estimate). 

As explained at paragraph 10 (above), the 

increase between budgeted expenditure for 

2012-13 and outturn expenditure in 2011-12 is 

largely due to the deferral of certain 

2011-12 expenditure which enabled us to fund 

historical tax liabilities that we have identifi ed, 

which otherwise would have required 

supplementary funding from the National 

Assembly.

24 However, I cannot sustain expenditure at the 

2011-12 level indefi nitely whilst continuing to 

provide an effective audit service on behalf of 

the people of Wales. Much of the expenditure 

deferred from 2011-12 is necessary in order to 

invest in staff and other developments and to 

achieve longer term cost reductions 

(e.g. increased use of video conferencing 

facilities to reduce travel expenditure), 

and will need to be funded in 2012-13 or 

in 2013-14. I am proposing to meet this 

increased expenditure by setting internal 

effi ciency targets for 2013-14, and achieving 

a real terms reduction in expenditure of 

approximately 2.5 per cent.

-25%

-20%

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14

(forecast) (estimate)

-9.0%
-9.7%

-17.8%

-19.8%

Exhibit 4 - Cumulative real terms reduction in fees charged annually to audited bodies between 2009-10 

and 2013-14

PAC(4)-23-12 Paper 1

Page 11



Estimate of the income and expenses of the offi ce of Auditor General for the year ending 31 March 201412

Reductions to fee income

25 In my Estimate last year and in giving oral 

evidence to the Committee I noted that we 

had achieved a cash terms reduction of 

£1.27 million (8 per cent) between 2009 

and 2011 in the fees we charged for local 

government, NHS and central government 

audits, and local government work. We 

had achieved this reduction by making 

cost savings, through achieving effi ciency 

improvements and by taking a more 

proportionate approach to our work. I 

stated that I was planning to achieve further 

reductions of up to 5 per cent in 

2012-13 but that there was only limited scope 

for further reductions in 2013-14. 

The Committee’s Task and Finish Group 

expressed some concern about the level 

of reduction and asked me to confi rm that 

ongoing reductions would not affect the quality 

of my work. I can confi rm that this has not 

been the case, and this view is supported by 

my quality monitoring arrangements.

26 During 2013-14, I intend to hold fees at 

2012-13 levels wherever possible and will 

continue to seek effi ciencies in our audit 

approach so as to achieve an average real 

terms reduction in the level of our audit fees. 

This will result in an average real terms 

decrease in audit fees across all audited 

bodies of 19.8 per cent between 2009-10 and 

2013-14. However, the potential for any fee 

reductions at individual bodies is dependent 

on each local body’s circumstances. The 

fee must be suffi cient to fund the work 

required to enable my auditors to properly 

discharge their responsibilities, considering 

local circumstances such as the governance 

environment, risk profi le, fi nancial and 

performance management arrangements, 

size, complexity and the body’s track record 

on improvement. If unplanned or additional 

work is required as a result of failures by 

audited bodies to provide what my staff need 

for them to do their work effi ciently, I will 

charge additional fees commensurate with 

the additional work involved. My fee scales 

are benchmarked against fees charged by 

other UK audit agencies, and the results of 

the exercise are available on the Wales Audit 

Offi ce’s web site.2

27 In addition to funding from the National 

Assembly and audit fee income, I also receive 

an annual grant from the Welsh Government 

to support my work in local government on the 

Wales Programme for Improvement. Between 

2009-10 and 2012-13 that funding reduced 

in real terms by 25.6 per cent to £1.347 

million. I have assumed for the purposes of 

this estimate that this grant will be frozen 

in cash terms at £1.347 million for 2013-14 

representing a further real terms reduction of 

2.5 per cent.

Further savings and effi ciencies

28 All public sector bodies, including the Wales 

Audit Offi ce, face the challenge of continuing 

to deliver the best possible services against a 

background of unprecedented pressures on 

public fi nances. 

29 In common with many public bodies, the 

largest area of Wales Audit Offi ce expenditure 

is staff salaries and associated costs. 

Exhibit 5 illustrates the reduction in the 

numbers of whole-time equivalent staff over 

the six-year period 2006-07 to 2011-12 

(22.9 per cent) as set out in our audited 

annual report and accounts.

2  www.wao.gov.uk/aboutus/4240.asp

PAC(4)-23-12 Paper 1

Page 12



Estimate of the income and expenses of the offi ce of Auditor General for the year ending 31 March 2014 13

30 I have operated voluntary exit schemes during 

both 2010-11 and 2011-12 to achieve over 

time a staff mix more aligned to future work 

demands (including recruiting at lower grades 

where appropriate to achieve a leaner skill 

mix) and further reduce the staff costs of the 

Wales Audit Offi ce. Fourteen members of staff 

left under the 2010-11 scheme. Staff interest 

in the 2011-12 scheme was lower than I had 

hoped, with approval being granted to six 

members of staff to leave, one of whom left in 

2011-12 with a further fi ve leaving in 2012-13. 

The cost of the 2011-12 scheme was £0.35 

million, which will save £82,000 per annum. 

I received a supplementary approval of £0.55 

million to help fund the 2011-12 scheme. I 

used £0.1 million of this approval, with the 

unspent element of the approval reverting to 

the Welsh Consolidated Fund. 

31 My staff and I continue to seek other 

effi ciencies that will help us to further reduce 

our cost base in 2013-14 and I have tasked 

different parts of the business with generating 

effi ciency savings of approximately 2.5 per 

cent to further reduce our cost base beyond 

2012-13.

290

280

270

260

250

240

230

220

210

2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12

284

264

270

260

222
219

W
h

o
le

-t
im

e
 e

q
u

iv
a

le
n

ts

Exhibit 5 - Numbers of Wales Audit Offi ce whole-time equivalent staff over the six-year period 2006-07 

to 2011-12 

PAC(4)-23-12 Paper 1

Page 13



Estimate of the income and expenses of the offi ce of Auditor General for the year ending 31 March 201414

32 I have now also implemented new vehicle fl eet 

arrangements in the Wales Audit Offi ce to help 

improve staff safety and well-being, reduce our 

impact on the environment and generate cost 

savings. These new arrangements include 

the competitive procurement of a new fl eet 

provider, restriction in the choice of vehicles 

to three manufacturers (all of which must 

meet the highest safety standards, and not 

exceed 140g/cm2 emissions), reduction of the 

transport allowance and measures to reduce 

all forms of staff travel more generally through, 

for example, greater use of videoconferencing. 

The PAC has commissioned a 

value-for-money review of these new 

arrangements.

Additional costs to be incurred

33 While we shall continue to review our 

expenditure and to exercise pay constraints 

in line with central government guidelines, 

we also face a number of increasing cost 

pressures.

 a The Public Audit (Wales) Bill once enacted 

will materially increase the governance and 

other costs of the new Wales Audit Offi ce. 

I estimate the salary and support costs of 

the Chair and Non-Executive members to 

the Wales Audit Offi ce Shadow Board will 

be approximately £250,000 in 2013-14 

and that those costs will be approximately 

£350,000 in 2014-15.

 b I am seeking an additional £250,000 

to develop the good practice work we 

undertake. As public sector auditors, 

the Wales Audit Offi ce has a key role to 

play in helping public bodies to identify 

scope for savings. The feedback we have 

received from our stakeholders is that 

we could do this more effectively with 

increased investment in activities such 

as our Good Practice Exchange and by 

producing additional tools including a new 

suite of shorter and more timeous reports 

and aides for the public sector. Our Cost 

Reduction Guide is one such example, 

which provides guidance and direction on 

managing public services reductions.

 c By sharing good practice, Public Sector 

Bodies can more readily identify areas for 

improvement and maximise effi ciencies. 

For example, our recent work on asset 

management energy effi ciency identifi ed 

a case study where one authority had 

implemented software that installed 

energy saving measures on 400 of 

the organisation’s personal/desktop 

computers. This software cost £39,000 to 

purchase and delivered around £80,000 of 

energy savings annually. The case study 

was shared through the National Asset 

Management working group and globally 

through our Good Practice Exchange. 

We are aware that at least two other 

organisations subsequently implemented 

this approach, resulting in minimum annual 

savings of £160,000 per annum. The Good 

Practice Exchange content on the Wales 

Audit Offi ce’s website is already well used. 

In the year October 2011 to October 2012, 

there were over 140,000 page views of the 

existing materials posted on the website. 

Increased investment will allow me to do 

considerable more work in this area.

 d I am also seeking additional resource 

of £250,000 to ensure I can maintain 

my pre-planned value-for-money 

programme which is designed to provide 

comprehensive coverage of the Welsh 

public sector while also providing for a swift 

response to urgent projects without the 

need to defer planned work. I am receiving 

an increasing number of requests for 

special investigations, some of which have 

come from the Public Accounts Committee. 

PAC(4)-23-12 Paper 1

Page 14



Estimate of the income and expenses of the offi ce of Auditor General for the year ending 31 March 2014 15

Recent examples have included the 

Awema and River Lodge investigations. 

Without this additional funding, there will 

inevitably be delays in the delivery of 

my National Studies Programme. I am 

also intending to introduce a new suite of 

shorter and more timeous value-for-money 

studies.

 e Looking beyond 2013-14, my staff are 

in the process of estimating how much 

extra work we may have to carry out as 

a result of the potential additional duties 

that are likely to arise from enactment of 

the Sustainable Development Bill. Such 

duties will, inevitably, lead to additional 

development and training costs. I 

anticipate at present that these additional 

costs would be incurred over a three year 

period covering 2014-15 to 2016-17, and 

would need to be included as additional 

resource requests in the estimates for 

those years.

Areas of uncertainty

Public Audit (Wales) Bill

34 I wrote to the Chair of the PAC on 

5 September 2012 setting out my views on 

the Public Audit (Wales) Bill. In that letter, 

I expressed the view that the cost of the 

Bill as it stands is likely to be signifi cantly 

higher than that estimated in the Explanatory 

Memorandum. In my subsequent letter of 

12 October I have provided a breakdown of 

my estimate of those costs. I have included 

a fi gure of £250,000 in this estimate to cover 

the new governance and other arrangements 

and some initial transitional costs arising from 

the Bill’s proposals and have indicated that 

I estimate that further costs of £350,000 will 

arise in 2014-15. I will be able to provide a 

clearer indication of the costs of implementing 

the Bill in presenting my 2014-15 estimate.

Value Added Tax

35 As reported in both the Auditor General 

estimate papers and also the annual report 

and accounts for every year since the creation 

of the Wales Audit Offi ce in 2005, discussions 

are continuing with HMRC on my Value Added 

Tax (VAT) position. My estimates in previous 

years have reported that the potential liability 

associated with any change in my VAT status 

might be signifi cant and might require me 

to make a future request for supplementary 

resources.

36 During 2011-12 HMRC made a ruling on my 

VAT status but discussions are continuing 

regarding the VAT treatment of work 

completed for me. Following this ruling, and 

based on independent expert advice, I made 

a substantial provision in my accounts for the 

year ended 31 March 2012 to cover potential 

historical liabilities should HMRC rule that that 

the work completed for me should have been 

treated differently for VAT purposes. 

37 Although I have been able to make an 

accounting provision for these historical 

liabilities, should these liabilities crystallise 

I may need to seek additional cash from the 

Welsh Consolidated Fund as I outlined in my 

letter to the PAC of 26 September 2012. It is 

also possible that I may have to change the 

way in which I charge VAT in the future. If this 

is the case, my costs would probably increase 

by approximately £600,000 per annum, which 

I would need to include in a supplementary 

estimate for the year in which any change was 

implemented by HMRC.

PAC(4)-23-12 Paper 1

Page 15



Estimate of the income and expenses of the offi ce of Auditor General for the year ending 31 March 201416

Employee travel and subsistence expenses

38 I reported in my 2011-12 annual report and 

accounts that the way in which my staff 

need to work may have led to some having 

established permanent places of work at the 

offi ces of my audited bodies. It is possible 

that some payments for expenses incurred in 

travelling to these offi ces should have been 

subject to tax and national insurance. I am 

aware that other Welsh public sector bodies 

and another UK audit agency are experiencing 

similar problems. I am currently in discussion 

with HMRC to resolve this matter. Should 

HMRC rule that I should have deducted PAYE 

when paying these expenses, I may need 

to seek extra revenue and cash resources 

through a supplementary estimate.

Legislative changes: Westminster

39 In my estimate for the year ending 31 March 

2012, I emphasised the potential impact for 

the Wales Audit Offi ce of the abolition of the 

Audit Commission. The impact of this change 

is becoming clearer, but there are still issues 

to be resolved, such as arrangements for 

undertaking the National Fraud Initiative. I 

am continuing to keep this situation under 

review to assess any cost and operational 

implications for the Wales Audit Offi ce.

PAC(4)-23-12 Paper 1

Page 16



Estimate of the income and expenses of the offi ce of Auditor General for the year ending 31 March 2014 17

Appendix 1 - Main operational activities of the Auditor General 

and the auditors he appoints in local government, and 

associated sources of funding

Activity Scale Source of funding

Audit of accounts 

prepared by 

central government 

and health bodies

Eight accounts prepared by the Welsh Government; 31 other accounts, 

including the Assembly Commission; seven health boards; and, three 

NHS trusts.

Fees charged to audited 

bodies.

Audit of accounts 

prepared by local 

government bodies

22 unitary authorities, fourpolice authorities, three fi re and rescue 

authorities, one probation trust, three national park authorities, one 

internal drainage board, eight pension funds, approximately750 

community councils and other small bodies.

Fees charged to audited 

bodies.

Local government 

improvement

assessments

Includes audits of whether authorities have discharged their improvement 

planning and performance reporting duties, assessments of the likelihood 

of compliance with improvement duties and special inspections. 

Undertaken at 22 unitary authorities, three fi re and rescue authorities and 

three national park authorities.

Fees charged to audited 

bodies. The Welsh

Government also 

provides grant funding 

to support improvement 

assessment work.

Local performance 

audit work at 

health bodies

Includes assessments of arrangements to secure value-for-money in use 

of resources. Undertaken at seven health boards and three NHS trusts.

Fees charged to audited 

bodies.

Certifi cation of 

grant claims and 

returns

34 local government schemes (around 800 claims with a total value of 

some £1.6 billion), alongside European structural fund claims with a total 

annual claim value of around £300 million.

Fees charged to audited 

bodies.

Value-for-money 

examinations and 

studies

Typically 12 examinations, studies and other outputs are undertaken in 

the course of a calendar year, looking at value-for-money in key areas 

of public spending. Often this work is undertaken from a ‘whole-system’ 

or ‘cross-cutting’ perspective, where public spending is examined 

irrespective of who delivers the services.

Financed mostly from 

the Welsh Consolidated 

Fund, following approval 

by the National Assembly. 

The Welsh Government 

also provides grant 

funding to support local 

government studies.

Other signifi cant 

activities

Includes:

• checking requests for grant of approval to draw from the Welsh 

Consolidated Fund;

• working with others to share learning, including provision of the Good 

Practice Exchange;

• anti-fraud and other data matching exercises, including the National 

Fraud Initiative;

• responding to issues that have been brought to our attention through 

correspondence from the public, elected representatives and others; 

• providing support to the Public Accounts Committee and other 

National Assembly committees; and

• administration of the Wales Audit Offi ce.

Financed mostly from 

the Welsh Consolidated 

Fund, following approval 

by the National Assembly. 

Some activities are 

also funded in part by 

fees charged to audited 

bodies.

PAC(4)-23-12 Paper 1

Page 17



Estimate of the income and expenses of the offi ce of Auditor General for the year ending 31 March 2014Estimate of the income and expenses of the offi ce of Auditor General for the year ending 31 March 201418

The Welsh Ministers must move an annual Budget Motion in the National Assembly for Wales3 to authorise, 

amongst other things:

 a the amount of resources which may be used in the fi nancial year by the Auditor General;

 b the amount of resources accruing to the Auditor General which may be retained by him (rather 

than paid into the Welsh Consolidated Fund); and

 c the amount which may be paid out of the Welsh Consolidated Fund to the Auditor General.

The estimate examined and laid by the Public Accounts Committee is incorporated into the Budget Motion. 

These resource and cash requirements, which due to the variability of income streams can only be 

estimates, are summarised below.

Estimated budget requirements of the Auditor General for the year 

ending 31 March 2013

Appendix 2 - Estimated budget requirements of the Auditor 

General for the year ending 31 March 2014

Resources other than accruing resources for use by the Auditor General on the discharge of the 

statutory functions of the Auditor General and local government appointed auditors, and on the 

administration of the Wales Audit Offi ce4.

• Revenue

• Capital

£ million

5.474

0.020

Accruing resources from fees and charges for audit and related services (excluding for local government 

audit, assessment and inspection work); other recoveries of costs associated with the functions of the 

Auditor General; miscellaneous income from publications, conferences, provision of administrative and 

professional and technical services; recoveries of costs of seconded staff; repayments of staff loans; 

recoveries of car leasing payments; and interest received on working balances for use by the Auditor 

General on related services and the administration of the Wales Audit Offi ce5.

£ million

7,944

Net cash requirement from the Welsh Consolidated Fund to meet the net amounts falling due for 

payment in the year by the Auditor General6.

£ million

5,494

3   Under Section 125 of the 2006 Act.

4 This is the net revenue and capital expenditure in resource terms that the National Assembly will be requested to authorise by Budget Motion under Section 125(1)(a) of the 

2006 Act.

5 This is the income accruing to the Auditor General (other than that arising from local government activities under Part 1 and Section 33 of the Local Government Act 1999, Part 

2 of the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 and Part 1 of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009) that the National Assembly will be asked to authorise by Budget Motion under 

Section 125(1)(b) of the 2006 Act for use on related services rather than being paid into the Welsh Consolidated Fund.

6 This is the cash needed from the Welsh Consolidated Fund to meet the Auditor General’s estimated net payments (payments less receipts) falling due in the year for authorisation 

by the National Assembly by Budget Motion under Section 125(1)(c) of the 2006 Act.

PAC(4)-23-12 Paper 1

Page 18



Estimate of the income and expenses of the offi ce of Auditor General for the year ending 31 March 2014 19

Reconciliation of net resource requirement to cash drawing 

requirement from the Welsh Consolidated Fund

Year to 31 March 2014

 £000

Net request for resources – revenue and capital 5,494

Adjustments 0

NET CASH REQUIREMENT 5,494

PAC(4)-23-12 Paper 1

Page 19



Estimate of the income and expenses of the offi ce of Auditor General for the year ending 31 March 2014Estimate of the income and expenses of the offi ce of Auditor General for the year ending 31 March 201420

Appendix 3 - Estimate of the income and expenses of the 

Wales Audit Offi ce for the year ending 31 March 2014

Year to 31 March 

2014

 £000

E
x
p
e
n
s
e
s

Staff-related costs 16,702

Accommodation costs 907

Training and development costs7 260

IT costs 726

Supplies and services 4,648

EXPENSES TOTAL 23,243

In
c
o
m

e

Audit and inspection fees 14,301

Wales Programme for Improvement grant from the Welsh Government 1,347

Local government grant certifi cation fees 1,774

Other income 347

FEES AND OTHER INCOME TOTAL 17,769

TOTAL NET REVENUE EXPENDITURE REQUIREMENT 5,474

7  Includes staff time and direct costs.

PAC(4)-23-12 Paper 1

Page 20



Estimate of the income and expenses of the offi ce of Auditor General for the year ending 31 March 2014 21

Reconciliation of income accruals estimate to fees and 

other income total

Year to 31 March 

2014

 £000

Income accruing to the Auditor General other than that arising 

from local government activities

7,944

Income accruing to the Auditor General from local government 

audit, assessment and inspection work

9,825

FEES AND OTHER INCOME TOTAL 17,769

PAC(4)-23-12 Paper 1

Page 21



Public Accounts Committee 

PAC(4) 23-12 – Paper 2 – 23 October 2012 

 

Follow up activity of the PAC in the Third Assembly 

 

Purpose 

1.! At its meeting on 22 May 2012, the Committee agreed to follow up on a 

number of issues and reports considered by the Third Assembly’s Public 

Accounts Committee which were identified for potential follow-up work by 

the Fourth Assembly’s Committee.  

 

2.! The Committee received the following updates from the Welsh Government: 

 

·! Home Oxygen Therapy Services (Annex 1) 

·! Protecting NHS staff from violence and aggression (Annex 2) 

·! The Red Dragon Project (Annex 3) 

·! Communities First (Annex 4) 

·! Housing services for adults with mental health needs (Annex 5) 

·! Major transport projects (Annex 6) 

·! Services for children and young people with emotional and mental 

health needs (Annex 7) 

 

3.! The Committee also considered recommendations made on reports into:  

 

·! Sustainable Development - The Wales Audit Office are conducting 

further work on this issue. 

·! The Forestry Commission – The Committee agreed to wait for the 

completion of follow up work of the Wales Audit Office before 

considering any further activity on this issue. 

·! Unscheduled Care - The Committee agreed to wait for the completion of 

follow up work being undertaken by the Wales Audit Office before 

considering any further activity on this issue. 

·! Maternity Services – The Committee will take evidence on Maternity 

Services at its meeting on 12 November 2012. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 22



·! A Picture of Public Services – The Committee agreed to take no further 

action on this as the report was published in April 2012. 

·! Coastal Erosion - The findings of the Third Assembly’s PAC have been 

considered by the Environment and Sustainability Committee’s Task 

and Finish Group as part of its inquiry into Coastal Erosion.  

 

Action for the Committee 

4. Members are requested to note the responses from the Welsh Government 

and note that they will be able to discuss any further action that they wish to 

take as a result of this correspondence at a future meeting.  

Page 23



"##$%!&!

Page 24



"##$%!&!

Page 25



Yr Adran Iechyd, Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Phlant
Cyfarwyddwr Cyffredinol • Prif Weithredwr, GIG Cymru

Department for Health, Social Services and Children
Director General • Chief Executive, NHS Wales

Parc Cathays ● Cathays Park
Caerdydd ● Cardiff

CF10 3NQ 

Ffôn  ● Tel 02920 801182/1144
david.sissling@wales.gsi.gov.uk

Gwefan ● website: www.wales.gov.uk

Darren Millar
Chair, Public Accounts Committee
The National Assembly for Wales
Cardiff Bay
Cardiff

CF99 1NA

Our Ref: DS/DM

28 June 2012

Dear Darren

PROTECTING NHS STAFF FROM VIOLENCE AND AGGRESSION – UPDATE FOR THE 
PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE

Thank you for your letter of 31 May requesting a written update on the actions taken in 
response to June 2009 report by the Audit Committee of the third Assembly on Protecting NHS 
Staff from Violence and Aggression.  

At the time the Audit Committee took evidence on the Wales Audit Office’s report, an all-Wales 
Violence and Aggression Steering Group (the Steering Group) was already leading a 
programme of work to address the recommendations of the Ministerial Taskforce.  The Steering 
Group, which included board level champions from each Health Board and Trust, established a 
number of workstreams to address key areas. 

These included:

• the development of case management to support staff; 

• the introduction of high-specification CCTV in clinical areas;

• the roll-out of a security device for high risk lone-workers;

•  incident reporting and data collection; 

• the communications and awareness raising.  

In December 2009, the Welsh Government identified dedicated programme management 
support for the work programme to take forward a national-level action plan.  In March 2012, the 
Steering Group considered that it had met its’ objectives and that ongoing work in the area 
should become mainstreamed into NHS business.  

With regard to the update requested, I have set out below details of progress against each of 
the actions identified:

Annex 2 

Page 26



Welsh Government actions following June 2009 report by the Audit Committee

1.  Development and implementation of an all-Wales communications strategy to support 
a sustained and high-profile awareness raising campaign

On 10 February 2010, a Communications Strategy was approved by the Steering Group which 
developed key messages for the public and for staff. A poster campaign was developed to 
remind staff and the public that violence and aggression against NHS staff would not be 
tolerated.  There was also involvement in 2010 in a 30 minute ‘Wales This Week’ programme 
dedicated to violence and aggression against staff in which a number of staff provided detailed 
accounts of their experiences. Measures being taken to enable improvements were highlighted 
in the programme. 

In addition, a communications action plan was developed and implemented by LHBs and Trusts 
across Wales. Local intranet pages designed to provide information and advice to staff were 
made widely available. This approach to providing support to NHS staff on the ground has been 
well received across Wales. An experienced communications manager also attended all-Wales 
case managers’ and security managers’ meetings on a regular basis, and co-ordinated the 
handling of enquiries and requests for information across Wales to ensure a consistent 
approach. 

Annual updates have been provided to the Partnership Forum and a number of key 
achievements have been supported by good media coverage.

2.  Development and implementation of the latest version of the Datix system, which 
would be used by NHS staff to report incidents of violence and aggression on-line

In 2009 all LHBs and Trusts were required to implement the latest version of the Datix system 
which included functionality to allow users to complete incident ‘forms’ on-line.  Compliance was 
monitored and all organisations implemented the required arrangements by March 2010. 
Alongside this, the Welsh Government (in collaboration with the NHS) put arrangements in 

place from 1 April 2010 to facilitate the collation of consistent all-Wales data relating to 
incidents.

During 2010, there appeared to be a reduction in the reporting of incidents where organisations 
had promoted the on-line completion of forms as the preferred route for reporting incidents.  It 
was therefore confirmed that there should be a range of reporting methods available to 
accommodate preferences in reporting methods.

In July 2011, the Steering Group agreed that some data only needed to be collected on a six-
monthly basis. The data is used regularly to understand the pattern and frequency of incidents 

to inform action at a local and national level.

3.  Comprehensive review of the Training Passport (modules A, B and C), which was due 
to start in January 2010

In 2010 the Health & Safety Executive looked at violence and aggression-related training in 
A&E departments across Wales. They recognised that significant efforts were being made to 
ensure that staff were trained sufficiently to deal with the risks arising from violent or aggressive 
behaviours they faced. 

The outcome of a review of the Passport Scheme was provided to the Steering Group in 2011. 

It recommended that an approach was needed which was less prescriptive about how and 
when training was provided and which had risk assessment at its heart.  At its meeting in 
October 2011, the Steering Group agreed that the interval of the period for Module B refresher 
training should be risk-based- rather than fixed at two years. It was also agreed that the 

Annex 2 

Page 27



prescribed list of techniques for breakaway covered in Module C should be removed to allow 
organisations to determine the range of techniques to be taught based on local circumstances.

4.  Staff participation in the three core modules of the Training Passport, including how 
the low level of compliance at several NHS bodies has been addressed

During 2010, training in the V&A Passport was given greater prominence and the Welsh 
Government held performance reviews with each LHB and Trust every six months which 
involved a focus on compliance with the Passport modules. This led to improved training levels 
in those organisations which had relatively low compliance.  

All new staff are now required to undertake an awareness-raising module. Thereafter, 
organisations are required to undertake risk assessments to determine the level of training 
required - using the spectrum of the Passport as a guide and using incident data to pinpoint ‘hot 
spots’. In addition, organisations are providing more on-the-job training which has been proven 
to be effective.  

5.  Development of a business case for an automated alert system to protect lone NHS 
workers

A business case for an automated alert system was developed in 2009 which led to the then 
Minister for Health and Social Services approving a £1.8m capital investment in a lone worker 
alert device for high risk lone workers.  The device subsequently selected through a 
procurement exercise links the user to a centre staffed with trained security personnel. When 
activated discreetly by the user, the security centre can listen to the conversation and, if 
necessary, ask the police to attend the scene. Recordings are of sufficient quality to be 
acceptable in court proceedings.  

In 2009, LHBs and Trusts assessed that 9,000 devices were needed for high risk lone workers 
and training to support implementation started in 2010. An evaluation pack was developed by 
NHS Wales to support the ongoing assessment of the devices.  Regular meetings between the 

Welsh Government, the supplier and representatives from LHBs and Trusts are held to monitor 
progress and address any issues arising.  In addition, a pilot project to assess whether the 
device is applicable to GPs in primary care is underway.

6.  Recruitment of caseworkers to manage serious cases of violence and aggression

The establishment of case managers has been a pivotal part of the work programme.  The case 
manager role was mandated across NHS Wales in 2009 since when all LHBs and Trusts have 
had a case manager or managers.  Evidence tells us that staff are highly satisfied with the 
support provided by case managers.

7.  Collection of data on prosecutions following incidents of violence and aggression 
against staff on NHS sites

Since 1 April 2010, LHBs and Trusts have submitted data on action taken following incidents, 
divided into the following two groups:

• External sanctions - those which have progressed through the criminal justice system during 
the period in question; namely:

o Number of Cases referred for external sanctions (to police)
o Arrests
o Charges
o Successful prosecutions
o Other Actions e.g. ASBOs, CRASBO, cautions

Annex 2 

Page 28



• Internal sanctions - those actions which the LHBs and Trusts has taken to modify behaviour 
e.g. patient undertakings, exclusions.

In 2008-09 the number of prosecutions across Wales brought against the perpetrators of 
violence and aggression against NHS staff was in single figures.  The number of prosecutions 
brought has since increased significantly.  

In 2010-11, the number rose to 126 successful prosecutions - some of which were custodial 

sentences.  In addition, there were 143 other sanctions such as fixed penalties and ASBOs.   

In 2011-12, there were 179 successful prosecutions and 175 other sanctions (fixed penalties / 
ASBOs) and 139 internal sanctions such patient undertakings and exclusions.  

Incidents of violence and aggression against NHS Wales staff

I note the concerns of the Committee regarding the reported increase in instances of violence 
and aggression against NHS staff from 2007.  The table below provides a summary of the data 
collected in respect of violent or aggressive incidents since 2006-07.

Violent or Aggressive Incidents Against NHS Wales Staff

Year Number of Incidents

2006-7 8466

2007-8 7343

2008-9 6163

2009-10 8343

2010-11 7689

2011-12 8434

Since 2010, approximately 7-8% of incidents have occurred in A&E departments.  

The fact that the number of incidents reported has not decreased needs to be viewed in the
context of the considerable work that has been undertaken across NHS Wales to encourage 
reporting.  For example, some organisations have advised that staff are reporting each event 
where there is a single patient repeatedly causing an incident.  Previously, trade unions and 
staff organisations indicated that staff were unwilling to report incidents because of the 
prevailing view that no action would be taken.  This view has changed significantly because 
staff are now more confident that appropriate action will be taken as demonstrated above in the 
number of successful prosecutions.

Wider recommendations of the Wales Audit Office’s report

I can provide the following progress update in relation to the wider recommendations of the 
Wales Audit Office’s report:

• Two Memoranda of Understandings (MoUs) were signed in 2009 – one with the Police and 
one with the Crown Prosecution Service to improve the prevention, detection and 

prosecution of cases of violence against NHS staff.  These have formed the basis of the 
arrangements which have been developed among NHS Wales, the Police and the Crown 
Prosecution Services.  It was envisaged that the MoUs would be reviewed in due course 
and this has been underway since February 2012.  A group of senior managers from the 
Police, Crown Prosecution Service and NHS Wales have drafted a single MoU which is 
intended to be launched later this year.  

Annex 2 

Page 29



• Since Spring 2010, a group of senior managers representing NHS Wales, the Police and the 

Crown Prosecution Service has been established to implement any arrangements for 
protecting NHS staff.  This has resulted in improved relationships across the police force 
areas; the development of a violence and aggression internet portal to share best practice 
and training for NHS Wales and CPS lawyers.  In January 2012, the tri-partite group 
obtained support for a new initiative which aimed to reduce the time taken for clinical 
information to reach the Police - thereby enabling timely charging decisions to be made in all 
cases of violent assault. 

• To raise the profile of the importance of physical design of the NHS estate, the Steering 
Group received assurance that the current policy guidance used by Welsh Health Estates 
(now NHS Wales Shared Services Partnership: Facilities Services) takes account of the 
need to minimise violence and aggression where possible.  

• An All Wales Security Managers Group was established in 2009 and has become aligned 
with activities arising from the violence and aggression work programme. In October 2011, it 
was agreed that the Security Managers Group should develop an all-Wales approach to its 
work and has since February 2012 focused on an all-Wales approach to training security 
staff.  Greater efforts have also been made by the Group to build effective working 
relationships with the Police.

• Work is ongoing to ensure that opportunities to share information about perpetrators across 

agencies are taken where appropriate.  

Conclusion

In conclusion, I would like to reassure you that we will take all necessary action to ensure NHS
staff are free from violence in their work. We are confident the steps we have already taken 
have had a positive impact. We remain vigilant in pursuing this priority and will work with the 
NHS to enable further progress in the future. 

Please do not hesitate to let me know if you would find any further information helpful.

Yours sincerely

David Sissling

Annex 2 

Page 30



 

Yr Adran Busnes, Menter, Technoleg a Gwyddoniaeth 
Department for Business, Enterprise, Technology and Science 
 
Cyfarwyddwr Cyffredinol •  Director General 
 

 

 

 
Canolfan QED ● QED Centre 
Y Brif Rodfa ● Main Avenue 

Trefforest ● Treforest 
Pontypridd, CF37 5YR 

 
Ffôn  ● Tel 02920 826646 

james.price@wales.gsi.gov.uk 
Gwefan ● website: www.wales.gov.uk 

 

"##$%!'!
!
()**$#!+,--)*!"+!
./),*!
012-,3!"3341#56!.477,55$$!
8)5,4#)-!"66$72-9!:4*!;)-$6!
.)*<,::!=)9!
.)*<,::!
.>??!&8"!
! !
!

@'!"1A165!B@&B!
!
!
!
($)*!()**$#C!
!
!"#$%&'()*$+&),"-.$
!
D/)#E!941!:4*!941*!-$55$*!4:!'&!+)9F!!
!
G!)H4-4A,6$!:4*!#45!*$H-9,#A!$)*-,$*F!!0-$)6$!:,#<!)55)3/$<!5/$!1H<)5$6!*$I1$65$<!,#!941*!-$55$*!
<)5$<!'&!+)9F!
!
J41*6!6,#3$*$-9C!
!

!
 

/0(*"#$12$!)1$34*."&$)*$1"5'67$)7$8'9":$+&0-"$
%;$7)&$<4:0*"::=$>*."&?&0:"=$@"-5*)6)(2$A$/-0"*-"$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Page 31



$
$

The outcome of the Welsh Government’s discussions with the Treasury on 

updating the Green Book, especially on economic appraisal and information 

sharing for joint projects 

 

D/$!-)5$65!$<,5,4#!4:!5/$!K+D!L*$$#!=44E!M)6!H12-,6/$<!,#!B@@'!)#<!M/,-65!5/$*$!/)N$!2$$#!)!
#172$*!4:!)7$#<7$#56!6,#3$!5/)5!5,7$O!5/$!34*$!<4317$#5!/)6!#45!2$$#!:1--9!1H<)5$<F!!!D/$!L*$$#!
=44E!6$56!415!5/$!)HH*4)3/!54!2$!:4--4M$<!M/$#!1#<$*5)E,#A!$34#47,3!)HH*),6)-C!34N$*6!E$9!
H*,#3,H-$6!)#<!6$56!415!2$65!H*)35,3$F!"6!613/C!,5!,6!)!16$:1-!:*)7$M4*E!5/)5!,6!)HH-,3)2-$!54!H*4P$356!
)3*466!L4N$*#7$#5F!!"6!H*$N,416-9!*$H4*5$<!54!5/$!.477,55$$!,5!,6!:$-5!5/)5!5/$*$!)*$!647$!6H$3,:,3!
,661$6!,#3-1<,#A!5/$!)HH*),6)-!4:!H*4P$356!5/)5!3*466!241#<)*,$6!)#<!647$!7)55$*6!4:!5$*7,#4-4A9!
M/,3/!341-<!2$#$:,5!:*47!3-)*,:,3)5,4#F!
!
;/,-65!<,63166,4#6!M,5/!K+!D*$)61*9!)*$!4#A4,#A!,#!*$6H$35!54!1H<)5,#A!5/$!L*$$#!=44E!5/$!;$-6/!
L4N$*#7$#5!/)6!<$N$-4H$<!)#<!,6!,7H-$7$#5,#A!)!#172$*!4:!H*43$<1*$6!54!,7H*4N$!5/$!
7)#)A$7$#5!)#<!<$-,N$*9!4:!H*4P$356F!!G#5$*#)-!A1,<)#3$C!21,-<,#A!4#!5/$!K+D!L*$$#!=44EC!6$56!415!
)!3-$)*!:*)7$M4*E!:4*!7)#)A,#A!)#<!<$-,N$*,#A!H*4P$356!M,5/!)!3-$)*!$7H/)6,6!4#!641#<!$34#47,3!
)#)-96,6!61HH4*5$<!29!)!*42165!L)5$M)9!*$N,$M!H*43$66F!!Q$N,6$<!H*43$<1*$6!)*$!,#!H-)3$!54!<$)-!
M,5/!+)P4*!H*4P$356!M/,3/!3*466!241#<)*,$6F!!!

 

The application of the Welsh Government’s project management tools in 

collaborative projects 
!
D/$!;$-6/!L4N$*#7$#5!/)6!*$34A#,6$<!:4*!647$!5,7$!5/)5!/)N,#A!5/$!*,A/5!6E,--6!,#!H-)3$!,6!3*,5,3)-!54!
5/$!6133$66:1-!<$-,N$*9!4:!P4,#5!H*4P$356!)#<!H*4A*)77$6F!!R,A#,:,3)#5!$::4*5!/)6!2$$#!7)<$!29!5/$!
K$)<!4:!0*4:$66,4#!:4*!0*4A*)77$!)#<!0*4P$35!+)#)A$7$#5!,#!*$3$#5!9$)*6!54!$72$<!)HH*4H*,)5$!
H*43$<1*$6!)#<!2$65!H*)35,3$!,#!7)#)A,#A!7)P4*!H*4P$356C!,#3-1<,#A!34--)24*)5,N$!H*4P$356C!,#!)--!
)*$)6!4:!5/$!;$-6/!L4N$*#7$#5F!!!;$!)*$!)#<!M,--!34#5,#1$!54!74#,54*!5/$!)**)#A$7$#56!)<4H5$<!:4*!
,#<,N,<1)-!-)*A$!H*4P$356!64!5/)5!-$664#6!-$)*#$<!)*$!6/)*$<!M,5/!65)::!)#<!16$<!54!,7H*4N$!:151*$!
)**)#A$7$#56F!!D/$!0*4A*)77$!)#<!0*4P$35!+)#)A$7$#5!.4771#,59!7$$5!*$A1-)*-9!54!6/)*$!2$65!
H*)35,3$!)#<!*$N,$M!-$664#6!-$)*#5!:*47!45/$*!H*4P$356F!
!
L)5$M)9!,6!#4M!:,*7-9!$72$<<$<!,#!5/$!>,N$!.)6$!+4<$-!)6!)!2$65!H*)35,3$!H*43$66F!!L)5$M)9!/12!
,#!5/$!;$-6/!L4N$*#7$#5!M,--!:1*5/$*!2$#$:,5!H*4A*)77$6SH*4P$356!15,-,6,#A!5/,6!74<$-!29!H*4N,<,#A!
)#!)3341#5,#A!4::,3$*!)661*)#3$!7$3/)#,67!)5!$N$*9!65)A$!T!5/$*$29!$#61*,#A!5/)5!)!/,A/!)661*)#3$!
H*4:,-$!,6!H*4N,<$<!)#<!7),#5),#$<!)#<!5/)5!H*4A*)77$6SH*4P$356!)*$!H*4H$*-9!74#,54*$<!5/*41A/415!
5/$,*!-,:$393-$6F!
!
G#!*$3$#5!9$)*6!M$!/)N$!65*$#A5/$#$<!5/$!*4-$!4:!5/$!R$#,4*!Q$6H4#6,2-$!UM#$*!VRQUW!29!H*4N,<,#A!
3-$)*!A1,<)#3$!61HH4*5!)#<!5*),#,#A!)3*466!5/$!;$-6/!L4N$*#7$#5F!!RQUX6!#4M!)-64!/)N$!)33$66!54!
/,A/!I1)-,59C!,#<$H$#<$#5!L)5$M)9!*$N,$M6!)5!E$9!65)A$6!4:!H*4P$35!<$N$-4H7$#5!)#<!
,7H-$7$#5)5,4#F!!U#!&Y5/!"H*,-!B@&B!5/$!;$-6/!L4N$*#7$#5!)3/,$N$<!:1--!)33*$<,5)5,4#!:*47!5/$!
+)P4*!0*4P$356!"15/4*,59!,#!5/$!.)2,#$5!U::,3$!)6!)#!)33*$<,5$<!/12!:4*!5/$!<$-,N$*9!4:!L)5$M)9!
*$N,$M6F!!!=9!2$347,#A!)#!)33*$<,5$<!/12C!M$!#4M!/)N$!5/$!3)H)2,-,59!54!<$-,N$*!L)5$M)9!*$N,$M6!
)3*466!5/$!M/4-$!4:!;)-$6F!!!D/,6!#45!4#-9!A,N$6!16!A*$)5$*!65*)5$A,3!:4316!,#!5/$!H*4P$35SH*4A*)77$!
H-)##,#A!H*43$66!215!M,--!)-64!$#)2-$!2$65!H*)35,3$!54!2$!6H*$)<!)3*466!5/$!M,<$*!;$-6/!H12-,3!
6$354*F!!($5),-6!4:!5/$!+)P4*!0*4P$35!"15/4*,59!3)#!2$!:41#<!)5Z!
!
MMMF3)2,#$54::,3$FA4NF1ES34#5$#5S7)P4*TH*4P$356T)15/4*,59!
!
G#!61HH4*5!4:!5/$!)24N$!)**)#A$7$#56C!M$!/)N$!1#<$*5)E$#!)!6,A#,:,3)#5!)741#5!4:!M4*E!),7$<!)5!
$72$<<,#A!5/$!>,N$!.)6$!+4<$-!,#!<$N$-4H7$#5!)#<!7)#)A$7$#5!4:!41*!216,#$66!3)6$6F!;$!
H*4745$!5/,6!)HH*4)3/!)6!5/$!74<$-!4:!2$65!H*)35,3$!:4*!)<4H5,4#!29!5/$!M,<$*!;$-6/!H12-,3!6$354*F!!!

Page 32



 

 

Work to update the bilateral concordats with UK Government departments. 

 
;$!34#5,#1$!54!M4*E!M,5/!45/$*!L4N$*#7$#5!($H)*57$#56!54!1H<)5$!5/$!2,-)5$*)-!34#34*<)56F!!!"!
#172$*!4:!5/$7!/)N$!2$$#!1H<)5$<!6,#3$!B@@[!54!*$:-$35!5/$!31**$#5!<$N4-15,4#!6$55-$7$#5!)#<!3)#!
2$!6$$#!)5Z!
!
/55HZSS#$MFM)-$6FA4NF1ES)2415S4*A)#,6)5,4#$%H-),#$<S,#5$*A4N$*#7$#5)-S34#34*<)56S\-)#A]$#F!
!
G#!)<<,5,4#!M$!/)N$!647$!M/,3/!)*$!3-46$!54!347H-$5,4#!,#3-1<,#A!34#34*<)56!M,5/!5/$!+,#,65*9!4:!
^165,3$!)#<!($H)*57$#5!:4*!_<13)5,4#F!!>4*!5/46$!($H)*57$#56!M/$*$!1H<)5$6!)*$!65,--!#$3$66)*9!
4::,3,)-6!34#5,#1$!54!M4*E!3-46$-9!M,5/!5/$7!54!:,#)-,6$!5/$,*!34#34*<)56F!
!
!
!
B"6:5$;)C"&*9"*.$
D4(4:.$EFGE 

$

Page 33



 

 

Welsh Government 
Merthyr Tydfil, CF48 1UZ 

 
English Enquiry Line  0845 010 3300 

Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg  0845 010 4400 

!

!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!!""#$%&
!

()**$#!+,--)*!"+!
./),*C!
012-,3!"3341#56!.477,55$$C!
;$-6/!L4N$*#7$#5C!
.)*<,::!=)9F!
.>??!&8"F!

!
!
!
($)*!()**$#C!
!
!
!
!
+H<IJK$DKKLHM@/$KLNNJ@@>>O/$!>+L!@$LM$KLNNHMJ@J>/$PJ!/@$
!
!
G#!^1#$!B@&@C!.)*-!R)*A$)#5C!5/$!5/$#!+,#,65$*!:4*!R43,)-!^165,3$!)#<!`43)-!L4N$*#7$#5C!
M*45$!54!5/$!./),*!4:!5/$!012-,3!"3341#56!.477,55$$C!^4#)5/)#!+4*A)#!"+C!/,A/-,A/5,#A!5/$!
)35,4#6!5/)5!M41-<!2$!5)E$#!29!5/$!;$-6/!L4N$*#7$#5!,#!*$6H4#6$!54!5/$!)24N$!*$H4*5F!!
!
"6!H)*5!4:!5/$!*$6H4#6$C!5/$!+,#,65$*!3477,55$<!54!H*4N,<,#A!)!:1--!*$H4*5!4#!H*4A*$66!)A),#65!
5/$6$!)35,4#6!29!+)*3/!B@&&F!G#!-,#$!M,5/!5/,6!3477,57$#5C!4#!+)*3/!BY!B@&&C!5/$!+,#,65$*!
6$#5!)#!1H<)5$<!"35,4#!0-)#!M/,3/!6/4M$<!5/$!H*4A*$66!2$,#A!7)<$!29!5/$!;$-6/!
"66$72-9!L4N$*#7$#5!)A),#65!$)3/!)35,4#F!G!#45$!,#!941*!-$55$*!4:!'&!+)9!B@&B!5/)5!5/,6!
*$6H4#6$!<4$6!#45!)HH$)*!54!/)N$!2$$#!*$:$*$#3$<F!!!!
!
D/)5!-$55$*!6$5!415!5/$!7),#!)3/,$N$7$#56!)#<!5/$!N)65!7)P4*,59!4:!5/$!)35,4#6!/)<!2$$#!
347H-$5$<F!_%)7H-$6!4:!5/$6$!,#3-1<$<Z!
!

Ø! .4771#,5,$6!>,*65!M)6!#4M!H)*5!4:!5/$!"66$72-9!L4N$*#7$#5X6!04-,39!L)5$M)9!
0*43$66!O!

Ø! D/$!:)35!5/)5!5/$!+,#,65$*!/)<!M*,55$#!54!)--!"66$72-9!L4N$*#7$#5!+,#,65$*6S($H159!
+,#,65$*6!)#<!a$9!R$*N,3$!($-,N$*$*6!4#!5/$,*!3477,57$#5!54!.4771#,5,$6!>,*65O!

B[5/!^1#$!B@&B!!

Page 34



Ø! D/$!+,#,65$*!/)<!!*$N,6$<!L1,<)#3$!4#!5/$!H*4A*)77$!M/,3/!H*4N,<$<!3-)*,59!4#!)!
*)#A$!4:!5/$!7465!1*A$#5!,661$6!)#<!)-64!5/$!34#5,#1,#A!#$$<!54!H*,4*,5,6$!
.4771#,5,$6!>,*65O!!

Ø! D/$!65*4#A$*!-,#E6!5/)5!M$*$!2$,#A!<$N$-4H$<!M,5/!`43)-!R$*N,3$!=4)*<6C!H)*5,31-)*-9!
5/*41A/!5/$!M4*E!1#<$*5)E$#!4#!5/$!_1*4H$)#!R5*1351*)-!>1#<6!H*4P$35O!)#<!

Ø! D/$!H12-,3)5,4#!4:!5/$!*$H4*5!4#!5/$!.4771#,5,$6!>,*65!U15347$6!>1#<!
($74#65*)5,4#!>1#<!0*4P$356F!

G!)7!#4M!$#3-46,#A!)!31**$#5!1H<)5$!4:!5/$!)35,4#!)#<!)7!H-$)6$<!54!#45$!5/)5!)--!4:!5/$!
)35,4#6!/)N$!2$$#!347H-$5$<F!!
!
G!)7!)2-$!54!*$H4*5!5/)5!5/$!-$664#6!-$)*#5!/)N$!2$$#!,#34*H4*)5$<!,#54!5/$!#$M!.4771#,5,$6!
>,*65!0*4A*)77$!)#<!A44<!A4N$*#)#3$C!65*4#A!34771#,59!,#N4-N$7$#5!)#<!$::$35,N$!
<$-,N$*9!4:!415347$6C!5/*41A/!H)*5#$*6/,H!M4*E,#A!M,--!2$!$66$#5,)-!*$I1,*$7$#56!4:!5/$!#$%5!
H*4A*)77$F!
!
G#!)<<,5,4#!5/$!65*4#A$*!-,#E6!M/,3/!/)N$!2$$#!<$N$-4H$<!M,5/!`43)-!R$*N,3$!=4)*<6!)#<!
L4N$*#7$#5!=4<,$6!/)N$!H*4N$<!)!65*4#A!:41#<)5,4#!:4*!H*4A*)77$!2$#<,#A!M/,3/!,6!#4M!
2$A,##,#A!54!<$-,N$*!H46,5,N$!415347$6F!!!
!
G!6/41-<!2$!A*)5$:1-!,:!941!M41-<!3,*31-)5$!5/,6!H*4A*$66!*$H4*5!54!7$72$*6!4:!5/$!.477,55$$F!!
!
J41*6!6,#3$*$-9!!
!
!
!
!

!
!
!
!
^1#$!+,--,A)#!!
(,*$354*!L$#$*)-!!
`43)-!L4N$*#7$#5!)#<!.4771#,5,$6!!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

Page 35



(
4
3
!B
!

D
*
*
"
Q
$R
$$

$ H
?
#
'
."
$)
*
$.
5
"
$?
&)
(
&"
:
:
$1
"
0*
(
$9
'
#
"
$0
*
$&
"
:
?
)
*
:
"
$.
)
$.
5
"
$+
4
1
60
-
$D
-
-
)
4
*
.:
$K
)
9
9
0.
."
"
$!
"
?
)
&.
$)
*
$

K
)
9
9
4
*
0.
0"
:
$P
0&
:
.$
$$

! !
!
"
-
)
9
9
"
*
#
'
.0
)
*
$

B
"
6:
5
$D
:
:
"
9
1
62
$;
)
C
"
&*
9
"
*
.$
!
"
:
?
)
*
:
"
$$

D
-
.0
)
*
:
$'
*
#
$H
?
#
'
."
:
$$

$

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 1

. 
W

e
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n
d

 
th

a
t 

th
e
 W

e
ls

h
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
a

c
c
e

p
ts

 
th

e
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 t

h
e

 
A

u
d

it
o

r 
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
in

 h
is

 r
e

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 t
h
a

t 
it
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 u

s
 w

it
h

 d
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
th

e
 

a
c
ti
o

n
s
 i
t 

in
te

n
d
s
 t

o
 t

a
k
e

 t
o

 m
e
e

t 
th

e
s
e

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 t

im
e
 

w
it
h

in
 w

h
ic

h
 i
t 

w
ill

 c
o

m
p
le

te
 t

h
e

s
e

 
a

c
ti
o

n
s
.

!

)
W!
!$
@
5
"
$D
:
:
"
9
1
62
$;
)
C
"
&*
9
"
*
.$

:
5
)
4
6#
$9
'
S
"
$K
)
9
9
4
*
0.
0"
:
$P
0&
:
.$
'
$

-
6"
'
&"
&$
?
&0
)
&0
.2
$'
-
&)
:
:
$0
.:
$)
T
*
$

#
"
?
'
&.
9
"
*
.:
=$
'
*
#
$.
5
"
$D
:
:
"
9
1
62
$

;
)
C
"
&*
9
"
*
.O
:
$:
4
-
-
"
:
:
$0
*
$&
"
#
4
-
0*
(
$

.5
"
$(
'
?
$0
*
$)
4
.-
)
9
"
:
$1
"
.T
"
"
*
$

K
)
9
9
4
*
0.
0"
:
$P
0&
:
.$
'
&"
'
:
$'
*
#
$)
.5
"
&$

?
'
&.
:
$)
7$
B
'
6"
:
$:
5
)
4
6#
$1
"
$'
$S
"
2
$

9
"
'
:
4
&"
$)
7$
0.
:
$?
"
&7
)
&9
'
*
-
"
U$
!

D
/
$
!"
6
6
$
7
2
-9
!L
4
N
$
*#
7
$
#
5!
,6
!7
)
E
,#
A
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
)
!

H
*,
4
*,
59
!)
3
*4
6
6
!,
56
!<
$
H
)
*5
7
$
#
56
C!
H
)
*5
,3
1
-)
*-
9
!)
6
!#
$
M
!H
4
-,3
,$
6
!

)
*$
!<
$
N
$
-4
H
$
<
F!
.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
/
)
6
!2
$
$
#
!,
#
3
4
*H
4
*)
5$
<
!

,#
54
!5
/
$
!0
4
-,3
9
!L
)
5$
M
)
9
!H
*4
3
$
6
6
C!
)
#
<
!#
$
M
!H
4
-,3
,$
6
!M
,--
!/
)
N
$
!

54
!6
/
4
M
!/
4
M
!5
/
$
9
!)
*$
!5
)
*A
$
5,
#
A
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
)
*$
)
6
!)
#
<
!

-,#
E
,#
A
!M
,5
/
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
0
)
*5
#
$
*6
/
,H
6
F!
!

;
$
!)
*$
!3
4
7
7
,5
5$
<
!5
4
!5
)
E
,#
A
!5
/
$
!H
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
T2
$
#
<
,#
A
!)
A
$
#
<
)
!

:4
*M
)
*<
F!
!>
1
*5
/
$
*!
3
4
#
6
,<
$
*)
5,
4
#
!,
6
!2
$
,#
A
!A
,N
$
#
!2
9
!5
/
$
!

"
6
6
$
7
2
-9
!L
4
N
$
*#
7
$
#
5!
54
!#
$
M
!)
3
5,
4
#
6
!M
/
,3
/
!M
,--
!:
)
3
,-,
5)
5$
!

3
-4
6
$
*!
M
4
*E
,#
A
!*
$
-)
5,
4
#
6
/
,H
6
!)
#
<
!$
#
A
)
A
$
7
$
#
5!
Vb
H
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
!

2
$
#
<
,#
A
cW
!2
$
5M
$
$
#
!6
$
*N
,3
$
!<
$
-,N
$
*$
*6
!)
#
<
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!

! &
F!
.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
54
!2
$
!,
#
3
-1
<
$
<
!)
6
!H
)
*5
!4
:!
5/
$
!0
4
-,3
9
!L
)
5$
M
)
9
!

0
*4
3
$
6
6
!M
,5
/
,#
!5
/
$
!;
$
-6
/
!"
6
6
$
7
2
-9
!L
4
N
$
*#
7
$
#
5F
!!
!

! U
p

d
a
te

: 
A

c
ti

o
n

 C
o

m
p

le
te

d
.

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

is
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 P
o

lic
y
 G

a
te

w
a

y
 P

ro
c
e

s
s

! B
F!
"
6
!H
)
*5
!4
:!
5/
$
!0
4
-,3
9
!L
)
5$
M
)
9
!H
*4
3
$
6
6
C!
)
!0
4
-,3
9
!G
#
5$
A
*)
5,
4
#
!5
4
4
-!

M
,--
!2
$
!<
$
N
$
-4
H
$
<
C!
,#
!3
-4
6
$
!3
4
--)
2
4
*)
5,
4
#
!M
,5
/
!5
/
$
!.
/
,-<
!0
4
N
$
*5
9
!d
#
,5
F!

D
/
,6
!M
,--
!$
#
6
1
*$
!5
/
)
5!
)
--!
:1
51
*$
!H
4
-,3
,$
6
!)
#
<
!H
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
6
!M
,--
!/
)
N
$
!5
4
!

6
/
4
M
!5
/
$
!,
7
H
)
3
5!
5/
$
9
!/
)
N
$
!4
#
!)
--$
N
,)
5,
#
A
!H
4
N
$
*5
9
F!
!

! H
?
#
'
."
$K
)
9
?
6"
."
#
$8
4
*
"
$E
F
G
E

.
O

ff
ic

ia
ls

 h
e

ld
 d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h

 c
o

lle
a
g

u
e
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 P

o
lic

y
 S

u
p

p
o
rt

 U
n

it
 

a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

2
0

1
1
 –

1
2
 o

n
th

e
 m

o
s
t 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 w
a

y
 o

f 
in

tr
o

d
u
c
in

g
 a

 

Page 36



(
4
3
!B
!

0
)
*5
#
$
*6
/
,H
6
F!

d
H
<
)
5$
! ^
1
#
$
!B
@
&
B
!

>
*4
7
!"
H
*,
-!
&
6
5 !.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
,6
!2
$
,#
A
!*
$
T-
)
1
#
3
/
$
<
!)
6
!)
!

3
4
7
7
1
#
,5
9
!:
4
3
1
6
6
$
<
!5
)
3
E
-,#
A
!H
4
N
$
*5
9
!H
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
!)
#
<
!,
6
!

7
)
E
,#
A
!)
!E
$
9
!3
4
#
5*
,2
1
5,
4
#
!5
4
!5
/
$
!<
$
-,N
$
*9
!4
:!
$
-$
7
$
#
56
!4
:!
5/
$
!

D
)
3
E
-,#
A
!0
4
N
$
*5
9
!"
3
5,
4
#
!0
-)
#
!M
/
,3
/
!M
,--
!2
$
!-
)
1
#
3
/
$
<
!,
#
!^
1
#
$
!

B
@
&
B
F!

! ! ! "
#
!$
%
5$
*#
)
-!
$
N
)
-1
)
5,
4
#
!4
:!
5/
$
!H
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
!M
,--
!2
$
!1
#
<
$
*5
)
E
$
#
!

<
1
*,
#
A
!B
@
&
@
T&
&
F!
D
/
$
*$
!M
,--
!2
$
!5
M
4
!,
#
<
$
H
$
#
<
$
#
5!
$
-$
7
$
#
56
!5
4
!

5/
,6
Z!
)
#
!4
1
53
4
7
$
!$
N
)
-1
)
5,
4
#
!)
#
<
!)
!H
*4
3
$
6
6
!$
N
)
-1
)
5,
4
#
F!
D
/
$
!

)
,7
!4
:!
5/
$
!4
1
53
4
7
$
!$
N
)
-1
)
5,
4
#
!,
6
!5
4
!H
*4
N
,<
$
!$
N
,<
$
#
3
$
!4
#
!5
/
$
!

$
%
5$
#
5!
54
!M
/
,3
/
!5
/
$
!:
1
#
<
)
7
$
#
5)
-!
4
2
P$
3
5,
N
$
6
!:
4
*!
5/
$
!

H
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
!/
)
N
$
!2
$
$
#
!)
3
/
,$
N
$
<
!4
N
$
*!
5/
$
!-
,:
$
5,
7
$
!4
:!
5/
$
!

H
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
!5
4
!<
)
5$
F!
!D
/
$
!:
4
3
1
6
!4
:!
5/
$
!H
*4
3
$
6
6
!$
N
)
-1
)
5,
4
#
!M
,--
!

2
$
!4
#
!5
/
$
!3
1
**
$
#
5!
VB
@
@
?
TB
@
&
B
W!
H
/
)
6
$
!4
:!
5/
$
!H
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
!)
#
<
!

,5
!M
,--
!$
%
)
7
,#
$
!5
/
$
!6
1
,5
)
2
,-,
59
!4
:!
5/
$
!<
$
6
,A
#
C!
,7
H
-$
7
$
#
5)
5,
4
#
!

)
#
<
!:
1
#
<
,#
A
!4
:!
5/
$
!H
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
!,
#
!$
#
)
2
-,#
A
!,
56
!)
,7
6
!)
#
<
!

4
2
P$
3
5,
N
$
6
!5
4
!2
$
!7
$
5F
!

P
o

v
e

rt
y
 P

ro
o

fi
n

g
 T

o
o
l.
 W

e
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

fo
rm

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 P

o
lic

y
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 U
n

it
 a

re
 l
o

o
k
in

g
 a

t 
p

o
te

n
ti
a

lly
 r

a
ti
o

n
a

lis
in

g
 t

h
e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
. 

T
h

e
y
 a

re
 u

n
d
e

rt
a

k
in

g
 d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

p
o

lic
y
 a

re
a

s
 t

o
 l
o

o
k
 a

t
th

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
fo

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 a
 n

e
w

 S
in

g
le

 I
n
te

g
ra

ti
o

n
 T

o
o

l 
th

a
t 

c
a

p
tu

re
s
 a

ll 
re

le
v
a

n
t 
p

o
lic

y
 a

re
a

s
. 

T
h

e
 t

o
o

l 
w

ill
 o

p
e
ra

te
 a

t 
a

 h
ig

h
 

th
re

s
h

o
ld

, 
m

e
a

n
in

g
 t
h

a
t 

a
lm

o
s
t 

a
ll 

p
o

lic
ie

s
 w

ill
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 p

a
s
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 
it
. 

W
e

 w
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e
 t

h
e
s
e

 d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t

p
o

v
e

rt
y
 m

a
tt

e
rs

 
a

re
 r

e
fl
e

c
te

d
. 

T
h

e
 P

o
lic

y
 G

a
te

w
a

y
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 c

e
n
tr

a
l
to

 o
u
r 

p
o

lic
y
 m

a
k
in

g
, 

a
n
d

 i
s
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
o

u
s
ly

 b
e

in
g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
.

T
h

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 d

e
s
c
ri
b

e
d

 a
b

o
v
e

 
w

ill
 l
o

o
k
 t

o
:

-
b

e
tt

e
r 

c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 a

t 
k
e

y
 s

ta
g
e

s
 i
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g
 a

 n
e

w
 p

o
lic

y
; 

a
n

d

T!
s
tr

e
a
m

lin
in

g
 t

h
e
 v

a
ri

o
u
s
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 
a

p
p

ra
is

a
ls

 t
h

a
t 

a
 p

o
lic

y
 m

a
y
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

o
v
e

rt
y
 

p
ro

o
fi
n

g
; 

w
h

ils
t 

e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 t
h

a
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

, 
e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

/e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l/
s
o

c
ia

l,
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l,
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 a
n

d
 

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

s
p

e
c
ts

 a
re

 a
ll 

e
x
p

lo
re

d
 t

h
o
ro

u
g

h
ly

 i
n

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p
in

g
 p

o
lic

y
 i
n

te
rv

e
n
ti
o

n
s
."

H
?
#
'
."
$8
4
*
"
$E
F
G
E
$

;
$
!3
4
#
5,
#
1
$
!5
4
!-
4
4
E
!5
4
!,
7
H
*4
N
$
!5
/
$
!M
)
9
!M
$
!H
-)
#
!)
#
<
!<
$
N
$
-4
H
!4
1
*!

H
4
-,3
,$
6
C!
6
4
!5
/
)
5!
5/
$
!*
,A
/
5!
3
4
#
#
$
3
5,
4
#
6
!)
*$
!7
)
<
$
!)
5!
5/
$
!*
,A
/
5!
5,
7
$
F !

"
!#
$
M
!)
H
H
*4
)
3
/
!5
4
!5
/
$
!H
4
-,3
9
!7
)
E
,#
A
!)
#
<
!)
H
H
*)
,6
)
-!
H
*4
3
$
6
6
!,
6
!2
$
,#
A
!

,#
5*
4
<
1
3
$
<
!:
4
3
1
6
6
,#
A
!4
#
!2
1
,-<
,#
A
!5
/
$
!3
)
6
$
!:
4
*!
)
#
9
!#
$
M
!H
4
-,3
9
!)
#
<
!

3
/
4
4
6
,#
A
!2
$
5M
$
$
#
!4
H
5,
4
#
6
!1
6
,#
A
!5
/
$
!2
$
6
5!
)
N
)
,-)
2
-$
!$
N
,<
$
#
3
$
F!
!!

! '
F!
D
/
$
!+
,#
,6
5$
*!
:4
*!
R
4
3
,)
-!
^
1
6
5,
3
$
!)
#
<
!`
4
3
)
-!
L
4
N
$
*#
7
$
#
5!
M
,--
!M
*,
5$
!5
4
!

)
--!
;
$
-6
/
!"
6
6
$
7
2
-9
!L
4
N
$
*#
7
$
#
5!
+
,#
,6
5$
*6
!*
$
I
1
$
6
5,
#
A
!5
/
$
7
!5
4
!

$
N
,<
$
#
3
$
!/
4
M
!5
/
$
9
!M
,--
!2
$
!6
1
H
H
4
*5
,#
A
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
M
,5
/
,#
!5
/
$
,*
!

H
4
*5
:4
-,4
!)
*$
)
6
F!
!

! U
p

d
a
te

: 
A

c
ti

o
n

 C
o

m
p

le
te

d
.

T
h

e
 M

in
is

te
r 

w
ro

te
 t

o
a

ll 
W

e
ls

h
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
M

in
is

te
rs

 a
n
d

 D
e

p
u

ty
 

Page 37



(
4
3
!B
!

M
in

is
te

rs
 o

n
 t

h
e
 2

9
th

J
u

ly
2

0
1
0
.

! e
F!
U
::
,3
,)
-6
!M
,--
!,
<
$
#
5,
:9
!f
!H
4
-,3
9
!)
*$
)
6
!:
4
*!
H
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
!2
$
#
<
,#
A
!

V)
3
*4
6
6
!5
/
$
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
g
,6
,4
#
!>
*)
7
$
M
4
*E
W!
M
,5
/
,#
!5
/
$
!

"
6
6
$
7
2
-9
!L
4
N
$
*#
7
$
#
5!
)
#
<
!"
6
6
$
7
2
-9
!L
4
N
$
*#
7
$
#
5!
R
H
4
#
6
4
*$
<
!

=
4
<
,$
6
F!
0
*4
P$
3
56
!M
,--
!5
/
$
#
!2
$
!,
<
$
#
5,
:,
$
<
!5
4
!H
*4
7
4
5$
!H
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
!

2
$
#
<
,#
A
!M
,5
/
!6
$
*N
,3
$
!<
$
-,N
$
*$
*6
!,
#
!)
!M
)
9
!M
/
,3
/
!M
,--
!/
)
N
$
!2
$
#
$
:,
3
,)
-!

4
1
53
4
7
$
6
!:
4
*!
H
$
4
H
-$
!,
#
!.
>
!)
*$
)
6
F!

! ! U
p

d
a
te

: 
A

c
ti

o
n

 C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 (

a
n

d
 o

n
g

o
in

g
).

F
iv

e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

, 
w

it
h

 a
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t,

h
a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
p
p

ro
v
e

d
 t

o
 d

a
te

. 
T

h
e
s
e

 a
re

:

J
o

b
 C

e
n

tr
e

 P
lu

s
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 F

u
n
d

 P
ro

je
c
t

O
ff

ic
ia

ls
 i
n

 t
h
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

U
n

it
 w

o
rk

e
d

c
lo

s
e

ly
 w

it
h

 
c
o

lle
a

g
u

e
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 C
h

ild
 P

o
v
e

rt
y
 U

n
it
 a

n
d

 J
o

b
 C

e
n
tr

e
 P

lu
s
 (

J
C

P
) 

o
n
 

th
is

 p
ro

je
c
t.

 T
h

is
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 F

u
n

d
 P

ro
je

c
t 

p
la

c
e

s
 a

 
J
C

P
 a

d
v
is

o
r 

in
 i
n

te
g
ra

te
d
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 C

e
n

tr
e

s
 i
n

 4
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

a
re

a
s
, 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 a

im
 o

f 
g

e
tt

in
g

 t
h

o
s
e

 m
o
s
t 

m
a
rg

in
a

lis
e

d
 i
n

 s
o

c
ie

ty
 

b
a
c
k
 i
n

to
 w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 t

ra
in

in
g

. 
! L

in
k
s
 w

it
h

 L
o

c
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 B
o

a
rd

s
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

fu
n

d
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

s
e

d
 i
n

 2
0

1
1

-1
2

 t
o
 m

a
tc

h
 f

u
n
d

 a
 

E
u

ro
p

e
a
n

 S
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l 
F

u
n
d

s
 P

ri
o

ri
ty

 4
 p

ro
je

c
t 

le
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 L
o
c
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 
B

o
a
rd

 E
S

F
 p

ro
je

c
t 

te
a
m

. 
A

 s
e

ri
e

s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

s
h

o
p

s
 w

e
re

 h
e

ld
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

th
e
 C

o
n
v
e

rg
e

n
c
e

 a
re

a
 i
n

v
o

lv
in

g
 L

S
N

 E
S

F
 T

e
a

m
, 
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

O
ff

ic
ia

ls
, 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 C
o

m
m

u
n
it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

C
o

o
rd

in
a

to
rs

 (
C

F
C

),
 

lo
c
a

l 
C

F
C

s
, 

L
S

B
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 t
e

a
m

s
 a

n
d

 S
p

e
c
ia

l 
E

u
ro

p
e
a

n
 T

e
a

m
 

A
d

v
is

o
rs

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

a
re

a
. 

T
h

u
s
 b

ri
n

g
in

g
 t

o
g
e

th
e

r 
L

S
B

s
 a

n
d

 
C

F
C

s
 i
n

 a
 c

o
m

m
o

n
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

 a
n

d
 h

e
lp

in
g

 t
o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
 l
in

k
s
 a

n
d

 i
n

p
u

t 
to

 t
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
. 

T
h

e
 E

S
F

 p
ro

je
c
t 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

e
n

t 
to

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 s

e
tt

in
g

 o
u

t 
h

o
w

 t
o
 

a
p
p

ly
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
y
 w

ill
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

. 
A

 n
u

m
b
e

r 
o

f 
p

ro
je

c
ts

 

Page 38



(
4
3
!B
!

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 a

re
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ip
e

lin
e

 t
h

a
t 

w
ill

 a
llo

w
 t

h
e

m
 t

o
 t
a

k
e

 u
p

 t
h

e
 

o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 s

e
c
u

re
 E

S
F

 f
u

n
d

in
g

.

N
E

E
T

S
 –

P
a

th
w

a
y
s
 t

o
 W

o
rk

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

fu
n

d
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 f
o

r 
a

n
 I

n
te

rm
e

d
ia

te
 

L
a
b

o
u

r 
M

a
rk

e
t 

P
ilo

t 
P

ro
je

c
t 

ta
rg

e
ti
n

g
 1

6
/1

7
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 
w

h
o

 a
re

 N
o

t 
in

 E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
, 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

o
r 

T
ra

in
in

g
 (

N
E

E
T

S
).

T
h

e
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
, 

w
h

ic
h

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 W

e
ls

h
 A

s
s
e

m
b

ly
 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t’
s
 Y

o
u
th

 E
n

g
a

g
e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
, 

w
ill

 
o

ff
e

r 
1

8
0
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n
t 

o
p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

a
re

a
s
 i
n

 
N

o
rt

h
 W

a
le

s
, 

W
e

s
t 
W

a
le

s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 H
e

a
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 V

a
lle

y
s
, 

fo
r 

a
 s

ix
 

m
o
n

th
 p

e
ri

o
d

.

T
h

e
 I

n
te

rm
e

d
ia

te
 L

a
b

o
u
r 

M
a
rk

e
t 
p

ilo
t 

w
ill

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

w
it
h

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 

th
a
t 

a
re

 a
b

le
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 d
e
v
e

lo
p
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p
le

 w
h

o
 a

re
 N

E
E

T
 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e

 g
e

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

a
l 
a

n
d

 t
a

rg
e

t 
g
ro

u
p

 a
re

a
s
 l
is

te
d

 b
e

lo
w

,
a

n
d
 t

o
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

h
e

m
 i
n

to
 u

n
s
u

b
s
id

is
e

d
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n
t 

o
r 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n

T
w

o
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 A

re
a

 P
ro

je
c
ts

O
ff

ic
ia

ls
 i
n

 t
h
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

U
n

it
 u

n
d

e
rt

o
o

k
 c

lo
s
e

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 
c
o

lle
a

g
u

e
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 D
e

p
a
rt

m
e

n
t 
fo

r 
E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t,
 S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 o

n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 t
h
a

t 
u

s
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 m

a
tc

h
 f
u

n
d

 S
R

A
 m

o
n

ie
s
. 

T
h

e
 t

w
o

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 f
u

n
d

e
d

 u
n

d
e
r 

th
e

 W
e

s
te

rn
 V

a
lle

y
s
 S

R
A

 a
n

d
 a

re
 a

s
 

fo
llo

w
s
:

-
T

h
e
 “

G
e

t 
it
 O

n
” 

P
ro

je
c
t 

w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 1

5
s
ta

te
 o

f 
a

rt
 I

T
 C

e
n

tr
e

s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

 a
re

a
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 S
R

A
.

-
T

h
e
 “

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 V

a
lle

y
s
” 

p
ro

je
c
t 

w
ill

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
ra

in
in

g
 y

o
u
n

g
 

p
e
o

p
le

 i
n

 e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 s
k
ill

s
 w

h
ils

t 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
in

g
 t
h

e
ir
 o

w
n

 c
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
.

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

L
in

k
s
 w

it
h

 F
a

m
ili

e
s
 F

ir
s
t 

a
n

d
In

te
g

ra
te

d
 F

a
m

ily
 

Page 39



(
4
3
!B
!

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 f

u
n

d
e
d

p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
b

o
v
e

, 
w

o
rk

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 t

o
b

ri
n
g

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
s
e

 t
w

o
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 

c
lo

s
e

r 
to

g
e

th
e

r
in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 m

a
x
im

is
e

 t
h

e
 b

e
n
e

fi
t 

fo
r 

p
e

o
p
le

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

m
o
s
t 

d
e

p
ri
v
e

d
 a

re
a
s
. 

F
o

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
, 
a

 p
a

p
e
r 

w
a

s
 p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

C
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

’s
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
S

u
b
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
 t

h
e

 l
in

k
s
 

b
e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 a

n
d
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
y
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
-

o
n
g

o
in

g
 d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 a

re
 t

a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e

.

F
o

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
, 
c
lo

s
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e

s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 l
in

k
s

w
it
h

 t
h
e

F
a

m
ili

e
s
 

F
ir
s
t

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

H
e

re
 t

h
e

 a
p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

F
a

m
ili

e
s
 F

ir
s
t 

P
io

n
e
e

r 
a

re
a

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

O
ff

ic
ia

ls
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 

th
a
t 

th
e
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

 l
in

k
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d

e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
.

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 s

ti
ll 

ta
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e

 w
it
h

 v
a

ri
o

u
s
 p

o
lic

y
 a

re
a

s
 

to
 l
o

o
k
 a

t 
h

o
w

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 l
in

k
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 t
o

 t
a

rg
e

t 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

t 
o

u
r 

m
o
s
t 

d
e

p
ri
v
e

d
 a

re
a

s
. 

T
h

is
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h

 H
e

a
lt
h

,
C

lim
a
te

 
C

h
a

n
g

e
,

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d

S
p

o
rt

s
 &

H
e

ri
ta

g
e
.

A
c
ti
o

n
 C

o
m

p
le

te
a

n
d

 w
o
rk

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e
s
 t

o
d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 a

b
o

v
e

 p
ro

je
c
ts

. 
U

p
d

a
te

 J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
2
.

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 l
o

n
g

e
r 

a
 s

e
p

a
ra

te
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 F

u
n

d
, 

b
u

t 
it
s
 p

ri
n

c
ip

le
s
 

h
a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 m
a

in
s
tr

e
a

m
e
d

 a
n

d
th

e
 a

b
o
v
e

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 w
ill

 b
e

 
in

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 i
n

to
 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 
 T

h
e

 L
S

B
 E

S
F

 p
ro

je
c
t 

re
m

a
in

s
 a

n
d

 i
s

s
e

p
a

ra
te

ly
 f

u
n
d

e
d
, 

w
it
h

 f
u

n
d

in
g

  
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 
th

e
 n

e
w

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
F

ir
s
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
fo

r 
th

e
 r

e
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 l
if
e

ti
m

e
 o

f
c
o

n
v
e

rg
e

n
c
e

. 

h
F!
"
!6
$
5!
4
:!
<
*)
:5
!4
1
53
4
7
$
!,
#
<
,3
)
54
*6
!M
,--
!2
$
!<
$
N
$
-4
H
$
<
!5
4
!6
/
4
M
!5
/
$
!

3
4
#
5*
,2
1
5,
4
#
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
3
)
#
!7
)
E
$
!5
4
!,
7
H
*4
N
,#
A
!4
1
53
4
7
$
6
!:
4
*!

-4
3
)
-!
H
$
4
H
-$
F!
D
/
,6
!M
4
*E
!M
,--
!2
$
!H
,-4
5$
<
!,
#
!)
!-
4
3
)
-!
)
1
5/
4
*,
59
!)
*$
)
!)
6
!H
)
*5
!

4
:!
5/
,6
!9
$
)
*X
6
!M
4
*E
!H
-)
#
#
,#
A
!H
*4
3
$
6
6
F!
!

! U
p

d
a
te

: 
O

n
g

o
in

g
.

In
it
ia

lly
, 

a
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 w

it
h

 O
v
e

r 
A

rc
h

in
g

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

C
o

-
o

rd
in

a
to

rs
 w

a
s
 h

e
ld

a
t 

th
e
 e

n
d

 o
f 
la

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

to
 g

e
t 

th
e

ir
 v

ie
w

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

Page 40



(
4
3
!B
!

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 a

n
d

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 w

e
re

 t
h

e
n

 h
e

ld
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

A
s
s
e

m
b

ly
 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
p
o

lic
y
 a

re
a

s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 g

a
th

e
re

d
 w

ill
 

b
e
 u

s
e

fu
l 
in

 a
s
s
e

s
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 k

e
y
 

A
s
s
e

m
b

ly
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
P

o
lic

ie
s
.

A
 D

ra
ft
 s

e
t 
o

f 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 a

re
 n

o
w

 b
e
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

. 
W

e
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g

 
w

it
h

 a
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 p
ilo

t 
a

re
a
 (

T
o

rf
a

e
n

) 
to

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
 a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 

fr
a

m
e

w
o

rk
 f

o
r 

th
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 o

f 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

d
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

im
p
ro

v
e

d
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
. 
W

e
 w

ill
 

b
e

te
s
ti
n

g
 t

h
is

in
 t
h

e
 n

e
x
t 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

(2
0
1

1
/1

2
).

 T
h

e
 a

im
 i
s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 w

ill
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 c

le
a
r 

a
n

d
 m

e
a
s
u

ra
b

le
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
, 

lin
k
e

d
 t
o

 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
, 

a
n
d

 d
e

m
o
n

s
tr

a
te

 t
h

e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o

n
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 a

g
re

e
d

 o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 w

it
h

 k
e

y
 l
o

c
a

l 
s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e
rs

. 
T

h
e
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 a
d
o

p
te

d
 i
s
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 R

e
s
u

lt
s
 B

a
s
e

d
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ta
b
ili

ty
 

w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 a

 m
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g

y
 b

e
in

g
 m

o
re

 w
id

e
ly

 u
s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 W
e

ls
h

 p
u

b
lic

 
s
e

c
to

r.
 

T
h

e
re

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 d
e

la
y
 o

n
 t

h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
th

e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 d

u
e

 t
o

 
th

e
 n

e
e
d

 t
o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

y
 a

re
 a

p
p

ro
p
ri

a
te

 t
o

 a
n

y
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
o

r
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 t

o
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t,

 p
o

s
t 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1

2
. 

A
s
 s

ta
te

d
 

a
b
o

v
e

, 
th

e
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

ilo
te

d
 i
n

 2
0

1
1
/1

2
.

U
p

d
a

te
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

2
A

c
ti
o

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

A
 s

e
t 
o

f 
p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
, 

b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 R

e
s
u

lt
s
 B

a
s
e

d
 

A
c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

ili
ty

 m
e
th

o
d

, 
h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e

e
n

 p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 

F
ir
s
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

T
h

e
s
e

 w
e

re
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 i
n

 D
e

c
e

m
b
e

r 
2

0
1

1
 a

n
d

 a
re

 
n

o
w

 b
e

in
g
 u

s
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 f

o
r 

n
e

w
 C

lu
s
te

r 
A

re
a
s
, 

u
n

d
e

rp
in

n
in

g
a

n
a

ly
s
is

 o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
n

e
e

d
 a

n
d
 d

ri
v
e

rs
 f

o
r 

d
e
p

ri
v
a

ti
o

n
. 
T

h
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n
it
ie

s
F

ir
s
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 l
in

k
 

c
lo

s
e

ly
 t

o
 t

h
e

 k
e

y
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
fo

r 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t.
! f
F!
"
6
!H
)
*5
!4
:!
5/
$
!4
1
53
4
7
$
!,
#
<
,3
)
54
*6
!M
4
*E
C!
4
::
,3
,)
-6
!M
,--
!M
4
*E
!M
,5
/
!

3
4
--$
)
A
1
$
6
!,
#
!5
/
$
!R
5)
5,
6
5,
3
)
-!
d
#
,5
!5
4
!H
*4
N
,<
$
!,
#
<
,3
)
54
*6
!)
5!

.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
)
*$
)
!-
$
N
$
-!
3
4
7
H
)
*$
<
!5
4
!)
--!
;
)
-$
6
F!
!

Page 41



(
4
3
!B
!

! U
p

d
a
te

: 
A

c
ti

o
n

 C
o

m
p

le
te

d
.

T
h

e
 A

s
s
e

m
b

ly
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t’
s
 S

ta
ti
s
ti
c
a

l 
U

n
it
 w

ill
 s

h
o

rt
ly

 b
e
 

p
u
b

lis
h

in
g
, 

o
n
 –

lin
e

, 
 t

h
e
 d

a
ta

 f
ro

m
 W

e
ls

h
 I
n

d
e

x
 o

f 
M

u
lt
ip

le
 

D
e

p
ri
v
a

ti
o

n
 (

W
IM

D
2

0
0
8

).
 T

h
is

 d
a
ta

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
g

g
re

g
a

te
d

 t
o

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

a
re

a
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

a
ra

b
le

 w
it
h

 L
o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
, 

W
a

le
s
 a

n
d

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 A

re
a
 l
e

v
e

l
s
e

ts
 o

f 
d

a
ta

. 
T

h
is

 
a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n

 d
e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
v
e

r 
th

e
 c

o
m

in
g

 y
e

a
r 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

m
a
p

p
in

g
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

to
o

ls
. 

A
s
 w

it
h

 a
c
ti
o

n
 5

 a
b
o

v
e

, 
th

is
 w

ill
 l
in

k
 t

o
 t
h

e
 

w
o

rk
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 o

n
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 p

o
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2

.
T

h
e
 

in
d

ic
a

to
r 

d
a
ta

 p
u

b
lic

a
ti
o

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 a

n
n
u

a
lly

.

U
p

d
a

te
J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

2
A

s
e

t 
o

f 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 f

o
r 

th
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 .

 
T

h
e

 W
e

ls
h

 G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

S
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a

l 
U

n
it
 h

a
v
e

c
a

lc
u

la
te

d
 t

h
e
s
e

 f
o
r 

a
ll 

th
e

p
ro

p
o
s
e

d
 n

e
w

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
F

ir
s
t 

c
lu

s
te

rs
a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 t
h

e
m

 t
o

le
a

d
 b

o
d

ie
s
 f

o
r 

e
a

c
h

 a
re

a
.

T
h

e
y
 m

u
s
t 

b
e
 u

s
e

d
 a

s
 t

h
e
 b

a
s
is

 f
o
r 

e
a

c
h

 
a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

fu
tu

re
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

.
! [
F!
;
$
!M
,--
!*
$
H
4
*5
!4
#
!5
/
$
!:
,#
<
,#
A
6
!4
:!
.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
_
N
)
-1
)
5,
4
#
6
!

5/
)
5!
A
$
5!
1
#
<
$
*M
)
9
!6
/
4
*5
-9
C!
,#
!H
)
*5
,3
1
-)
*!
5/
$
!b
U
1
53
4
7
$
6
!_
N
)
-1
)
5,
4
#
c!

M
/
,3
/
!M
,--
!3
4
#
6
,<
$
*!
M
/
)
5!
5/
$
!H
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
!,
6
!)
3
/
,$
N
,#
A
!

!! U
p

d
a
te

: 
O

n
g

o
in

g
.

B
o

th
 t

h
e

 “
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
” 

a
n

d
 “

P
ro

c
e

s
s
” 

e
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 u
n

d
e
rw

a
y
. 

O
ff

ic
ia

ls
 a

re
 h

o
ld

in
g
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
p

ro
g
re

s
s
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 E
v
a

lu
a

to
rs

 
a

n
d

 a
 f
in

a
l 
re

p
o

rt
 i
s
 d

u
e
 i
n

 M
a
y
 2

0
1

1
. 

T
h

e
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 o

f 
th

is
 w

o
rk

 w
ill

 
fe

e
d

 i
n

to
 t
h

e
 f
u

tu
re

 o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 p

o
s
t 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

2
. 

U
p

d
a

te
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

2
A

c
ti

o
n

  
C

o
m

p
le

te
d

B
o

th
 t

h
e

 ‘
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
’ 
a

n
d

 ‘
P

ro
c
e

s
s
’ 
e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

w
 b

e
e

n
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 a

n
d

w
e

re
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 i
n

 A
u

g
u
s
t 

2
0

1
1

. 
 T

h
e

 f
in

d
in

g
s
 

in
fo

rm
e
d

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 t
a

k
e

n
 i
n

 
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
1
, 

a
re

 n
o

w
 b

e
e
n

 f
e

d
 i
n

to
 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
th

e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

Page 42



(
4
3
!B
!

2
W!
!@
5
"
$D
:
:
"
9
1
62
$;
)
C
"
&*
9
"
*
.$

:
5
)
4
6#
$0
*
-
&"
'
:
"
$.
5
"
$"
9
?
5
'
:
0:
=$
0*
$

'
66
$7
4
.4
&"
$:
.&
'
."
(
0-
$(
4
0#
'
*
-
"
$.
)
$

:
"
&C
0-
"
$?
&)
C
0#
"
&:
=$
.5
'
.$
0*
$?
6'
*
*
0*
(
$

'
*
#
$#
"
60
C
"
&0
*
(
$:
"
&C
0-
"
:
$.
5
"
2
$*
"
"
#
$

.)
$?
&0
)
&0
.0
:
"
$K
)
9
9
4
*
0.
0"
:
$P
0&
:
.$

'
&"
'
:
U$
$B
5
"
&"
$'
?
?
&)
?
&0
'
."
=$
0*
$

9
)
*
0.
)
&0
*
(
$.
5
"
$?
"
&7
)
&9
'
*
-
"
$)
7$

0*
#
0C
0#
4
'
6$
:
"
&C
0-
"
:
=$
.5
"
$D
:
:
"
9
1
62
$

;
)
C
"
&*
9
"
*
.$
:
5
)
4
6#
$0
*
-
&"
'
:
"
$.
5
"
$

7)
-
4
:
$)
*
$.
5
"
$"
Q
."
*
.$
.)
$T
5
0-
5
$

:
"
&C
0-
"
:
$'
&"
$&
"
#
4
-
0*
(
$.
5
"
$(
'
?
$

1
"
.T
"
"
*
$)
4
.-
)
9
"
:
$7
)
&$

K
)
9
9
4
*
0.
0"
:
$P
0&
:
.$
'
&"
'
:
$'
*
#
$7
)
&$

.5
"
$&
"
:
.$
)
7$
.5
"
$-
)
4
*
.&
2
U$

D
/
$
!7
)
,#
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
L
1
,<
)
#
3
$
!,
6
!3
1
**
$
#
5-
9
!2
$
,#
A
!

*$
N
,6
$
<
C!
)
#
<
!5
/
$
!,
6
6
1
$
!4
:!
5)
*A
$
5,
#
A
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
)
*$
)
6
!

)
#
<
!M
4
*E
,#
A
!M
,5
/
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
H
)
*5
#
$
*6
/
,H
6
!M
,--
!2
$
!

*$
,#
:4
*3
$
<
F!
!D
/
$
!5
)
*A
$
5!
<
)
5$
!:
4
*!
)
!:
1
--!
*$
N
,6
,4
#
!4
:!
5/
$
!

L
1
,<
)
#
3
$
!,
6
!5
/
$
!$
#
<
!4
:!
B
@
&
@
C!
M
,5
/
!5
/
$
!7
4
6
5!
1
*A
$
#
5!
!$
-$
7
$
#
56
!

2
$
,#
A
!*
$
N
,6
$
<
!2
9
!"
1
A
1
6
5F
!D
/
$
!"
6
6
$
7
2
-9
!L
4
N
$
*#
7
$
#
5!

)
-*
$
)
<
9
!$
#
6
1
*$
6
!5
/
)
5!
)
H
H
*4
H
*,
)
5$
!*
$
:$
*$
#
3
$
6
!)
*$
!7
)
<
$
!5
4
!

.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
,#
!M
,<
$
*!
H
4
-,3
,$
6
C!
H
-)
#
6
!)
#
<
!A
1
,<
)
#
3
$
F!

D
/
,6
!M
,--
!2
$
!*
$
,#
:4
*3
$
<
!5
/
*4
1
A
/
!5
/
$
!0
4
-,3
9
!L
)
5$
M
)
9
!H
*4
3
$
6
6
!

M
/
,3
/
!/
)
6
!)
-*
$
)
<
9
!2
$
$
#
!6
5*
$
#
A
5/
$
#
$
<
!5
4
!*
$
I
1
,*
$
!$
%
H
-,3
,5
!

3
4
#
6
,<
$
*)
5,
4
#
!4
:!
.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
)
6
!#
$
M
!H
4
-,3
,$
6
!)
*$
!

<
$
N
$
-4
H
$
<
F!
!

D
/
$
!"
6
6
$
7
2
-9
!L
4
N
$
*#
7
$
#
5!
M
,--
!$
%
H
-4
*$
!5
/
$
!2
$
6
5!
7
$
)
#
6
!4
:!

<
*)
M
,#
A
!5
/
$
!)
55
$
#
5,
4
#
!4
:!
-4
3
)
-!
)
1
5/
4
*,
5,
$
6
!5
4
!5
/
$
!#
$
$
<
!5
4
!

H
*,
4
*,
5,
6
$
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
)
*$
)
6
!,
#
!5
/
$
!H
-)
#
#
,#
A
!)
#
<
!

<
$
-,N
$
*9
!4
:!
5/
$
,*
!6
$
*N
,3
$
6
F!
!!
;
$
!M
,--
!)
-6
4
!-
4
4
E
!5
4
!*
$
,#
:4
*3
$
!5
/
$
!

H
4
5$
#
5,
)
-!
:4
*!
-4
3
)
-!
)
1
5/
4
*,
5,
$
6
!)
#
<
!4
5/
$
*!
6
$
*N
,3
$
!H
*4
N
,<
$
*6
!5
4
!

M
4
*E
!3
-4
6
$
-9
!M
,5
/
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
0
)
*5
#
$
*6
/
,H
6
!5
/
*4
1
A
/
!

5/
$
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
U
1
53
4
7
$
6
!>
1
#
<
F!
D
/
$
!>
1
#
<
!,
6
!)
!E
$
9
!

54
4
-!
M
/
,3
/
!/
)
6
!)
-*
$
)
<
9
!6
1
2
6
5)
#
5,
)
--9
!,
7
H
*4
N
$
<
!5
/
$
!$
%
5$
#
5!
54
!

M
/
,3
/
!-
4
3
)
-!
)
1
5/
4
*,
5,
$
6
!)
#
<
!4
5/
$
*!
)
A
$
#
3
,$
6
!)
*$
!$
#
A
)
A
,#
A
!M
,5
/
!

5/
$
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
H
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
F!
!!

0
,-4
5!
M
4
*E
!M
,--
!2
$
!3
4
7
7
,6
6
,4
#
$
<
!5
/
*4
1
A
/
!5
/
$
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!

>
,*
6
5!
D
*)
,#
,#
A
!R
$
*N
,3
$
!)
#
<
!5
/
$
!;
$
-6
/
!`
4
3
)
-!
L
4
N
$
*#
7
$
#
5!

"
6
6
4
3
,)
5,
4
#
!5
4
!$
#
A
)
A
$
!<
,*
$
3
5-
9
!M
,5
/
!$
-$
3
5$
<
!7
$
7
2
$
*6
!)
#
<
!

6
$
*N
,3
$
!7
)
#
)
A
$
*6
!,
#
!-
4
3
)
-!
)
1
5/
4
*,
5,
$
6
!4
#
!5
/
$
!,
6
6
1
$
6
!

/
,A
/
-,A
/
5$
<
!,
#
!5
/
,6
!*
$
3
4
7
7
$
#
<
)
5,
4
#
F!
!d
6
,#
A
!7
4
<
$
-6
!6
1
3
/
!)
6
!

! Y
F!
D
/
$
!+
,#
,6
5$
*!
:4
*!
R
4
3
,)
-!
^
1
6
5,
3
$
!)
#
<
!`
4
3
)
-!
L
4
N
$
*#
7
$
#
5!
M
,--
!M
*,
5$
!5
4
!

)
--!
`
4
3
)
-!
"
1
5/
4
*,
5,
$
6
!)
#
<
!4
5/
$
*!
H
1
2
-,3
!6
$
*N
,3
$
!<
$
-,N
$
*$
*6
!*
$
I
1
$
6
5,
#
A
!

5/
$
7
!5
4
!6
/
4
M
!/
4
M
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
M
,--
!2
$
!A
,N
$
#
!H
*,
4
*,
59
!,
#
!5
/
$
,*
!

)
*$
)
6
F !

! U
p

d
a
te

: 
A

c
ti

o
n

 C
o

m
p

le
te

d
.

T
h

e
 M

in
is

te
r 

w
ro

te
 a

ll 
A

s
s
e

m
b

ly
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
S

p
o
n

s
o

re
d
 B

o
d

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

K
e

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
ro

v
id

e
rs

 o
n

 t
h

e
 2

9
th

J
u

ly
2

0
1

0
.

! ?
F!
"
#
!1
H
<
)
5$
<
!6
1
7
7
)
*9
!N
$
*6
,4
#
!4
:!
5/
$
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
L
1
,<
)
#
3
$
!

M
,--
!2
$
!H
*4
<
1
3
$
<
!5
/
,6
!R
1
7
7
$
*F
!G
5!
M
,--
!,
#
3
4
*H
4
*)
5$
!5
/
$
!7
4
6
5!
1
*A
$
#
5!

*$
N
,6
,4
#
6
!4
:!
5/
$
!L
1
,<
)
#
3
$
C!
/
,A
/
-,A
/
5!
5/
$
!E
$
9
!,
6
6
1
$
6
!*
$
-)
5,
#
A
!5
4
!5
/
$
!

H
* 4
A
*)
7
7
$
C!
)
#
<
!,
#
3
-1
<
$
!)
#
!$
7
H
/
)
6
,6
!4
#
!5
/
$
!3
4
#
5,
#
1
$
<
!#
$
$
<
!5
4
!

H
*,
4
*,
5,
6
$
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
)
*$
)
6
F!
!

! U
p

d
a
te

: 
A

c
ti

o
n

 C
o

m
p

le
te

d
T

h
e
 S

u
p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 G
u

id
a
n

c
e

 w
a
s
 f

in
a
lis

e
d
 i
n

 d
ra

ft
 i
n

 A
u

g
u

s
t 

b
e

fo
re

 
b

e
in

g
 d

is
tr

ib
u

te
d

 t
o

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 i
n

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1
0

. 
In

te
ri

m
 G

u
id

a
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 n

e
w

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
w

a
s
 

is
s
u

e
d

w
it
h

 a
p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
rm

s
D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
1

 a
n
d

fu
rt

h
e
r 

g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 
w

a
s
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 q

u
e
ri

e
s
 f

ro
m

 a
p
p

lic
a

n
ts

. 
 S

u
b

s
ta

n
ti
v
e

g
u
id

a
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 n

e
w

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

ill
b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

s
h

o
rt

ly
.

U
p

d
a

te
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

2
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

! &
@
F!
"
6
!<
$
5)
,-$
<
!,
#
!)
3
5,
4
#
6
!h
!)
#
<
!f
!)
2
4
N
$
C!
M
4
*E
!M
,--
!2
$
!1
#
<
$
*5
)
E
$
#
!4
#
!

<
$
N
$
-4
H
,#
A
!)
!6
$
5!
4
:!
<
*)
:5
!4
1
53
4
7
$
!,
#
<
,3
)
54
*6
!)
#
<
!)
-6
4
!H
*4
N
,<
,#
A
!

,#
:4
*7
)
5,
4
#
!)
5!
.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
)
*$
)
!-
$
N
$
-F
!D
/
,6
!M
,--
!,
#
:4
*7
!5
/
$
!

$
%
5$
#
5!
54
!M
/
,3
/
!6
$
*N
,3
$
6
!)
*$
!*
$
<
1
3
,#
A
!5
/
$
!A
)
H
!2
$
5M
$
$
#
!.
>
!)
*$
)
6
!

)
#
<
!5
/
$
!*
$
6
5!
4
:!
5/
$
!3
4
1
#
5*
9
F!
"
6
!5
/
$
!:
1
51
*$
!4
:!
5/
$
!H
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
!M
,--
!2
$
!

3
4
#
6
,<
$
*$
<
!4
N
$
*!
5/
$
!3
4
7
,#
A
!9
$
)
*C
!5
/
,6
!M
4
*E
!M
,--
!2
$
!H
,-4
5$
<
!,
#
!)
!-
4
3
)
-!

)
1
5/
4
*,
59
!)
*$
)
!)
6
!H
)
*5
!4
:!
5/
,6
!9
$
)
*X
6
!M
4
*E
!H
-)
#
#
,#
A
!H
*4
3
$
6
6
F!
!

Page 43



(
4
3
!B
!

5/
$
!R
4
3
,)
-!
G#
3
-1
6
,4
#
!`
$
)
*#
,#
A
!0
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
!V
R
G`
0
WC
!5
*)
,#
,#
A
!

)
#
<
!6
1
H
H
4
*5
!M
,--
!2
$
!H
*4
N
,<
$
<
!5
4
!$
#
3
4
1
*)
A
$
!3
-4
6
$
*!
M
4
*E
,#
A
!

M
,5
/
!3
4
7
7
1
#
,5
9
!H
)
*5
#
$
*6
/
,H
6
!)
#
<
!*
$
6
,<
$
#
56
F!
!!

D
/
$
!$
%
5$
*#
)
-!
$
N
)
-1
)
5,
4
#
!4
:!
5/
$
!H
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
!M
,--
!3
4
#
6
,<
$
*!
5/
$
!

$
%
5$
#
5!
54
!M
/
,3
/
!6
$
*N
,3
$
!H
*4
N
,<
$
*6
!)
*$
!)
<
<
*$
6
6
,#
A
!,
7
H
*4
N
$
<
!

4
1
53
4
7
$
6
!,
#
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
)
*$
)
6
F!
!

;
4
*E
!,
6
!)
-6
4
!1
#
<
$
*M
)
9
!5
4
!<
$
N
$
-4
H
!)
!6
7
)
--!
6
$
5!
4
:!
,#
<
,3
)
54
*6
!

M
/
,3
/
!M
4
1
-<
!2
$
!)
H
H
*4
H
*,
)
5$
!:
4
*!
5/
$
!H
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
F!
!!
G#
!5
/
$
!:
,*
6
5!

,#
6
5)
#
3
$
C!
$
%
,6
5,
#
A
!7
4
<
$
-6
!M
/
,3
/
!/
)
N
$
!2
$
$
#
!<
$
N
$
-4
H
$
<
!,
#
!

6
4
7
$
!-
4
3
)
-!
)
1
5/
4
*,
59
!)
*$
)
6
!)
*$
!2
$
,#
A
!3
4
#
6
,<
$
*$
<
!)
6
!5
/
$
!

H
4
6
6
,2
-$
!2
)
6
,6
!:
4
*!
)
!#
)
5,
4
#
)
-!
:*
)
7
$
M
4
*E
F!
;
$
!M
,--
!-
4
4
E
!,
#
54
!

M
/
$
5/
$
*!
)
#
!,
#
<
,3
)
54
*!
4
#
!b
*$
<
1
3
,#
A
!5
/
$
!A
)
H
c!
3
)
#
!2
$
!

<
$
N
$
-4
H
$
<
!)
6
!)
!E
$
9
!7
$
)
6
1
*$
!4
:!
6
1
3
3
$
6
6
!:
4
*!
6
$
*N
,3
$
6
!)
#
<
!

H
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
6
F !
!!

!

! U
p

d
a

te
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

2
A

c
ti

o
n

 C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

P
le

a
s
e

 s
e

e
 t

h
e

 u
p

d
a
te

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

a
c
ti
o

n
s
 5

 a
n

d
 6

!

3
W!
@
5
"
$D
:
:
"
9
1
62
$;
)
C
"
&*
9
"
*
.$

:
5
)
4
6#
$T
)
&S
$T
0.
5
$0
*
#
0C
0#
4
'
6$
D
;
/
<
:
$

.)
$'
(
&"
"
$.
5
"
0&
$-
)
*
.&
01
4
.0
)
*
$.
)
$.
5
"
$

?
&)
(
&'
9
9
"
=$
&"
6'
.0
C
"
$.
)
$.
5
"
0&
$

?
)
."
*
.0
'
6$
.)
$-
)
*
.&
01
4
."
$.
)
$.
5
"
$

?
&)
(
&'
9
9
"
O:
$)
1
,"
-
.0
C
"
:
=$
'
*
#
$

:
4
1
:
"
V
4
"
*
.6
2
$9
)
*
0.
)
&$
?
"
&7
)
&9
'
*
-
"
$

'
(
'
0*
:
.$
T
5
'
.$
5
'
:
$1
"
"
*
$'
(
&"
"
#
U$

! ;
$
!M
,--
!$
#
6
1
*$
!5
/
)
5!
5/
$
!*
4
-$
!4
:!
"
L
R
=
6
!,
#
!*
$
-)
5,
4
#
!5
4
!

.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
,6
!*
$
:-
$
3
5$
<
!,
#
!5
/
$
,*
!*
$
7
,5
!-
$
55
$
*6
!)
#
<
!

4
H
$
*)
5,
4
#
)
-!
H
-)
#
6
F!
(
,6
3
1
6
6
,4
#
6
!M
,--
!5
)
E
$
!H
-)
3
$
!5
/
,6
!3
)
-$
#
<
)
*!

9
$
)
*!
M
,5
/
!5
/
$
!*
$
-$
N
)
#
5!
6
H
4
#
6
4
*!
<
,N
,6
,4
#
6
!5
4
!$
#
6
1
*$
!5
/
)
5!
5/
$
!

)
H
H
*4
H
*,
)
5$
!7
4
#
,5
4
*,
#
A
!5
)
E
$
6
!H
-)
3
$
F!
!!

! &
&
F!
U
::
,3
,)
-6
!M
,--
!M
4
*E
!M
,5
/
!)
--!
"
L
R
=
6
!V
)
#
<
!5
/
$
,*
!)
H
H
*4
H
*,
)
5$
!R
H
4
#
6
4
*!

(
,N
,6
,4
#
6
W!
54
!)
A
*$
$
!5
/
$
,*
!3
4
#
5*
,2
1
5,
4
#
!5
4
!5
/
$
!H
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
F!
D
/
,6
!M
,--
!2
$
!

3
4
7
H
-$
5$
<
!2
9
!5
/
$
!$
#
<
!4
:!
5/
$
!:
,#
)
#
3
,)
-!
9
$
)
*F
!G
#
!6
4
7
$
!,
#
6
5)
#
3
$
6
C!
,5
!M
,--
!

-,#
E
!5
4
!M
4
*E
!5
)
E
$
#
!:
4
*M
)
*<
!1
#
<
$
*!
)
3
5,
4
#
!e
F !

! U
p

d
a
te

: 
A

c
ti

o
n

 C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 (

a
n

d
 o

n
g

o
in

g
w

it
h

 s
o

m
e

 W
e

ls
h

 
G

o
v

e
rn

m
e

n
t 

S
p

o
n

s
o

re
d

 B
o

d
ie

s
)

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
2

A
c
ti
o

n
C

o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
n

d
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 w

it
h

 s
o

m
e
 W

G
S

B
’s

O
ff
ic

ia
ls

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

  
w

o
rk

 w
it
h

  
W

G
S

B
’s

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
ir
 a

p
p

ro
p
ri
a

te
S

p
o

n
s
o

r 
D

iv
is

io
n
s
 

a
.
A

rt
s
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

o
f 

W
a

le
s
 

Page 44



(
4
3
!B
!

F
o

llo
w

in
g

d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 i
n

 S
e

p
t 
2

0
1

0
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 W
A

G
 S

p
o

n
s
o

r 
D

iv
is

io
n

,
a

c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
w

a
s
 g

iv
e

n
 t

o
 p

ro
d

u
c
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
u

b
lic

is
in

g
 g

o
o

d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
, 

jo
in

t 
w

o
rk

 o
n

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

a
n

 o
p

p
o
rt

u
n

it
y
 

to
 f
e

e
d
 i
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
fu

tu
re

 A
C

W
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
, 

w
it
h

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
 

w
o

rk
 o

n
 a

n
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 F

u
n

d
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
-

th
is

 i
s
 o

n
g
o

in
g

.

A
 r

e
p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 f
ro

m
 A

C
W

 s
a

t 
o

n
 t

h
e
 E

x
p

e
rt

 P
a

n
e

l 
fo

r 
th

e
A

n
n

u
a

l 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

C
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
 1

4
/1

5
 O

c
to

b
e

r.
 I

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
, 

th
e

 
H

e
a

d
 o

f 
th

e
 A

s
s
e

m
b

ly
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t’
s
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

U
n

it
 g

a
v
e

 a
 

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h
e

 A
rt

s
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 B

o
a
rd

 i
n

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
1
. 

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
it
s
 I

n
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
R

e
v
ie

w
, 

A
C

W
 a

re
 l
o

o
k
in

g
 t
o

 b
ri
n
g

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 a

 
n

e
w

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

C
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

 (
C

Y
P

).
 I

n
 t

h
e

 2
0
1

1
-1

2
R

e
m

it
 l
e

tt
e

r 
th

e
 H

e
ri
ta

g
e

 M
in

is
te

r 
e

x
p

re
s
s
e

s
 c

o
n
c
e

rn
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
re

 
s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 e

x
c
it
in

g
, 

h
ig

h
 q

u
a

lit
y
 a

n
d

 c
h

a
lle

n
g

in
g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

C
Y

P
 t

o
 e

x
p

e
ri

e
n
c
e

, 
c
re

a
te

 a
n
d

 t
a

k
e

 p
a

rt
 i
n

 a
rt

is
ti
c
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
. 

A
C

W
 a

re
 

to
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 t

h
e

 q
u
e

s
ti
o

n
 o

f 
g

e
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
a

l 
a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

M
in

is
te

r 
o

n
 t
h

is
.

U
p

d
a

te
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

2
O

ff
ic

ia
ls

 h
a
v
e

 m
e
t 

w
it
h

 A
C

W
 t

o
 d

is
c
u

s
s
 c

h
a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 C
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 

F
ir
s
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 m
o
v
e

s
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 a

n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 b

a
s
e

d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h

.

b
.
E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
A

g
e
n

c
y
 W

a
le

s
A

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 t

o
o
k
 p

la
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
A

g
e
n

c
y
 W

a
le

s
in

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
0

. 
A

c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
w

a
s
 g

iv
e

n
 t

o
 p

ro
d

u
c
in

g
 a

n
d

 
p

u
b

lic
is

in
g
 g

o
o

d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
, 

a
n

 o
p

p
o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 f

e
e

d
 i
n

 t
o
 t

h
e
 

d
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
 w

o
rk

 o
n
 a

n
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 F

u
n

d
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
. 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 t

h
e

 j
o

in
t 

p
u
b

lic
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 E

c
o

-G
u

id
a

n
c
e

 T
ra

in
in

g
 p

a
c
k
s
 f

o
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 

F
ir
s
t 

o
f 

w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

A
g

e
n

c
y
 w

e
re

 a
 p

a
rt

 o
f.
 

A
 r

e
fe

re
n

c
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 f

o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 E

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n

t 
A

g
e

n
c
y
’s

re
m

it
 l
e

tt
e

r 
to

 e
n

s
u

re
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

n
d
 a

re
a

s
. 

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

re
a

c
h

e
d

 t
o
 t

h
e
 i
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

in
 r

e
p
o

rt
in

g
 a

n
d
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
. 

.

Page 45



(
4
3
!B
!

c
. 
H

ig
h

e
r 

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 F

u
n
d

in
g

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

fo
r 

W
a

le
s

D
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 t
a
k
e

n
 p

la
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 W
A

G
 S

p
o
n

s
o

r 
D

iv
is

io
n

 a
n

d
 a

 
jo

in
t 
m

e
e
ti
n

g
 t
o

o
k
 p

la
c
e

 w
it
h

 H
E

F
C

W
 i
n

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0

1
0

. 
H

E
F

C
W

 h
a
s
 

s
e

t 
a

 c
le

a
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
in

 t
h

e
ir
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

l 
p

la
n

 f
o
r 

e
n

ro
lm

e
n

t 
o

f 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 
fr

o
m

 C
o

m
m

u
n
it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

a
re

a
s
. 

H
E

F
C

W
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 R
e

a
c
h

in
g

 W
id

e
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 a

t 
e
a

c
h

 o
f 
th

e
 3

 
re

g
io

n
a

l 
C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r 
m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
 d

u
ri

n
g
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
0

.
S

u
b
s
e

q
u
e

n
tl
y
, 

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
 j
o

in
t 
w

o
rk

in
g

 h
a

s
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

d
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

w
o

rk
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 w

it
h

 
th

e
 R

e
a
c
h

in
g
 W

id
e
r 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
. 

 T
h

is
 h

a
s
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 t

h
e
 d

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 

o
f 
e

x
a

m
p

le
s
 w

h
e
re

 R
e

a
c
h

in
g
 W

id
e

r 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s
 h

a
v
e

 w
o
rk

e
d
 

c
lo

s
e

ly
 w

it
h

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
.

U
p

d
a

te
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

2
O

ff
ic

ia
ls

 m
e

e
t 
re

g
u

la
rl
y
 t

o
 d

is
c
u

s
s
 t

h
e

 j
o

in
t 

w
o

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 s
it
 o

n
 t

h
re

e
 

re
g
io

n
a

l 
R

e
a

c
h

in
g

 W
id

e
r 

S
te

e
ri
n

g
 G

ro
u
p

s

d
.
S

p
o
rt

 W
a

le
s

In
it
ia

l 
d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 t

o
o

k
 p

la
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 W

A
G

 S
p

o
n

s
o

r 
D

iv
is

io
n
 a

n
d

 a
 

m
e
e

ti
n

g
 w

a
s
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h

 S
p

o
rt

 W
a

le
s
 i
n

 A
u

g
u

s
t 

2
0

1
0

R
e

fe
re

n
c
e

 m
a

d
e
 i
n

 t
h

e
  

2
0

1
1

-2
0

1
2
 R

e
m

it
 l
e

tt
e

r 
to

 S
p

o
rt

 W
a

le
s
 

re
q
u

e
s
ti
n

g
 t

h
a
t 

S
p

o
rt

 W
a

le
s
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 S
p

o
rt

 P
o

lic
y
 

o
ff
ic

ia
ls

  
a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
F

ir
s
t 

U
n

it
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 a

 j
o

in
e

d
 u

p
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h

, 
w

it
h

 a
 v

ie
w

 t
h

a
t 
s
p

o
rt

 a
n
d

 p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
re

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 

fo
r 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 i
n

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 F

ir
s
t 

a
re

a
s
. 

  

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
w

o
rk

 h
a
s
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

d
 o

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

 (
L

A
P

A
s
) 

o
n
 s

p
o
rt

 
a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
. 

T
h

is
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 o

n
g

o
in

g
.

U
p

d
a

te
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

2
 

O
ff

ic
ia

ls
 m

e
e

t 
to

 d
is

c
u

s
s
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

n
 a

n
 o

n
g
o

in
g

 b
a

s
is

.

Page 46



(
4
3
!B
!

e
.
W

e
ls

h
 L

a
n

g
u
a

g
e
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
T

h
e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

G
u

id
a
n

c
e

 c
le

a
rl
y
 s

e
ts

 o
u
t 

th
e
 r

o
le

 t
h

e
 W

e
ls

h
 

L
a
n

g
u

a
g

e
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
(a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

p
a

rt
n

e
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
) 

c
a

n
 p

la
y
 i
n

 
w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
. 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
2
 u

p
d

a
te

 
O

n
g
o

in
g
 d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 p

la
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 W

G
 S

p
o
n

s
o

r 
D

iv
is

io
n

a
n

d
 t

h
e
 W

:B
 o

n
 t

h
e

 l
in

k
s
 w

it
h

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t.

  
T

h
e
 n

e
e
d

 
lin

k
 w

it
h

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

is
 s

e
t 
o

u
t 

in
 t
h

e
 r

e
m

it
 l
e

tt
e

r.

f.
C

o
u

n
tr

y
s
id

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

fo
r 

W
a

le
s

O
ff

ic
ia

ls
 m

e
t 

w
it
h

 C
o

u
n
tr

y
s
id

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

fo
r 

W
a

le
s
 i
n

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

2
0

1
0

.
A

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 w

e
re

 a
g
re

e
d

 f
o
r 

re
p
o

rt
in

g
 o

n
 t

h
e

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 w

it
h

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 i
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 

F
ir
s
t 

re
fe

re
n

c
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
m

it
 l
e

tt
e

r.
 T

h
e

 f
ir
s
t 

re
p

o
rt

 o
n

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 w

it
h

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
.

g
.
N

a
ti
o

n
a
l 
M

u
s
e

u
m

 o
f 
W

a
le

s
D

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 t

o
o

k
 p

la
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 S
p

o
n

s
o

r 
D

iv
is

io
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 W

e
ls

h
 

A
s
s
e

m
b

ly
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t
w

h
ic

h
 l
e

d
 t

o
 a

m
e

e
ti
n

g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
M

u
s
e

u
m

 i
n

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1

1
. 
It

 w
a

s
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 

g
iv

e
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 i
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

re
fe

re
n

c
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
m

it
 

le
tt

e
r 

a
n

d
 a

ls
o

 t
h

e
 p

o
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 
a

n
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 F

u
n
d

 b
id

.

A
lo

n
g
s
id

e
 t

h
is

 w
o

rk
 a

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 f
ro

m
N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
M

u
s
e

u
m

ra
n

 a
 

w
o

rk
s
h

o
p

 a
t 

th
e
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

C
o

n
fe

re
n
c
e

 o
n
 t

h
e
 1

4
/1

5
 

O
c
to

b
e

r.
  

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
, 
a

 t
ra

in
in

g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 o

n
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

(a
n

d
 

th
e
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 F

u
n

d
) 

w
a

s
 h

e
ld

 f
o

r 
th

e
 N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
 M

u
s
e

u
m

s
te

a
m

 o
f 

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 i
n

 J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0
1

1
. 

U
p

d
a

te
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

2
O

ff
ic

ia
ls

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 o
ff
ic

ia
ls

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
M

u
s
e

u
m

 
a
n
d

a
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
b

id
 w

a
s
 m

a
d
e

 f
o

r 
fu

n
d

in
g
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 F

u
n

d
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

e
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 N

M
W

 a
n
d

 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 f
ro

m
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

a
re

a
s
.

Page 47



(
4
3
!B
!

h
.
C

a
re

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

fo
r 

W
a

le
s

C
o

n
ta

c
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 m
a

d
e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

a
re

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n
d

 a
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

e
a

r 
fu

tu
re

to
 d

is
c
u

s
s
 t

h
e

 l
in

k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t
h

e
 C

a
re

 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 a

n
d

 t
h
o

s
e

 w
h

o
 l
iv

e
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

 i
n

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

a
re

a
s

i.
 R

o
y
a

l 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 O

n
 t
h

e
 A

n
c
ie

n
t 

a
n

d
 H

is
to

ri
c
a

l 
M

o
n

u
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
W

a
le

s

C
o

n
ta

c
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 m
a

d
e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 W

A
G

 S
p

o
n

s
o

r 
D

iv
is

io
n

 a
n

d
 a

 
d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 R

o
y
a

l 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 A

n
c
ie

n
t 

a
n
d

 H
is

to
ri
c
a

l 
M

o
n

u
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
W

a
le

s
. 

 T
h

e
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
s
 w

e
b
s
it
e

  
c
o

n
ta

in
s
 a

 c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
to

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 A

s
s
e

m
b

ly
 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t’
s
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

 a
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 
u

p
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 t
o
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 E

d
u
c
a

ti
o

n
 

a
n
d

 O
u

tr
e

a
c
h

 o
ff
ic

e
rs

. 
  

 

j.
 N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
L

ib
ra

ry
 o

f 
W

a
le

s
C

o
n

ta
c
t 

h
a
s

b
e

e
n

 m
a

d
e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 W

A
G

 S
p

o
n

s
o

r 
D

iv
is

io
n

. 
 A

d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
h

a
s
 t

a
k
e

n
 p

la
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
L

ib
ra

ry
 o

f 
W

a
le

s
 w

it
h

 a
 

v
ie

w
 t

o
 w

o
rk

in
g

 t
o

g
e
th

e
r 

o
n

 t
h
e

 C
u

lt
u

re
n

e
t 
C

y
m

ru
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
n

d
  

b
u
ild

in
g
 o

n
 t

h
e
 l
o

n
g
s
ta

n
d

in
g

 w
o
rk

 o
f 
th

e
 N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
L

ib
ra

ry
 w

it
h

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 2

.0
. 

 I
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 a
g

re
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
im

p
ro

v
e

d
jo

in
t 
w

o
rk

in
g

 
w

ill
 b

e
g
in

 w
it
h

 a
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 o

n
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

(a
n

d
 t
h

e
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

F
u

n
d

) 
fo

r 
re

le
v
a

n
t 
p

e
rs

o
n
n

e
l 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
L

ib
ra

ry
 a

 d
a
te

 i
s
 i
n

 
th

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
b

e
in

g
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
d
 f

o
r 

e
a
rl
y
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

1
.

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
2
 U

p
d

a
te

W
o

rk
 i
s
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
L

ib
ra

ry
.

k
. 
W

a
le

s
 C

e
n
tr

e
 f
o

r 
H

e
a

lt
h

O
ff

ic
ia

ls
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 d

iv
is

io
n

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 S

p
o
n

s
o

r 
B

ra
n

c
h

 o
f 

P
u

b
lic

 
H

e
a

lt
h

 W
a

le
s
 a

re
 i
n

 d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 w
o

rd
in

g
 f

o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n

 r
e

m
it
 l
e

tt
e

rs
 a

n
d

 f
u

tu
re

 j
o

in
t 

w
o

rk
. 

S
e

n
io

r 
o

ff
ic

ia
ls

 o
f 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
 D

iv
is

io
n

 a
re

 

Page 48



(
4
3
!B
!

m
e
e

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 D
ir
e

c
to

rs
 o

f 
P

u
b

lic
 H

e
a

lt
h

 o
n
 7

th
A

p
ri

l 
 t

o
 d

is
c
u

s
s
 h

o
w

 
g

re
a

te
r 

lin
k
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 w

it
h

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t.

U
p

d
a

te
 J

u
n

e
  

2
0
1

2
O

ff
ic

ia
ls

 h
a
v
e

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

lia
is

o
n

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 w

it
h

 o
ff
ic

ia
ls

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 P

u
b
lic

 
H

e
a

lt
h

 D
iv

is
io

n
 

<
W!
@
5
"
$D
:
:
"
9
1
62
$;
)
C
"
&*
9
"
*
.$

:
5
)
4
6#
$-
)
*
:
0#
"
&$
T
5
"
.5
"
&$
.5
"
&"
$'
&"
$

)
?
?
)
&.
4
*
0.
0"
:
=$
7)
&$
"
Q
'
9
?
6"
$.
5
&)
4
(
5
$

&"
7)
&9
$)
7$
.5
"
$B
'
6"
:
$+
&)
(
&'
9
9
"
$7
)
&$

J9
?
&)
C
"
9
"
*
.=
$7
)
&$
0.
$.
)
$1
"
..
"
&$

"
*
-
)
4
&'
(
"
$6
)
-
'
6$
'
4
.5
)
&0
.0
"
:
$.
)
$

09
?
&)
C
"
$.
5
"
0&
$:
"
&C
0-
"
$#
"
60
C
"
&2
$

7)
-
4
:
$)
*
$K
)
9
9
4
*
0.
0"
:
$P
0&
:
.$
'
&"
'
:
U$

$ $ $

! D
/
$
!`
4
3
)
-!
L
4
N
$
*#
7
$
#
5!
V;
)
-$
6
W!
+
$
)
6
1
*$
!B
@
@
?
!)
-*
$
)
<
9
!

*$
I
1
,*
$
6
!-
4
3
)
-!
)
1
5/
4
*,
5,
$
6
!5
4
!6
$
$
E
!5
4
!*
$
<
1
3
$
!<
,6
)
<
N
)
#
5)
A
$
6
!,
#
!

6
$
*N
,3
$
!H
*4
N
,6
,4
#
!)
#
<
!)
3
3
$
6
6
,2
,-,
59
!i
!M
/
$
5/
$
*!
,#
!

.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
)
*$
)
6
!4
*!
$
-6
$
M
/
$
*$
F!
!;
$
!M
,--
!6
/
4
*5
-9
!,
6
6
1
$
!

*$
N
,6
$
<
!;
)
-$
6
!0
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
!:
4
*!
G7
H
*4
N
$
7
$
#
5!
A
1
,<
)
#
3
$
C!
M
/
,3
/
!

*$
:-
$
3
56
!5
/
$
!+
$
)
6
1
*$
F !

! &
B
F!
D
/
$
!;
)
-$
6
!0
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
!:
4
*!
G7
H
*4
N
$
7
$
#
5!
/
)
6
!)
-*
$
)
<
9
!2
$
$
#
!

*$
N
,6
$
<
F!
U
::
,3
,)
-6
!,
#
!5
/
$
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
d
#
,5
!M
,--
!-
4
4
E
!M
,5
/
!5
/
$
!

`
4
3
)
-!
L
4
N
$
*#
7
$
#
5!
0
4
-,3
9
!5
$
)
7
!)
5!
5/
$
!H
4
5$
#
5,
)
-!
:4
*!
)
H
H
*4
H
*,
)
5$
!

.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
* $
:$
*$
#
3
$
6
!5
4
!2
$
!H
*4
N
,<
$
<
!,
#
!4
5/
$
*!
*$
-$
N
)
#
5!

7
)
5$
*,
)
-F
!!

! U
p

d
a
te

: 
A

c
ti

o
n

 C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 (

a
n

d
 o

n
g

o
in

g
)

! D
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 o

ff
ic

ia
ls

 h
a
s
 t

a
k
e

n
 p

la
c
e

. 
T

h
e

 W
e

ls
h

 A
s
s
e

m
b

ly
 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
is

 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
c
o

n
c
lu

d
in

g
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
 

w
it
h

 a
ll 

lo
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
, 

to
 a

lig
n
 l
o

c
a

l 
p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 w

it
h

 n
a
ti
o

n
a

l 
o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
. 

 T
h

e
s
e

 a
re

 n
o
n

-s
ta

tu
to

ry
, 

a
n

d
 i
t 

is
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 

th
e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
 t

o
 d

e
v
is

e
 i
n

it
ia

l 
p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
. 

 B
u

t 
in

 d
ra

w
in

g
 u

p
 t

h
e

ir
 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
, 

w
e

 w
ill

 s
tr

o
n

g
ly

 e
n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 t

o
 f

o
c
u

s
 o

n
 

a
re

a
s
 o

f 
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

n
e
e

d
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

a
re

a
s
 a

n
d

/o
r 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 R
e

g
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 A

re
a

s
. 

 A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 i
t 

is
 e

a
rl
y
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
, 

s
e

v
e

ra
l 
lo

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 a
lr
e

a
d

y
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

d
 a

 s
tr

o
n

g
 w

ill
in

g
n

e
s
s
 

to
 d

o
 s

o
.

O
ff

ic
ia

ls
 i
n

 t
h
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

U
n

it
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

m
m

e
n

te
d

 o
n

 a
ll 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 f

ro
m

 L
o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
e
 

a
p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

 C
o

m
m

u
n
it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

re
fe

re
n

c
e

s
 a

n
d
 l
in

k
s
 a

re
 m

a
d

e
. 

T
h

e
 

U
n

it
 a

re
 a

ls
o

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
 M

o
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

P
a

n
e

l.
 

W
e

 i
s
s
u

e
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e

 a
n
n

u
a

lly
 t

o
 a

ll 
2

2
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 t
h

e
ir
 

e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 o

f 
a

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
s
 (

£
1
1

m
 i
n

 2
0

1
1

-1
2
) 

u
n
d

e
r 

th
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
T

ra
n
s
p

o
rt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 G

ra
n
t 

(L
T

S
G

) 
s
c
h

e
m

e
. 

T
h

e
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

s
 

Page 49



(
4
3
!B
!

th
e
m

 t
o

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 w

h
e

n
 d

e
te

rm
in

in
g

 
th

e
ir
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

ir
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 t

a
k
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

p
ri

o
ri
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 

F
ir
s
t 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

ls
o

 h
a
v
e

 a
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o

 e
n

g
a
g

e
 w

it
h

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
’ 
p

u
b

lic
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 d
e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

ts
. 

L
T

S
G

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 t
o

 e
n
s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

it
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 a
n
d

 i
s
 a

d
m

in
is

te
re

d
 

e
ff
ic

ie
n
tl
y
. 

W
h

a
te

v
e

r 
th

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
, 
th

e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
t 
th

a
t 

lo
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 b

e
fo

re
 

d
e
c
id

in
g

 h
o
w

 t
o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 l
o

c
a

l 
b

u
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

w
ill

 r
e

m
a

in
. 
  

  
 !

!

Page 50



(
4
3
!B
!

$
W!
I
)
-
'
6$
/
"
&C
0-
"
$<
)
'
&#
:
$:
5
)
4
6#
$

T
)
&S
$9
)
&"
$-
6)
:
"
62
$T
0.
5
$.
5
"
$

K
)
9
9
4
*
0.
0"
:
$P
0&
:
.$
?
'
&.
*
"
&:
5
0?
:
$0
*
$

.5
"
0&
$'
&"
'
:
=$
0*
$)
&#
"
&$
.)
$0
9
?
&)
C
"
$

)
4
.-
)
9
"
:
$7
)
&$
?
"
)
?
6"
$6
0C
0*
(
$0
*
$

K
)
9
9
4
*
0.
0"
:
$P
0&
:
.$
'
&"
'
:
U$
$@
5
"
$

D
:
:
"
9
1
62
$;
)
C
"
&*
9
"
*
.O
:
$(
4
0#
'
*
-
"
$

.)
$I
)
-
'
6$
/
"
&C
0-
"
$<
)
'
&#
:
$:
5
)
4
6#
$

9
'
S
"
$0
.$
-
6"
'
&"
&$
.5
'
.=
$'
:
$7
'
&$
'
:
$0
:
$

?
)
:
:
01
6"
=$
.5
"
0&
$?
6'
*
:
$'
*
#
$

?
"
&7
)
&9
'
*
-
"
$.
'
&(
"
.:
$'
*
#
$9
"
'
:
4
&"
:
$

:
5
)
4
6#
$1
"
$-
)
*
:
0:
."
*
.$
T
0.
5
$.
5
)
:
"
$)
7$

.5
"
$6
)
-
'
6$
?
'
&.
*
"
&:
5
0?
:
U$
$

$ $ $

"
!4
#
$
T<
)
9
!M
4
*E
6
/
4
H
!M
,--
!2
$
!/
$
-<
!,
#
!+
)
9
!B
@
&
@
!M
/
,3
/
!M
,--
!

2
*,
#
A
!5
4
A
$
5/
$
*!
`
R
=
!*
$
H
*$
6
$
#
5)
5,
N
$
6
!)
#
<
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!

H
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
! 7
)
#
)
A
$
*6
F!
!!
D
/
$
!M
4
*E
6
/
4
H
!M
,--
!7
)
H
!$
%
,6
5,
#
A
!

H
*)
3
5,
3
$
!)
#
<
!<
$
N
$
-4
H
!H
*4
H
4
6
)
-6
!:
4
*!
6
5*
$
#
A
5/
$
#
,#
A
!-
,#
E
6
!

2
$
5M
$
$
#
!3
4
7
7
1
#
,5
9
!H
)
*5
#
$
*6
/
,H
6
!)
#
<
!`
R
=
6
F !

D
/
$
!"
6
6
$
7
2
-9
!L
4
N
$
*#
7
$
#
5!
M
,--
!3
4
#
6
,<
$
*!
M
/
)
5!
7
4
*$
!#
$
$
<
6
!

54
!2
$
!<
4
#
$
!5
4
!$
#
6
1
*$
!5
/
)
5!
5/
$
!M
4
*E
!4
:!
`
4
3
)
-!
R
$
*N
,3
$
!=
4
)
*<
6
C!

)
#
<
!5
/
$
!6
5)
51
54
*9
!H
)
*5
#
$
*6
/
,H
6
C!
,6
!-
,#
E
$
<
!7
4
*$
!$
::
$
3
5,
N
$
-9
!5
4
!

5/
$
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
H
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
F!

! &
'
F!
;
$
!M
,--
!/
4
-<
!)
!4
#
$
!<
)
9
!M
4
*E
6
/
4
H
!4
#
!5
/
$
!-
,#
E
6
!2
$
5M
$
$
#
!

.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
0
)
*5
#
$
*6
/
,H
6
C!
`
4
3
)
-!
R
$
*N
,3
$
!=
4
)
*<
6
!V
)
#
<
!5
/
$
!

;
)
-$
6
!R
H
)
5,
)
-!
0
-)
#
WF
!>
*4
7
!5
/
,6
C!
)
!6
/
4
*5
!L
1
, <
)
#
3
$
!#
4
5$
!M
,--
!2
$
!

<
$
N
$
-4
H
$
<
!2
9
!4
::
,3
,)
-6
!,
#
!5
/
$
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
d
#
,5
!)
#
<
!5
/
$
!`
R
=
!

5$
)
7
!M
/
,3
/
!M
,--
!*
$
,#
:4
*3
$
!5
/
$
!,
7
H
4
*5
)
#
3
$
!4
:!
3
-4
6
$
*!
M
4
*E
,#
A
!)
#
<
!

)
-,A
#
7
$
#
5!
4
:!
H
*,
4
*,
5,
$
6
F!
! !

! U
p

d
a
te

: 
A

c
ti

o
n

 C
o

m
p

le
te

d
.

T
h

e
 W

o
rk

s
h

o
p

 w
a
s
 h

e
ld

 a
n

d
 a

 n
o

te
 o

f 
it
 w

a
s

d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
.

O
ff

ic
ia

ls
 i
n

 t
h
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

U
n

it
 s

u
b

s
e

q
u

e
n
tl
y
 w

o
rk

e
d
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 L

S
B

 E
S

F
 T

e
a
m

 a
n

d
 i
n

p
u
tt

e
d
 i
n

to
 t
h

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

 f
o

r 
E

u
ro

p
e

a
n

 S
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l 
F

u
n
d

s
 P

ri
o

ri
ty

 4
. 
T

h
e

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

, 
w

h
ic

h
 

c
o

n
ta

in
s
 m

a
tc

h
 f
u

n
d
in

g
 f

ro
m

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t,

 h
a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e

e
n
 

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
. 
It

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 t

h
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 f

o
r 

L
S

B
s
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 

F
ir
s
t 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 t

o
 l
in

k
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

a
n

d
 b

id
 f

o
r 

fu
n

d
in

g
 f

o
r 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 
w

h
ic

h
 l
o

o
k
 a

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
. 

T
h

re
e
 w

o
rk

s
h

o
p

s
 i
n

v
o

lv
in

g
 t

h
e

 
L

S
B

 E
S

F
 t

e
a

m
 w

e
re

 h
e

ld
 a

n
d
 s

u
b
s
e

q
u
e

n
tl
y
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 h

a
s

b
e
e

n
 s

e
n
t 

to
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
o

 a
p

p
ly

 a
n

d
 

th
e
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 t
h

e
y
 w

ill
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 –
a

 n
u

m
b
e

r 
o

f 
a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

p
ip

e
lin

e
. 

T
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 e
v
a

lu
a

te
d

.
U

p
d

a
te

 J
u

n
e

 2
0
1

2
T

h
e
re

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
a

n
 o

n
g

o
in

g
tr

a
in

in
g

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 4

 e
v
e

n
ts

 h
a
v
e

 
b
e
e

n
 h

e
ld

 a
c
ro

s
s
 W

a
le

s
 w

it
h

 a
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
to

 h
o

ld
in

g
 f

o
llo

w
 u

p
 

e
v
e

n
ts

. 
T

h
is

 t
ra

in
in

g
 i
s
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

in
g

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
lin

k
s
 

w
it
h

 L
S

B
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

7W
$$
@
5
"
$D
:
:
"
9
1
62
$;
)
C
"
&*
9
"
*
.$

:
5
)
4
6#
$#
"
C
"
6)
?
$'
*
#
$&
)
66
X)
4
.$
'
$

?
&)
(
&'
9
9
"
$)
7$
.&
'
0*
0*
(
$'
*
#
$

'
T
'
&"
*
"
:
:
X&
'
0:
0*
(
$7
)
&$
D
:
:
"
9
1
62
$

;
)
C
"
&*
9
"
*
.$
)
77
0-
0'
6:
$'
*
#
$)
.5
"
&$

(
,6
3
1
6
6
,4
#
6
!/
)
N
$
!5
)
E
$
#
!H
-)
3
$
!M
,5
/
!2
4
5/
!5
/
$
!;
$
-6
/
!`
4
3
)
-!

L
4
N
$
*#
7
$
#
5!
"
6
6
4
3
,)
5,
4
#
!)
#
<
!D
/
,*
<
!R
$
3
54
*!
4
*A
)
#
,6
)
5,
4
#
6
!4
#
!

/
4
M
!7
4
<
$
-6
!6
1
3
/
!)
6
!5
/
$
!R
4
3
,)
-!
G#
3
-1
6
,4
#
!`
$
)
*#
,#
A
!

0
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
!V
R
G`
0
W!
3
)
#
!2
$
!<
$
N
$
-4
H
$
<
!)
#
<
!*
4
--$
<
!4
1
5!
:4
*!

6
$
*N
,3
$
!H
*4
N
,<
$
*6
!)
#
<
!"
6
6
$
7
2
-9
!L
4
N
$
*#
7
$
#
5!
4
::
,3
,)
-6
F!
;
$
!

! &
e
F!
U
::
,3
,)
-6
!M
,--
!<
,6
3
1
6
6
!M
,5
/
!5
/
$
!;
`
L
"
!)
#
<
!;
.
g
"
!/
4
M
!)
!7
4
<
$
-!

2
)
6
$
<
!4
#
!R
G`
0
!3
)
#
!2
$
!H
,-4
5$
<
!,
#
!6
4
7
$
!-
4
3
)
-!
)
1
5/
4
*,
59
!)
*$
)
6
F!
D
/
,6
!

M
4
*E
!M
,--
!2
$
!1
#
<
$
*5
)
E
$
#
!1
#
<
$
*!
5/
$
!$
%
,6
5,
#
A
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!

D
*)
,#
,#
A
!.
4
#
5*
)
3
5!
7
)
#
)
A
$
<
!2
9
!5
/
$
!;
.
g
"
F !

!

Page 51



(
4
3
!B
!

:
"
&C
0-
"
$?
&)
C
0#
"
&:
U$
$@
5
0:
$-
'
?
'
-
0.
2
$

1
4
06
#
0*
(
$:
5
)
4
6#
$#
&'
T
$)
*
$.
5
"
$

6"
:
:
)
*
:
$6
"
'
&*
.$
7&
)
9
$.
5
"
$/
)
-
0'
6$

J*
-
64
:
0)
*
$I
"
'
&*
0*
(
$+
&)
,"
-
.$
0*
$

K
)
*
T
2
U$

M
,--
!2
$
!6
$
$
E
,#
A
!5
/
$
!3
4
7
7
,5
7
$
#
5!
4
:!
)
--!
H
)
*5
,$
6
!5
4
!5
/
$
!M
,<
$
*!

*4
--4
1
5!
4
:!
)
!-
)
*A
$
*!
H
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
!5
/
)
#
!R
G`
0
O!
5/
,6
!M
,--
!<
*)
M
!4
#
!

5/
$
!$
%
H
$
*,
$
#
3
$
!A
)
,#
$
<
!:
*4
7
!5
/
,6
!H
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
!,
#
!H
)
*5
,3
1
-)
*F
!

;
,5
/
,#
!5
/
$
!3
4
*$
!5
*)
,#
,#
A
!H
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
C!
7
)
#
)
A
$
<
!2
9
!5
/
$
!;
)
-$
6
!

.
4
1
#
3
,-!
:4
*!
g
4
-1
#
5)
*9
!"
3
5,
4
#
!1
#
<
$
*!
3
4
#
5*
)
3
5!
:*
4
7
!5
/
$
!

"
6
6
$
7
2
-9
!L
4
N
$
*#
7
$
#
5C
!)
!H
,-4
5!
5*
)
,#
,#
A
!3
4
1
*6
$
!,
6
!2
$
,#
A
!

1
#
<
$
*5
)
E
$
#
!M
/
,3
/
!*
)
,6
$
6
!)
M
)
*$
#
$
6
6
!4
:!
.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!

)
#
<
!H
*4
7
4
5$
6
!5
/
$
!-
,#
E
6
!2
$
5M
$
$
#
!-
4
3
)
-!
)
1
5/
4
*,
59
!4
::
,3
$
*6
!)
#
<
!

$
-$
3
5$
<
!7
$
7
2
$
*6
C!
6
$
*N
,3
$
!7
)
#
)
A
$
*6
!)
#
<
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!

M
4
*E
$
*6
F!
!"
!E
$
9
!:
$
)
51
*$
!4
:!
5/
$
!3
4
1
*6
$
!,
6
!)
2
4
1
5!
2
*,
#
A
,#
A
!

6
$
*N
,3
$
!7
)
#
)
A
$
*6
!,
#
54
!<
,*
$
3
5!
3
4
#
5)
3
5!
M
,5
/
!5
/
4
6
$
!M
4
*E
,#
A
!,
#
!

5/
$
!3
4
7
7
1
#
,5
9
F!
;
$
!)
*$
!M
4
*E
,#
A
!3
-4
6
$
-9
!M
,5
/
!5
/
$
!;
`
L
"
!)
#
<
!

;
.
g
"
!4
#
!5
/
,6
!)
#
<
!<
*)
M
,#
A
!4
#
!-
$
6
6
4
#
6
!:
*4
7
!5
/
$
!R
G`
0
!

H
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
!M
/
,3
/
!,
6
!2
$
,#
A
!H
,-4
5$
<
!,
#
!Q
/
4
#
<
<
)
!.
9
#
4
#
!D
)
:F
!

! ! U
p

d
a
te

: 
A

c
ti

o
n

 C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 (

a
n

d
 o

n
g

o
in

g
).

D
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 t
a
k
e

n
 p

la
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 W
L

G
A

 a
n
d

 W
C

V
A

. 
A

 P
ilo

t 
tr

a
in

in
g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 w

a
s
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

lly
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
  

 i
n

 R
h

o
n

d
d

a
 C

y
n

o
n

 T
a

ff
 

in
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r.

 T
h

is
 s

e
s
s
io

n
,

to
 p

ro
m

o
te

 j
o

in
t 

w
o

rk
in

g
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 O
ff

ic
e

rs
, 

E
le

c
te

d
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

S
ta

ff
,

w
ill

 b
e

 o
ff

e
re

d
 a

s
 t

ra
in

in
g
 f

o
r 

th
e

 2
0

1
1

 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
.

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
, 
a

 t
ra

in
in

g
 d

a
y
 f

o
c
u

s
e

d
 o

n
 r

a
is

in
g
 a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
S

o
c
ia

l 
In

c
lu

s
io

n
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 f

o
r 

W
e

ls
h

 A
s
s
e

m
b

ly
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
O

ff
ic

ia
ls

, 
a

n
d
 

o
th

e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 P

ro
v
id

e
rs

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
  

w
it
h

 W
C

V
A

 a
n
d

 
W

L
G

A
. 

T
h

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 o

ff
e
re

d
 a

n
d

 d
e
liv

e
re

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
t 

o
f 
th

e
 S

p
ri
n

g
 

T
ra

in
in

g
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
.

D
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 t

o
o
k
 p

la
c
e

 w
it
h

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

C
y
m

ru
 a

n
d

  
th

e
 S

IL
P

 n
e

tw
o
rk

w
h

ic
h

 r
e

s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 a
 f

u
lly

 e
v
a

lu
a
te

d
 p

ilo
t
o

f 
S

IL
P

 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 t

a
k
e

n
 p

la
c
e

in
 S

w
a

n
s
e

a
. 

 T
h

is
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 e
v
a

lu
a

te
d

 a
n

d
m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 u
p

d
a
te

d
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 a

v
a

ila
b
le

 f
o

r 
o

p
e
n

 s
o

u
rc

e
 

u
s
e

.
E

le
m

e
n

ts
 o

f
th

is
 w

o
rk

 w
ill

 b
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 f
o

rw
a

rd
 u

n
d
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
w

 
n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
fo

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 b
e

 
p

ro
c
u

re
d

 l
a

te
r 

th
is

 y
e

a
r.

O
ff

ic
ia

ls
 h

a
v
e

 a
ls

o
 b

e
g

u
n

 d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 S

IL
P

 L
e

a
rn

in
g

 
N

e
tw

o
rk

 w
it
h

 a
 v

ie
w

 t
o
 e

x
p

lo
ri
n
g

 a
 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

fu
lly

 e
v
a

lu
a
te

d
  

p
ilo

t 
o

f 
S

IL
P

 w
h

ic
h

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 a

 p
a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 o

f 
W

L
G

A
 a

n
d

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
C

y
m

ru
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 S
IL

P
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 N

e
tw

o
rk

. 
W

o
rk

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 d
o
c
u

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 t
o

 p
ro

d
u

c
e

 a
n

 e
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 t
e

n
d
e

r.
 A

 p
ilo

t 
a

re
a

 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
.

A
W!
!@
5
"
$D
:
:
"
9
1
62
$;
)
C
"
&*
9
"
*
.$

:
5
)
4
6#
$?
&)
C
0#
"
$'
#
#
0.
0)
*
'
6$
:
4
?
?
)
&.
$

'
:
$'
?
?
&)
?
&0
'
."
=$
:
4
-
5
$'
:
$0
*
$

#
"
C
"
6)
?
0*
(
$:
S
06
6:
$0
*
$T
&0
.0
*
(
$1
0#
:
=$
.)
$

.5
)
:
"
$?
'
&.
*
"
&:
5
0?
:
$.
5
'
.$
'
&"
$6
0S
"
62
$.
)
$

;
4
*E
!,
6
!)
-*
$
)
<
9
!2
$
,#
A
!1
#
<
$
*5
)
E
$
#
!4
#
!5
/
,6
!1
#
<
$
*!
2
4
5/
!5
/
$
!

D
*)
,#
,#
A
C!
)
#
<
!"
<
N
,3
$
!)
#
<
!R
1
H
H
4
*5
6
!3
4
#
5*
)
3
56
!5
/
)
5!
)
*$
!

7
)
#
)
A
$
<
!2
9
!5
/
$
!;
.
g
"
!4
#
!2
$
/
)
-:
!4
:!
5/
$
!;
$
-6
/
!"
6
6
$
7
2
-9
!

L
4
N
$
*#
7
$
#
5F
!d
#
<
$
*!
5/
$
!D
*)
,#
,#
A
!3
4
#
5*
)
3
5!
)
!3
4
*$
!$
-$
7
$
#
5!
,6
!

5*
)
,#
,#
A
!4
#
!5
/
$
!U
1
53
4
7
$
6
!>
1
#
<
F!
!D
/
$
!"
<
N
,3
$
!)
#
<
!R
1
H
H
4
*5
!

! &
h
F!
;
$
!M
,--
!1
H
<
)
5$
!5
/
$
!.
4
7
7
,5
5$
$
!4
#
!5
/
$
!#
1
7
2
$
*!
4
:!
5*
)
,#
,#
A
!3
4
1
*6
$
6
!

)
#
<
!5
/
$
!)
<
N
,3
$
!H
*4
N
,<
$
<
!5
4
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
0
)
*5
#
$
*6
/
,H
6
!4
#
!

M
*,
5,
#
A
!U
1
53
4
7
$
6
!>
1
#
<
!)
H
H
-,3
)
5,
4
#
6
F!
!

! U
p

d
a
te

: 
A

c
ti

o
n

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 (

a
n

d
 o

n
g

o
in

g
).

T
o

 d
a

te
, 

2
2

 O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 F

u
n

d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o

 

Page 52



(
4
3
!B
!

70
*
#
$0
.$
9
)
&"
$#
07
70
-
4
6.
$.
)
$'
-
-
"
:
:
$.
5
"
$

L
4
.-
)
9
"
:
$P
4
*
#
U$

$ $ $ $ $

.
4
#
5*
)
3
5!
6
$
*N
,3
$
!*
$
6
H
4
#
<
6
!5
4
!I
1
$
*,
$
6
!H
4
5$
#
5,
)
-!
)
H
H
-,3
)
#
56
!

7
)
9
!/
)
N
$
!)
6
!5
/
$
9
!)
*$
!<
$
N
$
-4
H
,#
A
!5
/
$
,*
!U
1
53
4
7
$
6
!>
1
#
<
!2
,<
6
F!

D
/
$
!;
.
g
"
!M
,--
!)
-6
4
!H
*4
N
,<
$
!A
$
#
$
*)
-!
)
<
N
,3
$
!4
#
!2
,<
TM
*,
5,
#
A
!)
6
!

H
)
*5
!4
:!
5/
,6
!H
*4
3
$
6
6
F!
!

D
/
$
!"
6
6
$
7
2
-9
!L
4
N
$
*#
7
$
#
5!
M
4
*E
6
!3
-4
6
$
-9
!M
,5
/
!5
/
$
!;
.
g
"
!,
#
!

$
#
6
1
*,
#
A
!5
/
)
5!
5/
$
!3
4
#
5*
)
3
56
!)
*$
!)
H
H
*4
H
*,
)
5$
!5
4
!5
/
$
!#
$
$
<
6
!4
:!

H
)
*5
#
$
*6
/
,H
6
F!
R
1
H
H
4
*5
!,
6
!)
-6
4
!4
::
$
*$
<
!5
4
!)
--!
H
)
*5
#
$
*6
/
,H
6
!2
9
!

5/
$
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
d
#
,5
!,
#
!<
$
N
$
-4
H
,#
A
!)
#
<
!6
5*
$
#
A
5/
$
#
,#
A
!

2
,<
6
!5
4
!5
/
$
!U
1
53
4
7
$
6
!>
1
#
<
F!
!_
%
H
*$
6
6
,4
#
6
!4
:!
G#
5$
*$
6
5!
54
!5
/
$
!

>
1
#
<
!)
*$
!*
)
*$
-9
!*
$
P$
3
5$
<
!4
1
5*
,A
/
5O
!,
#
6
5$
)
<
C!
)
<
N
,3
$
!)
#
<
!

6
1
H
H
4
*5
!,
6
!H
*4
N
,<
$
<
!2
9
!4
1
*!
Q
$
A
,4
#
)
-!
G7
H
-$
7
$
#
5)
5,
4
#
!D
$
)
7
6
!

54
!)
6
6
,6
5!
H
)
*5
#
$
*6
/
,H
6
!5
4
!)
<
<
*$
6
6
!M
$
)
E
#
$
6
6
$
6
F!
!!
D
/
,6
!

,5
$
*)
5,
N
$
!H
*4
3
$
6
6
!,
6
!<
$
6
,A
#
$
<
!5
4
!$
#
6
1
*$
!5
/
)
5!
)
--!
)
*$
)
6
!/
)
N
$
!

)
#
!$
I
1
)
-!
3
/
)
#
3
$
!4
:!
)
3
/
,$
N
,#
A
!6
1
3
3
$
6
6
!5
/
*4
1
A
/
!5
/
$
!

U
1
53
4
7
$
6
!>
1
#
<
F !

D
/
$
!5
)
E
$
T1
H
!4
:!
5/
$
!U
1
53
4
7
$
6
!>
1
#
<
!,
6
!2
$
,#
A
!7
4
#
,5
4
*$
<
!

,#
3
-1
<
,#
A
!3
4
#
6
,<
$
*)
5,
4
#
!4
:!
M
/
,3
/
!H
)
*5
#
$
*6
/
,H
6
!)
*$
!)
3
3
$
6
6
,#
A
!

5/
$
!>
1
#
<
!)
#
<
!5
/
$
!*
$
A
,4
#
)
-!
)
#
<
!#
)
5,
4
#
)
-!
<
,6
5*
,2
1
5,
4
#
!4
:!

:1
#
<
,#
A
F!

3
1
8

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n

ts
 a

c
ro

s
s
 W

a
le

s
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 C
o

re
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

T
ra

in
in

g
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 W

a
le

s
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

fo
r 

V
o

lu
n
ta

ry
 

A
c
ti
o

n
 (

W
C

V
A

).
 I

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
, 

th
e

 W
C

V
A

 h
a
s
 r

u
n
 3

-h
o

u
s
e

 t
ra

in
in

g
 

c
o

u
rs

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 3

5
 p

e
o

p
le

.

T
h

e
 W

C
V

A
 h

a
s
 a

s
s
is

te
d
 2

2
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

d
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
th

e
ir
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 F

u
n

d
 b

id
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h
e

ir
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

A
d

v
ic

e
 &

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 C
o

n
tr

a
c
t.

 G
e

n
e

ra
l 
a

d
v
ic

e
 h

a
s
 

a
ls

o
 b

e
e
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 o
n
 t

h
e
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 o

f 
th

e
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 F

u
n
d

. 
 

A
 n

e
w

 c
o

u
rs

e
 o

n
 “

W
ri
ti
n

g
 S

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 B

id
s
” 

h
a

s
 a

ls
o

 b
e

e
n

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 o

ff
e

re
d

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 C
o

re
 T

ra
in

in
g

 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 W
a

le
s
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

fo
r 

V
o

lu
n
ta

ry
 A

c
ti
o

n
 

u
n
d

e
r 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

fr
o

m
 t
h

e
 A

s
s
e

m
b

ly
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t.
U

p
d

a
te

 J
u

n
e

2
0
1

2
A

ll 
p

ro
je

c
ts

 w
h

ic
h

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

 m
o
n

e
y
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 O
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 F

u
n

d
 a

re
 d

u
e

 
to

 c
o

m
e

 t
o
 a

n
 e

n
d
 o

n
 3

0
th

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

.

 

/
W!
!@
5
"
$D
:
:
"
9
1
62
$;
)
C
"
&*
9
"
*
.=
$0
*
$

'
66
$)
7$
0.
:
$(
4
0#
'
*
-
"
$.
5
'
.$
&"
6'
."
:
$.
)
$

K
)
9
9
4
*
0.
0"
:
$P
0&
:
.=
$:
5
)
4
6#
$9
'
S
"
$

D
/
$
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
L
1
,<
)
#
3
$
!,
6
!3
1
**
$
#
5-
9
!2
$
,#
A
!*
$
N
,6
$
<
!

)
#
<
!,
5!
M
,--
!7
)
E
$
!3
-$
)
*!
5/
)
5!
5/
$
!H
*,
7
)
*9
!*
$
6
H
4
#
6
,2
,-,
59
!:
4
*!

)
3
/
,$
N
,#
A
!H
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
!2
$
#
<
,#
A
!M
,--
!-
,$
!M
,5
/
!6
$
*N
,3
$
!H
*4
N
,<
$
*6
C!

! &
f
F!
"
6
!<
$
5)
,-$
<
!,
#
!)
3
5,
4
#
!?
C!
5/
,6
!3
-)
*,
59
!M
,--
!2
$
!H
*4
N
,<
$
<
!,
#
!5
/
$
!*
$
N
,6
$
<
!

6
1
7
7
)
*9
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
L
1
,<
)
#
3
$
F !

Page 53



(
4
3
!B
!

-
6"
'
&$
.5
'
.$
.5
"
$?
&0
9
'
&2
$

&"
:
?
)
*
:
01
06
0.
2
$7
)
&$
'
-
5
0"
C
0*
(
$

?
&)
(
&'
9
9
"
$1
"
*
#
0*
(
$6
0"
:
$T
0.
5
$

:
"
&C
0-
"
$?
&)
C
0#
"
&:
=$
'
*
#
$.
5
'
.$
.5
"
$

?
&0
9
'
&2
$?
4
&?
)
:
"
$)
7$
?
'
&.
*
"
&:
5
0?
:
$0
:
$

.)
$?
&)
C
0#
"
$'
$9
"
-
5
'
*
0:
9
$.
)
$5
"
6?
$

"
*
:
4
&"
$.
5
'
.$
:
"
&C
0-
"
:
$#
"
60
C
"
&"
#
$

6)
-
'
66
2
$9
"
"
.$
.5
"
$*
"
"
#
:
$)
7$
.5
"
$6
)
-
'
6$

-
)
9
9
4
*
0.
2
U$

$

M
,5
/
!5
/
$
!H
*,
7
)
*9
!H
1
*H
4
6
$
!4
:!
H
)
*5
#
$
*6
/
,H
6
!2
$
,#
A
!5
4
!/
$
-H
!

$
#
6
1
*$
!5
/
)
5!
6
$
*N
,3
$
6
!)
*$
!<
$
-,N
$
*$
<
!5
4
!7
$
$
5!
-4
3
)
-!
#
$
$
<
F!
U
#
$
!

4
:!
5/
$
!E
$
9
6
!5
4
!)
3
/
,$
N
,#
A
!H
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
!2
$
#
<
,#
A
!M
,--
!2
$
!5
4
!

$
#
6
1
*$
!5
/
)
5!
6
5*
4
#
A
!*
$
-)
5,
4
#
6
/
,H
6
!)
*$
!2
1
,-5
!2
$
5M
$
$
#
!

H
)
*5
#
$
*6
/
,H
6
!)
#
<
!6
$
*N
,3
$
!H
*4
N
,<
$
*6
F!
0
)
*5
#
$
*6
/
,H
6
!M
,--
!#
$
$
<
!5
4
!

4
1
5-
,#
$
!5
/
$
,*
!H
*,
4
*,
5,
$
6
!5
4
!6
$
*N
,3
$
!H
*4
N
,<
$
*6
C!
M
,5
/
!5
/
$
!"
6
6
$
7
2
-9
!

L
4
N
$
*#
7
$
#
5X
6
!*
4
-$
!2
$
,#
A
!5
4
!H
*4
7
4
5$
!H
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
!2
$
#
<
,#
A
!)
5!

)
--!
-$
N
$
-6
F!

U
p

d
a
te

: 
A

c
ti

o
n

 C
o

m
p

le
te

d
.

P
le

a
s
e

 s
e

e
 u

p
d

a
te

 t
o
 a

c
ti
o

n
 9
!

,W
!!
@
5
"
$D
:
:
"
9
1
62
$;
)
C
"
&*
9
"
*
.$

:
5
)
4
6#
Y!

'
W$
9
'
S
"
$-
6"
'
&$
.5
'
.$
?
'
&.
*
"
&:
5
0?
:
$

:
5
)
4
6#
$T
)
&S
$T
0.
5
$6
)
-
'
6$

:
.'
S
"
5
)
6#
"
&:
$'
*
#
$.
5
"
$-
)
9
9
4
*
0.
2
$.
)
$

0#
"
*
.0
72
$)
4
.-
)
9
"
:
=$
1
4
.$
.5
'
.$

?
'
&.
*
"
&:
5
0?
:
$:
5
)
4
6#
$0
#
"
*
.0
72
$5
)
T
$

.5
"
2
$-
'
*
$1
"
:
.$
-
)
*
.&
01
4
."
$.
)
$.
5
)
:
"
$

)
4
.-
)
9
"
:
=$
'
*
#
$9
"
'
:
4
&"
$'
*
#
$&
"
?
)
&.
$

?
&)
(
&"
:
:
$'
(
'
0*
:
.$
.5
"
0&
$?
6'
*
*
"
#
$

-
)
*
.&
01
4
.0
)
*
Z$
'
*
#
!

1
W$
0#
"
*
.0
72
$'
*
#
$#
0:
:
"
9
0*
'
."
$(
)
)
#
$

?
&'
-
.0
-
"
$"
Q
'
9
?
6"
:
$)
7$
T
5
"
&"
$:
"
&C
0-
"
$

?
&)
C
0#
"
&:
$5
'
C
"
$T
)
&S
"
#
$T
0.
5
$

?
'
&.
*
"
&:
5
0?
:
$.
)
T
'
&#
:
$.
5
"
$

)
4
.-
)
9
"
:
$:
"
.$
)
4
.$
0*
$?
'
&.
*
"
&:
5
0?
:
O$

)
F!
!;
$
!6
$
$
!6
3
4
H
$
!:
4
*!
H
)
*5
#
$
*6
/
,H
6
!5
4
!M
4
*E
!M
,5
/
!)
!*
)
#
A
$
!4
:!

-4
3
)
-!
6
5)
E
$
/
4
-<
$
*6
!)
#
<
!5
/
$
!3
4
7
7
1
#
,5
9
!5
4
!,
<
$
#
5,
:9
!/
4
M
!5
/
$
9
!

3
)
#
!2
$
6
5!
3
4
#
5*
,2
1
5$
!5
4
!,
<
$
#
5,
:,
$
<
!4
1
53
4
7
$
6
F!
D
/
,6
!M
,--
!

H
4
5$
#
5,
)
--9
!)
-6
4
!6
1
H
H
4
*5
!3
-4
6
$
*!
M
4
*E
,#
A
!)
5!
5/
$
!-
4
3
)
-!
-$
N
$
-F
!j
6
$
$
!

)
-6
4
!*
$
6
H
4
#
6
$
6
!5
4
!*
$
3
4
7
7
$
#
<
)
5,
4
#
6
!P
k
E
!2
$
-4
M
lF
!

D
/
$
!;
$
-6
/
!"
6
6
$
7
2
-9
!L
4
N
$
*#
7
$
#
5!
M
,--
!,
#
,5
,)
5$
!)
!6
$
*,
$
6
!4
:!

7
$
$
5,
#
A
6
!M
,5
/
!-
4
3
)
-!
)
1
5/
4
*,
5,
$
6
!5
/
,6
!3
)
-$
#
<
)
*!
9
$
)
*!
54
!*
$
N
,$
M
!

5/
$
!3
1
**
$
#
5!
H
4
6
,5
,4
#
!4
#
!M
/
)
5!
H
*4
3
$
6
6
$
6
!)
*$
!,
#
!H
-)
3
$
!:
4
*!

)
A
*$
$
,#
A
!/
4
M
!0
)
*5
#
$
*6
/
,H
6
!3
)
#
!3
4
#
5*
,2
1
5$
!5
4
!,
<
$
#
5,
:,
$
<
!

4
1
53
4
7
$
6
F !

2
F!
D
/
$
!"
6
6
$
7
2
-9
!L
4
N
$
*#
7
$
#
5!
:1
--9
!*
$
3
4
A
#
,6
$
6
!5
/
$
!#
$
$
<
!5
4
!

H
*4
7
4
5$
!H
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
T2
$
#
<
,#
A
!V
6
$
*N
,3
$
!H
*4
N
,<
$
*6
!M
4
*E
,#
A
!

3
-4
6
$
-9
!M
,5
/
!0
)
*5
#
$
*6
/
,H
6
W!
$
%
)
7
H
-$
6
F!
D
/
$
!"
6
6
$
7
2
-9
!

L
4
N
$
*#
7
$
#
5!
,6
!M
4
*E
,#
A
!3
-4
6
$
-9
!M
,5
/
!_
7
H
4
M
$
*!
)
6
!H
)
*5
!4
:!
5/
$
!

.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
8
)
5,
4
#
)
-!
R
1
H
H
4
*5
!3
4
#
5*
)
3
5!
,#
!4
*<
$
*!
54
!

,#
3
*$
)
6
$
!5
/
$
!<
,6
6
$
7
,#
)
5,
4
#
!4
:!
A
4
4
<
!H
*)
3
5,
3
$
!$
%
)
7
H
-$
6
F!
D
/
,6
!

! &
[
F!
U
::
,3
,)
-6
!M
,--
C!
5/
*4
1
A
/
!5
/
$
!"
#
#
1
)
-!
+
4
#
,5
4
*,
#
A
!N
,6
,5
6
C!
<
,6
3
1
6
6
!5
/
$
!

H
*4
3
$
6
6
$
6
!$
)
3
/
!0
)
*5
#
$
*6
/
,H
!/
)
6
!,
#
!H
-)
3
$
!:
4
*!
)
A
*$
$
,#
A
!/
4
M
!2
$
6
5!
5/
$
9
!

3
)
#
!3
4
#
5*
,2
1
5$
!5
4
!,
<
$
#
5,
:,
$
<
!4
1
53
4
7
$
6
F!
!

! U
p

d
a
te

: 
A

c
ti

o
n

 C
o

m
p

le
te

d
.

V
ir
tu

a
lly

 a
ll 

A
M

R
 v

is
it
s
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

w
 b

e
e

n
 u

n
d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
. 

O
n

ly
 4

 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
b

e
e
n

 v
is

it
e

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 f

a
c
t 

th
a

t 
lo

c
a

l 
c
ir
c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 p
re

v
e

n
te

d
 i
t.

 
! ! &
Y
F!
!;
4
*E
!4
#
!<
$
N
$
-4
H
,#
A
!A
4
4
<
!H
*)
3
5,
3
$
!3
)
6
$
!6
51
<
,$
6
!,
6
!)
-*
$
)
<
9
!,
#
!

/
)
#
<
F!
;
$
!M
,--
!#
4
M
!,
<
$
#
5,
:9
!$
%
)
7
H
-$
6
!4
:!
H
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
!2
$
#
<
,#
A
!)
#
<
!

<
,6
6
$
7
,#
)
5$
!)
H
H
*4
H
*,
)
5$
-9
F!
;
$
!M
,--
!)
,7
!5
4
!,
<
$
#
5,
:9
!&
Y
!$
%
)
7
H
-$
6
!5
4
!

3
4
N
$
*!
)
--!
5/
$
7
$
6
!4
:!
5/
$
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
g
,6
,4
#
!>
*)
7
$
M
4
*E
F !

! U
p

d
a
te

: 
A

c
ti

o
n

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
.

O
ff

ic
ia

ls
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h

 E
m

p
o

w
e

r,
 w

h
o

 m
a

n
a

g
e
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 

F
ir
s
t 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
t,

 o
n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g
 t

h
e

s
e

 C
a
s
e

 
S

tu
d

ie
s
. 
U

p
d

a
te

. 
O

v
e

r 
3

5
 c

a
s
e

 s
tu

d
ie

s
 h

a
v
e

 n
o
w

 b
e

e
n

 p
ro

d
u
c
e

d
. 
 

T
h

e
s
e

 a
re

 b
e

in
g

d
is

ti
lle

d
 t

o
 h

ig
h

lig
h
t 

th
o

s
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 g

re
a

te
s
t 

fo
c
u

s
 o

n
 

Page 54



(
4
3
!B
!

'
-
.0
)
*
$?
6'
*
:
U$

$

M
,--
!,
#
3
-1
<
$
!$
%
)
7
H
-$
6
!4
:!
M
/
$
*$
!6
$
*N
,3
$
!H
*4
N
,<
$
*6
!/
)
N
$
!

M
4
*E
$
<
!3
-4
6
$
-9
!M
,5
/
!H
)
*5
#
$
*6
/
,H
6
C!
:4
*!
$
%
)
7
H
-$
!4
#
!<
$
-,N
$
*,
#
A
!

5/
$
,*
!4
1
53
4
7
$
6
F!

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 b

e
n

d
in

g
.

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 w

ri
tt

e
n
 C

a
s
e

 S
tu

d
ie

s
, 

w
o

rk
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 o

n
 

re
v
is

in
g
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

s
e

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 W

e
ls

h
 A

s
s
e

m
b

ly
 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t’
s
 W

e
b

-S
it
e

. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

e
x
a

m
p

le
s
,

fi
lm

e
d

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 w

ri
tt

e
n

,
w

h
ic

h
 h

ig
h

lig
h
t 

th
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

C
o

m
m

u
n
it
ie

s
 

F
ir
s
t 

h
a

s
 h

a
d

 o
n

 a
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 a

n
d

 a
ls

o
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

. 

! ! &
?
F!
G#
!)
<
<
,5
,4
#
!5
4
!)
3
5,
4
#
!&
Y
!)
2
4
N
$
C!
)
#
!)
6
6
$
6
6
7
$
#
5!
4
:!
5/
$
!,
7
H
)
3
5!
4
:!

5/
$
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
U
1
53
4
7
$
6
!>
1
#
<
!(
$
7
4
#
6
5*
)
5,
4
#
!H
*4
P$
3
56
!M
,--
!

2
$
!1
#
<
$
*5
)
E
$
#
F!
"
#
!)
#
)
-9
6
,6
!4
:!
5/
$
!,
7
H
)
3
5!
4
:!
5/
$
6
$
!M
,--
!2
$
!

6
1
H
H
-$
7
$
#
5$
<
!2
9
!3
)
6
$
!6
51
<
,$
6
!4
#
!$
)
3
/
F!
!

! U
p

d
a
te

: 
A

c
ti

o
n

 C
o

m
p

le
te

d
.

A
 r

e
p

o
rt

 o
n

 t
h

e
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 F

u
n

d
 D

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
ti
o

n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
s
 C

a
s
e

 S
tu

d
ie

s
 o

n
 e

a
c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

je
c
ts

..
 T

h
is

 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 d

is
tr

ib
u

te
d

 t
o

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
F

ir
s
t 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

k
e

y
 s

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e
rs

.

PW
!

!!
@
5
"
$D
:
:
"
9
1
62
$;
)
C
"
&*
9
"
*
.$

:
5
)
4
6#
$T
)
&S
$T
0.
5
$K
)
9
9
4
*
0.
0"
:
$

P
0&
:
.$
?
'
&.
*
"
&:
5
0?
:
$.
)
$#
"
C
"
6)
?
$'
$

:
9
'
66
$:
"
.$
)
7$
-
)
9
9
)
*
$0
*
#
0-
'
.)
&:
$)
7$

.5
"
$"
Q
."
*
.$
.)
$T
5
0-
5
$.
5
"
$?
&)
(
&'
9
9
"
$

0:
$-
)
*
.&
01
4
.0
*
(
$.
)
$.
5
"
$0
9
?
&)
C
"
9
"
*
.:
$

0*
$)
4
.-
)
9
"
:
$7
)
&$
?
"
)
?
6"
$6
0C
0*
(
$0
*
$

K
)
9
9
4
*
0.
0"
:
$P
0&
:
.$
'
&"
'
:
U$
$@
5
"
$

D
:
:
"
9
1
62
$;
)
C
"
&*
9
"
*
.$
:
5
)
4
6#
$4
:
"
$

.5
"
:
"
$0
*
#
0-
'
.)
&:
$.
)
$0
*
7)
&9
$0
.:
$

'
:
:
"
:
:
9
"
*
.$
)
7$
.5
"
$?
&)
(
&'
9
9
"
O:
$

D
/
$
!"
6
6
$
7
2
-9
!L
4
N
$
*#
7
$
#
5!
M
,--
!*
$
N
,$
M
!5
/
$
!H
*4
3
$
6
6
!4
:!
6
$
55
,#
A
!

5/
$
!4
1
53
4
7
$
6
!4
:!
.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
H
)
*5
#
$
*6
/
,H
6
F!
;
4
*E
!,
6
!

1
#
<
$
*M
)
9
!,
#
N
4
-N
,#
A
!4
::
,3
,)
-6
!)
#
<
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
3
4
T

4
*<
,#
)
54
*6
!5
4
!<
$
N
$
-4
H
!)
!6
7
)
--!
6
$
5!
4
:!
,#
<
,3
)
54
*6
!M
/
,3
/
!M
4
1
-<
!

2
$
!)
H
H
*4
H
*,
)
5$
!:
4
*!
5/
$
!H
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
F!
!!
G#
!5
/
$
!:
,*
6
5!
,#
6
5)
#
3
$
C!

$
%
,6
5,
#
A
!7
4
<
$
-6
!M
/
,3
/
!/
)
N
$
!2
$
$
#
!<
$
N
$
-4
H
$
<
!,
#
!6
4
7
$
!-
4
3
)
-!

)
1
5/
4
*,
5,
$
6
!)
*$
!2
$
,#
A
!3
4
#
6
,<
$
*$
<
!)
6
!5
/
$
!H
4
6
6
,2
-$
!2
)
6
,6
!:
4
*!
)
!

#
)
5,
4
#
)
-!
:*
)
7
$
M
4
*E
F!

`
,#
E
$
<
!5
4
!5
/
,6
C!
.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
4
::
,3
,)
-6
!M
,--
!M
4
*E
!3
-4
6
$
-9
!

M
,5
/
!5
/
$
!"
6
6
$
7
2
-9
!L
4
N
$
*#
7
$
#
5X
6
!"
#
)
-9
5,
3
)
-!
R
$
*N
,3
$
6
!D
$
)
7
!

54
!$
#
6
1
*$
!5
/
)
5!
5/
$
!<
$
N
$
-4
H
7
$
#
5!
4
:!
)
H
H
*4
H
*,
)
5$
!,
#
<
,3
)
54
*6
!3
)
#
!

! B
@
F!
"
6
!/
,A
/
-,A
/
5$
<
!,
#
!)
3
5,
4
#
6
!h
!)
#
<
!f
!)
2
4
N
$
C!
M
4
*E
!M
,--
!2
$
!1
#
<
$
*5
)
E
$
#
!

4
#
!<
$
N
$
-4
H
,#
A
!6
$
5!
4
:!
4
1
53
4
7
$
!,
#
<
,3
)
54
*6
!5
4
!6
/
4
M
!5
/
$
!3
4
#
5*
,2
1
5,
4
#
!

.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
3
)
#
!7
)
E
$
!5
4
!,
7
H
*4
N
,#
A
!4
1
53
4
7
$
6
!:
4
*!
-4
3
)
-!
H
$
4
H
-$
F!

D
/
,6
!M
4
*E
!M
,--
!2
$
!H
,-4
5$
<
!,
#
!)
!-
4
3
)
-!
)
1
5/
4
*,
59
!)
*$
)
!)
6
!H
)
*5
!4
:!
5/
,6
!9
$
)
*X
6
!

M
4
*E
!H
-)
#
F!
"
6
!H
)
*5
!4
:!
5/
$
!4
1
53
4
7
$
!,
#
<
,3
)
54
*6
!M
4
*E
C!
4
::
,3
,)
-6
!M
,--
!M
4
*E
!

M
,5
/
!3
4
--$
)
A
1
$
6
!,
#
!5
/
$
!R
5)
5,
6
5,
3
)
-!
d
#
,5
!5
4
!H
*4
N
,<
$
!,
#
<
,3
)
54
*6
!)
5!

.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
)
*$
)
!-
$
N
$
-!
3
4
7
H
)
*$
<
!5
4
!)
--!
;
)
-$
6
F!

! U
p

d
a

te
: 

A
c

ti
o

n
 C

o
m

p
le

te
d

 (
a

n
d

 o
n

g
o

in
g

).
P

le
a

s
e

 s
e

e
 t

h
e

 u
p

d
a
te

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

a
c
ti
o

n
s
 5

 a
n

d
 6

! ! !

Page 55



(
4
3
!B
!

C
'
64
"
$7
)
&$
9
)
*
"
2
U!

$ $ $ !

,#
:4
*7
!)
#
!)
6
6
$
6
6
7
$
#
5!
4
:!
N
)
-1
$
!:
4
*!
7
4
#
$
9
F!
!!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

E
W!
!@
5
&)
4
(
5
$.
5
"
$'
*
*
4
'
6$
9
)
*
0.
)
&0
*
(
$

C
0:
0.
:
= !
.5
"
$D
:
:
"
9
1
62
$;
)
C
"
&*
9
"
*
.$

:
5
)
4
6#
$"
*
:
4
&"
$.
5
'
.$
"
'
-
5
$

?
'
&.
*
"
&:
5
0?
O:
$'
*
*
4
'
6$
.'
&(
"
.:
$-
6"
'
&6
2
$

&"
6'
."
$.
)
$.
5
"
$K
)
9
9
4
*
0.
2
$D
-
.0
)
*
$

+
6'
*
$7
)
&$
.5
"
$'
&"
'
=$
'
*
#
$-
6"
'
&6
2
$

#
"
9
)
*
:
.&
'
."
$5
)
T
$.
5
"
$?
&)
?
)
:
"
#
$

.'
&(
"
.:
$:
4
?
?
)
&.
$.
5
"
$S
"
2
$'
-
.0
)
*
:
$

.5
'
.$
.5
"
$?
'
&.
*
"
&:
5
0?
$9
4
:
.$
#
)
$.
)
$

5
"
6?
$0
9
?
&)
C
"
$)
4
.-
)
9
"
:
$7
)
&$
6)
-
'
6$

?
"
)
?
6"
U$

!

D
/
$
!"
6
6
$
7
2
-9
!L
4
N
$
*#
7
$
#
5!
<
4
$
6
C!
)
#
<
!M
,--
!3
4
#
5,
#
1
$
!5
4
C!

7
4
#
,5
4
*!
/
4
M
!5
)
*A
$
56
!*
$
-)
5$
!5
4
!5
/
$
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
9
!"
3
5,
4
#
!0
-)
#
!:
4
*!

5/
$
!)
*$
)
F!
;
$
!M
,--
!)
-6
4
!$
#
6
1
*$
!/
4
M
!5
/
$
!H
*4
H
4
6
$
<
!5
)
*A
$
56
!

6
1
H
H
4
*5
!5
/
$
!E
$
9
!)
3
5,
4
#
6
!5
/
)
5!
5/
$
!0
)
*5
#
$
*6
/
,H
!7
1
6
5!
1
#
<
$
*5
)
E
$
!

,#
!4
*<
$
*!
54
!/
$
-H
!,
7
H
*4
N
$
!4
1
53
4
7
$
6
!:
4
*!
-4
3
)
-!
H
$
4
H
-$
F!
!

!

! B
&
F!
D
/
,6
!M
,--
!2
$
!<
4
#
$
!)
6
!H
)
*5
!4
:!
5/
,6
!9
$
)
*X
6
!"
#
#
1
)
-!
+
4
#
,5
4
*,
#
A
!

H
*4
3
$
6
6
F!
(
1
*,
#
A
!5
/
$
!N
,6
,5
6
C!
4
::
,3
,)
-6
!M
,--
!)
6
E
!/
4
M
!0
)
*5
#
$
*6
/
,H
6
X!
)
#
#
1
)
-!

5)
*A
$
56
!/
$
-H
!,
7
H
*4
N
$
!4
1
53
4
7
$
6
!:
4
*!
-4
3
)
-!
H
$
4
H
-$
F!
!

! U
p

d
a
te

: 
A

c
ti

o
n

 C
o

m
p

le
te

d
.

V
ir
tu

a
lly

 a
ll 

A
M

R
 v

is
it
s
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

w
 b

e
e

n
 u

n
d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
. 

O
n

ly
 4

 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
b

e
e
n

 v
is

it
e

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 f

a
c
t 

th
a

t 
lo

c
a

l 
c
ir
c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 p
re

v
e

n
te

d
 i
t.

 

U
p

d
a

te
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

2
A

M
R

 f
o

r 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 w

a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

a
n
d

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 S

ta
ts

 
W

a
le

s
 W

e
b
s
it
e

. 
 A

M
R

’s
 f

o
r 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1
1

 –
S

e
p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2
 a

re
 d

u
e

 t
o

 
b

e
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 t
h

e
 W

e
ls

h
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
in

 A
u

g
u

s
t 

2
0
1

2
. !

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 2

. 
In

 a
d

d
re

s
s
in

g
 

th
e
 A

u
d

it
o

r 
G

e
n

e
ra

l’s
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
, 

w
e

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
 

th
a
t 

th
e
 W

e
ls

h
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
in

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

s
 e

x
p

lic
it
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

in
to

 i
ts

 p
o

lic
y
 

g
a
te

w
a

y
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 w

it
h

 i
m

m
e

d
ia

te
 

e
ff
e

c
t.

 I
t 

s
h

o
u

ld
 a

ls
o

 d
e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 

m
e
c
h

a
n

is
m

 t
o

 r
e

a
s
s
e

s
s
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 

p
o
lic

e
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a
t,

 w
h

e
re

v
e

r 

D
/
$
!"
6
6
$
7
2
-9
!L
4
N
$
*#
7
$
#
5X
6
!b
0
4
-,3
9
!L
)
5$
M
)
9
c!
H
*4
3
$
6
6
!#
4
M
!

,#
3
4
*H
4
*)
5$
6
!$
%
H
-,3
,5
!3
4
#
6
,<
$
*)
5,
4
#
!4
:!
.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5F
!

8
$
M
!H
4
-,3
,$
6
!M
,--
!/
)
N
$
!5
4
!6
/
4
M
!/
4
M
!5
/
$
9
!)
*$
!5
)
*A
$
5,
#
A
!

.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
)
*$
)
6
!)
#
<
!-
,#
E
,#
A
!M
,5
/
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!

0
)
*5
#
$
*6
/
,H
6
F!
!

U
::
,3
,)
-6
!M
,--
!)
-6
4
!M
4
*E
!M
,5
/
!4
5/
$
*!
H
4
-,3
9
!<
,N
,6
,4
#
6
!5
4
!$
#
6
1
*$
!

5/
)
5!
$
%
,6
5,
#
A
!H
4
-,3
,$
6
!)
*$
!:
4
3
1
6
$
<
!4
#
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!

! B
B
F!
"
6
!<
$
5)
,-$
<
!,
#
!)
3
5,
4
#
6
!&
!)
#
<
!B
C!
.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
M
,--
!2
$
!,
#
3
-1
<
$
<
!

,#
!5
/
$
!0
4
-,3
9
!L
)
5$
M
)
9
!H
*4
3
$
6
6
!)
#
<
C!
)
6
!H
)
*5
!4
:!
5/
,6
C!
)
!0
4
-,3
9
!

G#
5$
A
*)
5,
4
#
!5
4
4
-!
M
,--
!2
$
!<
$
N
$
-4
H
$
<
!,
#
!3
-4
6
$
!3
4
--)
2
4
*)
5,
4
#
!M
,5
/
!5
/
$
!

.
/
,-<
!0
4
N
$
*5
9
!d
#
,5
F!
D
/
,6
!M
,--
!$
#
6
1
*$
!5
/
)
5!
)
--!
:1
51
*$
!H
4
-,3
,$
6
!)
#
<
!

H
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
6
!M
,--
!/
)
N
$
!5
4
!6
/
4
M
!5
/
$
!,
7
H
)
3
5!
5/
$
9
!/
)
N
$
!4
#
!)
--$
N
,)
5,
#
A
!

H
4
N
$
*5
9
F!
!

! U
p

d
a
te

: 
A

c
ti

o
n

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 (

a
n

d
 o

n
g

o
in

g
).

P
le

a
s
e

 s
e

e
 u

p
d

a
te

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

a
c
ti
o

n
s
 1

 a
n

d
 2

Page 56



(
4
3
!B
!

p
o
s
s
ib

le
, 
th

e
y
 t

a
k
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t.

 I
n

 r
e

v
ie

w
in

g
 i
ts

 
p

o
lic

ie
s
, 

th
e
 W

e
ls

h
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 m

in
d
fu

l 
o

f 
th

e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 

th
is

 p
re

s
e

n
ts

 t
o
 r

e
fo

c
u

s
 i
ts

 s
ta

ff
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
o

e
n
c
o

u
ra

g
e
 a

 m
o
re

 j
o

in
e

d
-u

p
 

a
p
p

ro
a

c
h

. 
W

e
 a

s
k
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 W

e
ls

h
 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
p
ro

v
id

e
s
 u

s
 w

it
h

 a
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 r

e
p
o

rt
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 n

e
x
t 

1
2

 
m

o
n

th
s
. 

)
*$
)
6
F!
"
#
!1
H
<
)
5$
!*
$
H
4
*5
!M
,--
!2
$
!H
*4
N
,<
$
<
!,
#
!&
B
!7
4
#
5/
6
F!

!

! ! ! B
'
F!
_
%
,6
5,
#
A
!H
4
-,3
,$
6
!M
,--
!2
$
!)
6
6
$
6
6
$
<
!5
4
!-
4
4
E
!)
5!
5/
$
,*
!H
*,
4
*,
5,
6
)
5,
4
#
!4
:!

.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5F
!"
!-
,6
5!
4
:!
5/
4
6
$
!H
4
-,3
,$
6
!)
#
<
!H
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
6
!M
,5
/
!

6
H
$
3
,:
,3
!*
$
:$
*$
#
3
$
!5
4
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
M
,--
!2
$
!H
*4
N
,<
$
<
F !

! ! ! U
p

d
a
te

: 
A

c
ti

o
n

 C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 (

a
n

d
 O

n
g

o
in

g
)

M
a
n

y
 e

x
a

m
p

le
s
 o

f 
p

ri
o
ri

ti
s
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

w
e

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

in
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 M

in
is

te
r’

s
 l
e

tt
e

r 
to

 o
th

e
r 

M
in

is
te

rs
 a

n
d
 D

e
p

u
ty

 
M

in
is

te
rs

.
S

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 e
x
a

m
p

le
s
 a

re
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 b

e
lo

w
:

T
h

e
 r

e
c
e

n
tl
y
 l
a

u
n

c
h

e
d
 C

h
ild

 P
o

v
e

rt
y
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 r

e
a
ff

ir
m

s
 t

h
e

 
A

s
s
e

m
b

ly
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t’
s
 a

b
s
o

lu
te

 c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
to

 e
ra

d
ic

a
te

 c
h

ild
 

p
o
v
e

rt
y
 b

y
2

0
2

0
 a

n
d

 d
e
tr

im
e

n
t 

to
 t
h

is
 i
s
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 o
f 

o
u

r 
m

o
s
t 

d
is

a
d
v
a

n
ta

g
e

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 n

a
rr

o
w

in
g
 t

h
e
 i
n

e
q
u

a
lit

y
 g

a
p

 
in

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 f

o
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 l
iv

in
g

 b
o

th
 i
n

 t
h

e
s
e

 d
e

p
ri
v
e

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 

a
n
d

 e
ls

e
w

h
e
re

. 
 

W
e

 w
ill

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 m

o
v
e

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

to
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
k
e

y
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

o
s
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

h
ild

 
P

o
v
e

rt
y
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
, 

a
n
d

 e
n
s
u

re
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 h
a
v
e

 a
 s

a
y
 i
n

 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
a

ff
e

c
t 

th
e

m
. 
 T

h
e

 A
s
s
e

m
b

ly
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
is

 w
o

rk
in

g
 

to
g
e

th
e
r 

to
 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

in
te

g
ra

ti
n

g
 o

u
r 

w
o

rk
, 

re
d

u
c
in

g
 

d
u
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
o

u
r 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
s
. 

 T
h

is
 w

ill
 h

e
lp

 e
n
s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

w
e

 w
o

rk
 c

o
lle

c
ti
v
e

ly
 t

o
 

b
e
n

e
fi
t 

o
u
r 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
, 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 t
h

o
s
e

 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 t
h

e
 m

o
s
t 

d
e
p

ri
v
e

d
.

U
p

d
a

te
J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

2
T

h
e

T
a

c
k
lin

g
 P

o
v
e

rt
y
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
, 

w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 b
e

 l
a

u
n

c
h

e
d

 
s
h

o
rt

ly
, 

n
o

w
 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

s
 t

h
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 C
h

ild
P

o
v
e

rt
y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 F
ro

m
 1

 A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
2

 C
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 a
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

Page 57



(
4
3
!B
!

fo
c
u

s
s
e

d
 T

a
c
k
lin

g
 P

o
v
e

rt
y
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 2

0
1

2
.

A
n

o
th

e
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
a

n
 a

re
a

 t
h

a
t 

p
ri

o
ri
ti
s
e

s
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

is
 t

h
e

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 F

o
o

d
 C

o
-o

p
e
ra

ti
v
e

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

h
ic

h
 a

im
s
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 

a
n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e

d
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 t
o
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 f

o
o

d
 c

o
-o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

s
 i
n

 
W

a
le

s
. 

P
a

rt
 o

f 
A

s
s
e

m
b

ly
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t’
s
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
o
n

 t
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

(w
it
h

 t
h

e
 R

u
ra

l 
R

e
g

e
n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 U

n
it
) 

is
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 g

e
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
a

l 
c
o

v
e

ra
g

e
 

o
f 
F

o
o

d
 C

o
-o

p
e
ra

ti
v
e

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 W

a
le

s
 m

u
s
t 

b
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 -

w
it
h

 a
 

m
in

im
u

m
 o

f 
7

5
%

 o
f 

th
e

m
 b

e
in

g
 i
n

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
F

ir
s
t 

a
re

a
s
. 

C
lo

s
e

 
lin

k
s
 h

a
v
e

 a
ls

o
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
e

d
 w

it
h

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
.

O
ff

ic
ia

ls
 a

re
 a

ls
o

 w
o

rk
in

g
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 w

it
h

 c
o

lle
a

g
u

e
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 D

e
p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t,

 S
u

s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
th

a
t 

lin
k
s
 

a
re

 m
a

d
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 t
h

e
 S

tr
a

te
g
ic

 R
e

g
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 A

re
a

s
 (

S
R

A
s
) 

a
n

d
 

th
e
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
. 

F
o

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
, 

a
 

S
e

m
in

a
r

w
a

s
 h

e
ld

 w
h

ic
h

 b
ro

u
g

h
t 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

o
ff

ic
ia

ls
 m

a
n

a
g

in
g
 t

h
e
 

d
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
th

e
 W

e
s
te

rn
 V

a
lle

y
s
 S

R
A

 w
it
h

 S
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 C
h
a

ir
s
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

re
a
. 

A
s
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 i
n

 a
c
ti
o

n
 4

, 
tw

o
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 l
in

k
in

g
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

to
 t

h
e

 S
R

A
s
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

w
 b

e
e

n
 

a
p
p

ro
v
e

d
.

O
ff

ic
ia

ls
 h

a
v
e

 w
o

rk
e

d
 w

it
h

 c
o

lle
a

g
u

e
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 D
e

p
a
rt

m
e

n
t 
fo

r 
C

h
ild

re
n

, 
E

d
u
c
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 L
if
e

lo
n

g
 L

e
a
rn

in
g

 t
o
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 h
o

w
 C

F
 a

n
d
 

th
e
 N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
Y

o
u
th

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 c

a
n
 b

e
 a

lig
n
e

d
 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 

e
n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t,
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
a
c
t 

fo
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 b
e
tw

e
e

n
 1

1
 

a
n
d

 2
5
 i
n

 p
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
e

d
u
c
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

in
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
F

ir
s
t 

a
re

a
s
. 

 

O
ff

ic
ia

ls
 h

a
v
e

 w
o

rk
e

d
 w

it
h

 c
o

lle
a

g
u

e
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 D
e

p
a
rt

m
e

n
t 
fo

r 
C

h
ild

re
n

, 
E

d
u
c
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 L
if
e

lo
n

g
 L

e
a
rn

in
g

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u
ti
n

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

  
A

d
u

lt
 

a
n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 P

o
lic

y
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d
 a

ls
o

 h
e

ld
 

d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h

 D
C

E
L

L
S

 c
o

lle
a
g

u
e
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 N

E
E

T
S

 a
g

e
n

d
a

 w
h

ic
h

 
re

s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

fu
n

d
in

g
 b

e
in

g
 u

s
e

d
 t

o
 m

a
tc

h
 f

u
n

d
 

w
o

rk
 t

o
 t

a
rg

e
t 

Y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h
o

 a
re

 N
E

E
T

, 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 i
n

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

a
re

a
s
.

Page 58



(
4
3
!B
!

O
ff

ic
ia

ls
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

c
e

n
tl
y
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 o
u

tl
in

in
g

 t
h
e

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

e
n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 h
ig

h
lig

h
ti
n

g
 g

o
o

d
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 e
x
a

m
p

le
s
 o

f 
jo

in
t 

w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 W

C
V

A
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
A

g
e

n
c
y
. 

O
ff

ic
ia

ls
 h

a
v
e

 w
o

rk
e

d
w

it
h

 c
o

lle
a

g
u

e
s
 i
n

  
th

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 

D
iv

is
io

n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
c
e

 m
is

u
s
e

 a
g

e
n

d
a

 r
e

s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n

  
a

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u
ti
o

n
 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e

 S
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e

 M
is

u
s
e

 A
c
ti
o

n
 F

u
n

d
 (

S
M

A
F

) 
 t

o
 t

h
e

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 F

u
n

d
 ‘
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 A

g
a

in
s
t 

D
ru

g
s
’ 

P
ro

je
c
t’
 i
n

 N
e

a
th

 P
o

rt
 T

a
lb

o
t.

A
 l
is

t 
o
f 

th
o
s
e

 p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 t
o

 C
o

m
m

u
n
it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

is
 a

tt
a

c
h

e
d

 a
t 

A
n

n
e

x
 A

.!
!

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 3

. 
W

e
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n
d

 
th

a
t,

 i
n

 m
e
e

ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 A

u
d

it
o

r 
G

e
n
e

ra
l’s

 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 W

e
ls

h
 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
n
e

e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt

e
r 

e
n
c
o

u
ra

g
e
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

p
u
b

lic
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 
th

e
ir
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 f

o
c
u

s
 o

n
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

a
re

a
s
, 

th
e

 W
e

ls
h

 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
s
h

o
u

ld
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

th
e

 
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
to

 e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

b
e
n

d
in

g
 b

o
th

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 i
n

c
e

n
ti
v
is

a
ti
o

n
 

a
n
d

 d
ir
e

c
ti
o

n
 -

a
 c

a
rr

o
t 
a

n
d
 s

ti
c
k
 

a
p
p

ro
a

c
h

. 

;
$
!)
*$
!$
%
H
-4
*,
#
A
!5
/
$
!2
$
6
5!
7
$
)
#
6
C!
5/
*4
1
A
/
!,
#
3
$
#
5,
N
,6
)
5,
4
#
!

)
#
<
!<
,*
$
3
5,
4
#
C!
4
:!
<
*)
M
,#
A
!5
/
$
!)
55
$
#
5,
4
#
!4
:!
-4
3
)
-!
)
1
5/
4
*,
5,
$
6
!

)
#
<
!4
5/
$
*!
6
$
*N
,3
$
!H
*4
N
,<
$
*6
!5
4
!5
/
$
!#
$
$
<
!5
4
!H
*,
4
*,
5,
6
$
!

.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
)
*$
)
6
!,
#
!5
/
$
!H
-)
#
#
,#
A
!)
#
<
!<
$
-,N
$
*9
!4
:!
5/
$
,*
!

6
$
*N
,3
$
6
F!
D
/
$
!H
4
5$
#
5,
)
-!
:4
*!
5/
$
7
!M
4
*E
,#
A
!3
-4
6
$
-9
!M
,5
/
!

.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
0
)
*5
#
$
*6
/
,H
6
!5
/
*4
1
A
/
!5
/
$
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!

>
,*
6
5!
U
1
53
4
7
$
6
!>
1
#
<
!M
,--
!)
-6
4
!2
$
!$
7
H
/
)
6
,6
$
<
F!
!

!

! B
e
F!
"
6
!<
$
5)
,-$
<
!,
#
!)
3
5,
4
#
!Y
!)
2
4
N
$
C!
5/
$
!+
,#
,6
5$
*!
:4
*!
R
4
3
,)
-!
^
1
6
5,
3
$
!)
#
<
!

`
4
3
)
-!
L
4
N
$
*#
7
$
#
5!
M
,--
!M
*,
5$
!5
4
!)
--!
`
4
3
)
-!
"
1
5/
4
*,
5,
$
6
!)
#
<
!4
5/
$
*!
H
1
2
-,3
!

6
$
*N
,3
$
!<
$
-,N
$
*$
*6
!*
$
I
1
$
6
5,
#
A
!5
/
$
7
!5
4
!6
/
4
M
!/
4
M
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!

M
,--
!2
$
!A
,N
$
#
!)
!H
*,
4
*,
59
!,
#
!5
/
$
,*
!)
*$
)
6
F!
!

! U
p

d
a
te

: 
A

c
ti

o
n

 C
o

m
p

le
te

d
.

P
le

a
s
e

 s
e

e
 u

p
d

a
te

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

a
c
ti
o

n
 8

 a
b

o
v
e

!

Page 59



(
4
3
!B
!

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 4

. 
W

e
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n
d

th
a
t,

 i
n

 m
e
e

ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 A

u
d

it
o

r 
G

e
n
e

ra
l’s

 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
, 

th
e

 W
e

ls
h

 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
c
le

a
rl
y
 o

u
tl
in

e
s
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
 

m
o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

m
e
a

s
u

re
s
 t

h
a
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 u
s
e

d
 t

o
 

d
e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 
th

e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
.$

D
/
$
!7
4
#
,5
4
*,
#
A
!M
,--
!2
$
!,
7
H
*4
N
$
<
!2
9
!*
$
N
,$
M
,#
A
!/
4
M
!M
$
!

,<
$
#
5,
:9
!5
/
$
!4
1
53
4
7
$
6
!4
:!
.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
H
)
*5
#
$
*6
/
,H
6
F!

;
4
*E
!,
6
!1
#
<
$
*M
)
9
!,
#
N
4
-N
,#
A
!4
::
,3
,)
-6
!)
#
<
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!

3
4
T4
*<
,#
)
54
*6
!5
4
!<
$
N
$
-4
H
!)
!6
7
)
--!
6
$
5!
4
:!
,#
<
,3
)
54
*6
!M
/
,3
/
!

M
4
1
-<
!2
$
!)
H
H
*4
H
*,
)
5$
!:
4
*!
5/
$
!H
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
F!
!!
R
$
$
!)
-6
4
!

*$
6
H
4
#
6
$
!5
4
!*
$
3
4
7
7
$
#
<
)
5,
4
#
!V
PW
F!

D
/
$
!$
%
5$
*#
)
-!
$
N
)
-1
)
5,
4
#
!4
:!
5/
$
!H
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
C!
M
/
,3
/
!M
,--
!2
$
!

1
#
<
$
*5
)
E
$
#
!<
1
*,
#
A
!B
@
&
@
T&
&
C!
M
,--
!,
#
3
-1
<
$
!)
#
!)
6
6
$
6
6
7
$
#
5!
4
:!

5/
$
!3
4
7
H
)
*)
5,
N
$
!4
1
53
4
7
$
6
!2
$
5M
$
$
#
!.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!

)
*$
)
6
!)
#
<
!4
5/
$
*!
H
)
*5
6
!4
:!
;
)
-$
6
F!

! B
h
F!
"
6
!/
,A
/
-,A
/
5$
<
!,
#
!$
)
*-
,$
*!
)
3
5,
4
#
6
C!
5/
,6
!M
,--
!2
$
!1
#
<
$
*5
)
E
$
#
!5
/
*4
1
A
/
!

5/
$
!<
$
N
$
-4
H
7
$
#
5!
4
:!
)
!6
7
)
--!
6
$
5!
4
:!
,#
<
,3
)
54
*6
!)
#
<
!)
-6
4
!5
/
$
!,
#
:4
*7
)
5,
4
#
!

A
)
5/
$
*$
<
!)
5!
.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
)
*$
)
!-
$
N
$
-F
! !

! U
p

d
a
te

: 
A

c
ti

o
n

 C
o

m
p

le
te

d
.

P
le

a
s
e

 s
e

e
 u

p
d

a
te

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

a
c
ti
o

n
 5

 a
b

o
v
e

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 5

. 
W

e
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n
d

 
th

a
t 

th
e
 W

e
ls

h
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
c
lo

s
e

ly
 

m
o
n

it
o

rs
 t

h
e

 O
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 F

u
n

d
, 

a
n

d
 

th
a
t 

it
 e

n
s
u

re
s
 t

h
a

t 
it
 i
s
 a

b
le

 t
o
 

d
e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

 h
a
rd

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
is

 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
o

f 
p
u

b
lic

 m
o

n
e
y
 t

h
a

t 
d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
. 

W
e

 a
s
k
 

th
a
t 

th
e
 W

e
ls

h
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
v
id

e
s
 

u
s
 w

it
h

 a
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 r

e
p
o

rt
, 

a
n

d
 d

e
ta

ils
 

o
f 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

-l
e

v
e

l 
m

o
v
e

m
e

n
t 

to
w

a
rd

s
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 w

it
h

in
 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 

1
2

 m
o

n
th

s
. 

D
/
$
!"
6
6
$
7
2
-9
!L
4
N
$
*#
7
$
#
5!
,6
!3
-4
6
$
-9
!7
4
#
,5
4
*,
#
A
!5
/
$
!

U
1
53
4
7
$
6
!>
1
#
<
F!
_
)
3
/
!)
H
H
-,3
)
5,
4
#
!5
/
)
5!
,6
!)
H
H
*4
N
$
<
!/
)
6
!5
4
!

<
$
7
4
#
6
5*
)
5$
!3
-$
)
*!
4
1
53
4
7
$
6
!)
6
!5
4
!/
4
M
!5
/
$
!M
4
*E
!M
,--
!2
$
#
$
:,
5!

5/
$
!3
4
7
7
1
#
,5
9
F!
U
#
3
$
!)
#
!)
H
H
-,3
)
5,
4
#
!,
6
!)
H
H
*4
N
$
<
C!
,5
6
!

,7
H
-$
7
$
#
5)
5,
4
#
!,
6
!7
4
#
,5
4
*$
<
!3
-4
6
$
-9
!2
9
!5
/
$
!;
$
-6
/
!"
6
6
$
7
2
-9
!

L
4
N
$
*#
7
$
#
5F
!

! "
!H
*4
A
*$
6
6
!*
$
H
4
*5
!4
#
!5
/
$
!U
1
53
4
7
$
6
!>
1
#
<
!M
,--
!2
$
!H
*4
N
,<
$
<
!

M
,5
/
,#
!5
/
$
!#
$
%
5!
&
B
!7
4
#
5/
6
F !

!

B
f
F!
"
6
!<
$
5)
,-$
<
!,
#
!)
3
5,
4
#
!&
?
C!
)
#
!)
6
6
$
6
6
7
$
#
5!
4
:!
5/
$
!,
7
H
)
3
5!
4
:!
5/
$
!

.
4
7
7
1
#
,5
,$
6
!>
,*
6
5!
U
1
53
4
7
$
6
!>
1
#
<
!(
$
7
4
#
6
5*
)
5,
4
#
!H
*4
P$
3
56
!M
,--
!2
$
!

1
#
<
$
*5
)
E
$
#
F!
"
#
!)
#
)
-9
6
,6
!4
:!
5/
$
!,
7
H
)
3
5!
4
:!
5/
$
6
$
!M
,--
!2
$
!6
1
H
H
-$
7
$
#
5$
<
!

2
9
!3
)
6
$
!6
51
<
,$
6
!4
#
!$
)
3
/
C!
)
#
<
!5
/
$
6
$
!M
,--
!2
$
!<
,6
6
$
7
,#
)
5$
<
F!

! U
p

d
a
te

: 
A

c
ti

o
n

 C
o

m
p

le
te

d
.

A
 r

e
p

o
rt

 o
n

 t
h

e
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 F

u
n

d
 D

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
ti
o

n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
s
 C

a
s
e

 S
tu

d
ie

s
 o

n
 e

a
c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

je
c
ts

..
 T

h
is

 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 d

is
tr

ib
u

te
d

 t
o

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

k
e

y
s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e
rs

.

T
o

 d
a

te
 5

0
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 F

u
n

d
 A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
.
fo

r
p

ro
je

c
ts

 t
o

 b
e
 r

u
n
 d

u
ri
n

g
 2

0
0

9
 –

2
0
1

2
. 
 T

h
is

 f
ig

u
re

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 t

h
e

 
d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
ti
o

n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

. 
 T

h
e

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 h
a
v
e

 c
o

v
e

re
d

 a
ll 

th
e
m

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 F

ir
s
t 

V
is

io
n

 F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
.

! ! ! B
[
F!
"
!:
1
--!
*$
H
4
*5
!4
#
!H
*4
A
*$
6
6
!)
A
)
,#
6
5!
5/
$
!0
1
2
-,3
!"
3
3
4
1
#
56
!

.
4
7
7
,5
5$
$
X6
!*
$
3
4
7
7
$
#
<
)
5,
4
#
6
!M
,--
!2
$
!6
1
2
7
,5
5$
<
!2
9
!+
)
*3
/
!B
@
&
&
F!
!

!

Page 60



(
4
3
!B
!

U
p

d
a

te
: 

A
c

ti
o

n
 C

o
m

p
le

te
d

.!
!

Page 61



"##$%!h!

Page 62



"##$%!h!

Page 63



! &!

"##$%!h!
!
;)-$6!"1<,5!U::,3$!Q$H4*5Z!"35,4#6!>4--4M,#A!5/$!"1<,54*!
L$#$*)-m6!*$H4*5Z!bK416,#A!R$*N,3$6!:4*!"<1-56!M,5/!+$#5)-!
K$)-5/!8$$<6c!
!
dH<)5$!4#!"35,4#!D)E$#!
!
J*.&)#4-.0)*$
!
D/,6!<4317$#5!H*4N,<$6!)#!1H<)5$!4#!)35,4#!5)E$#!)#<S4*!,#!/)#<!,#!*$6H4#6$!
54!5/$!"1<,54*!L$#$*)-m6!*$H4*5!4#!nK416,#A!R$*N,3$6!:4*!"<1-56!M,5/!+$#5)-!
K$)-5/!8$$<6mF!D/$!1H<)5$!,6!65*1351*$<!)*41#<!5/$!*$3477$#<)5,4#6!,#!5/$!
"1<,54*!L$#$*)-m6!*$H4*5!V,5$76!&TYW!)#<!5/$!012-,3!"3341#56!.477,55$$!
*$H4*5!V,5$7?W!

!
!"-)99"*#'.0)*$ D-.0)*$.'S"*$)&$0*$5'*#$'*#$'##0.0)*'6$-)99"*.:$

[*).":$

&! ;$!*$3477$#<!5/)5!5/$!
"66$72-9!L4N$*#7$#5Z!

!

)! ,661$6!6H$3,:,3!A1,<)#3$!
54!*$-$N)#5!-43)-!
)A$#3,$6!5/)5!7)E$6!
3-$)*!,56!31**$#5!
$%H$35)5,4#6!4:!5/$7!54!
<$-,N$*!5/$!>*)7$M4*Em6!
/416,#A!5)*A$56O!

·! D/$!.4<$!4:!L1,<)#3$!:4*!`43)-!"15/4*,5,$6!4#!
"--43)5,4#!4:!"334774<)5,4#!)#<!K47$-$66#$66!M)6!
612P$35!54!:1--!34#61-5)5,4#!,#!B@&&F!D/$!415347$!4:!
5/$!34#61-5)5,4#!M)6!34#6,<$*$<!,#!<$5),-!M,5/!
65)E$/4-<$*6C!)#<!34#6,<$*$<!,#!5/$!-,A/5!4:!*$3$#5!
*$6$)*3/!4#!5/$!,7H-$7$#5)5,4#!4:!31**$#5!-$A,6-)5,4#F!
D/$!*$N,6$<!.4<$!,6!#4M!2$,#A!:,#)-,6$<!5)E,#A!
)3341#5!4:!5/$!#$M!H4-,39!:*)7$M4*E!:4*!7$#5)-!
/$)-5/C!)#<!M,--!2$!*$)<9!:4*!H12-,3)5,4#!,#!6177$*!
B@&BF!

!

·! +$#5)-!/$)-5/!$-$7$#56!4:!5/$!.4<$!/)N$!2$$#!
65*$#A5/$#$<!,#!-,#$!M,5/!3477$#56!M,5/,#!5/$!;"U!
*$H4*5F!G5!$7H/)6,6$6!5/$!#$$<!:4*!P4,#5!H-)##,#A!
)**)#A$7$#56!2$5M$$#!/416,#A!)#<!7$#5)-!/$)-5/!
6$*N,3$6!)#<!/)6!5)E$#!)3341#5!4:!6126$I1$#5!
<$N$-4H7$#56C!M/,3/!,#3-1<$!5/$!+$#5)-!K$)-5/!
V;)-$6W!+$)61*$!B@&@!)#<!5/$!<*):5!+$#5)-!K$)-5/!
)#<!;$--2$,#A!R5*)5$A9F!

!

·! Together for Mental Health - A Cross-Government 
Strategy for Mental Health and Wellbeing in Wales!
M)6!-)1#3/$<!:4*!)!&BTM$$E!34#61-5)5,4#!4#!Y!+)9!
B@&BC!3-46,#A!4#!'&!^1-9C!)#<!61H$*3$<$6!5/$!B@@h!
8)5,4#)-!R$*N,3$!>*)7$M4*E!:4*!"<1-5!+$#5)-!K$)-5/!
R$*N,3$6 )#<!5/$!65*)5$A,$6!:4*!)<1-5!7$#5)-!/$)-5/!
)#<!3/,-<*$#S941#A!H$4H-$m6!7$#5)-!/$)-5/C!4*,A,#)--9!
*$-$)6$<!,#!B@@&F !

!

Page 64



! B!

!"-)99"*#'.0)*$ D-.0)*$.'S"*$)&$0*$5'*#$'*#$'##0.0)*'6$-)99"*.:$
[*).":$

·! D/$!"1<,54*!L$#$*)-m6!*$3477$#<)5,4#6!4#!5/$!
8)5,4#)-!R$*N,3$!>*)7$M4*E!/)N$!2$$#!5)E$#!,#54!
)3341#5!,#!5/$!H*4H46$<!415347$6!,# Together for 
Mental Health. !D/$!:,#)-!65*)5$A9!M,--!2$!61HH4*5$<!29!
)!<$5),-$<!<$-,N$*9!H-)#C!M/,3/!M,--!2$!<$N$-4H$<!4N$*!
5/$!6177$*!VB@&BW!)#<!M,--!,#3-1<$!E$9!<$-,N$*)2-$6!
)#<!7$)61*)2-$!415347$6!:4*!6$*N,3$!16$*6!)#<!5/$,*!
:)7,-,$6!)#<!3)*$*6F!G5!M,--!$#61*$!65)5154*9!24<,$6C!
5/,*<!6$354*!4*A)#,6)5,4#6C!)#<C!7465!,7H4*5)#5-9C!
6$*N,3$!16$*6!)#<!3)*$*6C!)*$!:1--9!,#N4-N$<!,#!H-)##,#A!
)#<!<$3,6,4#!7)E,#AF!!"!#$M!8)5,4#)-!0)*5#$*6/,H!
=4)*<!i!,#N4-N,#A!)--!6$354*6!)#<!)A$#3,$6C!,#3-1<,#A!
/416,#A!T!M,--!2$!$65)2-,6/$<!54!4N$*6$$!5/$!<$-,N$*9!4:!
)#!)35,4#!H-)#!)#<!74#,54*!H*4A*$66!)A),#65!5/$!
415347$!7$)61*$7$#5!:*)7$M4*EF!!

!

·! D/$!+$#5)-!K$)-5/!V;)-$6W!+$)61*$!B@&@!.)*$!)#<!
D*$)57$#5!H*43$66!,#34*H4*)5$6!)!:4*7)-!*$I1,*$7$#5!
54!1#<$*5)E$!/4-,65,3!)66$667$#56!4:!#$$<O!
)334774<)5,4#!#$$<6!)*$!6H$3,:,$<!)6!4#$!613/!)*$)!
:4*!)66$667$#5F!!D/$!+$)61*$!)#<!0)*56!B!)#<!'!
34N$*,#A!3)*$!)#<!5*$)57$#5!H-)##,#A!)#<!*,A/56!54!
*$)66$667$#5!4#!<,63/)*A$!M$*$!3477$#3$<!4#!f!
^1#$!B@&B!)#<!5/$!)6643,)5$<!.4<$!4:!0*)35,3$!M)6!
-)1#3/$<!4#!&&!^1#$!B@&BF!!

!

·! D/$!-$A,6-)5,4#!)6H$356!4:!5/$!*$N,6$<!.4<$!4:!
0*)35,3$!:4*!0)*56!B!)#<!'!4:!5/$!+$)61*$!)*$!2$,#A!
:,#)-,6$<!H*,4*!54!H12-,3)5,4#!5/,6!6177$*F!D/$!*$N,6,4#!
54!5/$!.4<$!)#<!5/$!34#61-5)5,4#!*$6H4#6$6!/)6!)-64!
,#:4*7$<!5/,#E,#A!4#!-$A,6-)5,4#!H*4H46)-6!:4*!
/47$-$66#$66C!M/,3/!M$*$!,#3-1<$<!,#!5/$!;/,5$!
0)H$*!H12-,6/$<!4#!B&!+)9!B@&BF!!

!

2! $72$<6!5/$!
3477,57$#56!4:!5/$!
8)5,4#)-!R$*N,3$!
>*)7$M4*E!M,5/,#!
*$-$N)#5!-43)-!)15/4*,59!
/416,#A!)#<!/416,#A!
)6643,)5,4#!A1,<)#3$O!

!
R$$!)24N$!4#!5/$!612P$35!4:!A1,<)#3$!54!-43)-!)15/4*,5,$6!
)#<!/416,#A!)6643,)5,4#6F!D/$!8)5,4#)-!R$*N,3$!
>*)7$M4*E!*)#!:*47!B@@h!54!B@&BC!64!31**$#5!!
3477,57$#56!)*$!#4M!H-)##$<!:4*!5/$!7$#5)-!/$)-5/!)#<!
M$--2$,#A!65*)5$A9!<$-,N$*9!H-)#!
!

·! Q$3477$#<)5,4#6!4:!5/$!,#<$H$#<$#5!*$N,$M!4:!5/$!
R1HH4*5,#A!0$4H-$!H*4A*)77$!/)N$!2$$#!
,7H-$7$#5$<F!D/$!0*4A*)77$!L*)#5!L1,<)#3$!M,--!2$!
H12-,6/$<!5/,6!6177$*F!G5!6$56!415!5/$!)**)#A$7$#56!
:4*!H-)##,#A!)#<!3477,66,4#,#A!R1HH4*5,#A!0$4H-$!
:1#<,#AF!D/$!#$M!A1,<)#3$!6H$3,:,$6!5/)5!-43)-!
)15/4*,59!R1HH4*5,#A!0$4H-$!5$)76!M,--!M4*E!,#!
H)*5#$*6/,H!4#!)!*$A,4#)-!2)6,6!)<N,6,#A!Q$A,4#)-!
.4--)24*)5,N$!.477,55$$6!4#!-43)-!)#<!*$A,4#)-!
3477,66,4#,#AF!D/$!Q$A,4#)-!.477,55$$6!M,--!/)N$!
*$H*$6$#5)5,N$6!:*47!-43)-!)15/4*,5,$6C!5/$!N4-1#5)*9!

Page 65



! '!

!"-)99"*#'.0)*$ D-.0)*$.'S"*$)&$0*$5'*#$'*#$'##0.0)*'6$-)99"*.:$
[*).":$

6$354*C!-)#<-4*<6!)#<!5/$!K$)-5/!6$354*F!D/$!A1,<)#3$!
7)E$6!6H$3,:,3!*$:$*$#3$!54!5/$!#$$<!54!34#6,<$*!
7$#5)-!/$)-5/!65)E$/4-<$*6!,#!3477,66,4#,#A!
<$3,6,4#6F!

!

3! 7)E$6!)#<!5)E$6!45/$*!
4HH4*51#,5,$6!54!*),6$!
)M)*$#$66!)74#A65!5/$!
*$-$N)#5!-43)-!)A$#3,$6!
4:!,56!$%H$35)5,4#6!4:!
5/$7!,#!<$-,N$*,#A!5/$!
8)5,4#)-!R$*N,3$!
>*)7$M4*E!
3477,57$#56O!

·! D/$!H12-,3)5,4#!4:!5/$!;"U!*$H4*5!)#<!5/$!0".!
6$66,4#!/)6!*$61-5$<!,#!,#3*$)6$<!34#6,<$*)5,4#!4:!
6$*N,3$6!:4*!H$4H-$!M,5/!7$#5)-!/$)-5/!#$$<6!29!-43)-!
)15/4*,5,$6C!/416,#A!)6643,)5,4#6C!)#<!/416,#AT*$-)5$<!
61HH4*5!4*A)#,6)5,4#6F!D/$!*$H4*5!M)6!)!H*47,#$#5!
:$)51*$!)5!5/$!)##1)-!34#:$*$#3$!4*A)#,6$<!29!
.974*5/!:4*!4*A)#,6)5,4#6!M4*E,#A!M,5/!/47$-$66!
H$4H-$F!

!

·! D/$!K416,#A!)#<!K$)-5/!+,#,65$*6!/)N$!65,71-)5$<!5/$!
<$N$-4H7$#5!4:!3-46$*!M4*E,#A!)**)#A$7$#56!2$5M$$#!
-43)-!)15/4*,5,$6C!/416,#A!)6643,)5,4#6!)#<!`43)-!
K$)-5/!=4)*<6!,#!5/$!"#$1*,#!=$N)#!)#<!.M7!D):!
)*$)6F!+$#5)-!/$)-5/!:$)51*$<!)6!)!E$9!$-$7$#5!:4*!
<$N$-4H,#A!74*$!,#5$A*)5$<!6$*N,3$6F!D/$!;/,5$!
0)H$*!,#3-1<$6!)!3477,57$#5!54!$%5$#<!5/$6$!
<$N$-4H7$#56!54!5/$!*$65!4:!;)-$6F!!

!

·! +$#5)-!/$)-5/!M)6!,#3-1<$<!,#!5/*$$!*$A,4#)-!$N$#56!,#!
)1517#!B@&&!M/,3/!M$*$!6H4#64*$<!29!5/$!;$-6/!
L4N$*#7$#5!54!H*4745$!A44<!H*)35,3$!,#!/$)-5/!
6$*N,3$6!:4*!/47$-$66!H$4H-$F!!

!

·! +4*$!*$A,4#)-!3*466T6$354*!$N$#56!)*$!H-)##$<!54!
H*4745$!P4,#5!H-)##,#A!)#<!5/$!,7H-$7$#5)5,4#!4:!5/$!
<*):5!7$#5)-!/$)-5/!)#<!M$--2$,#A!65*)5$A9!Together 
for Mental HealthC!M/,3/!M,--!)<<*$66!5/$!,661$6!*),6$<!
,#!5/$!;"U!*$H4*5F!

!

·! "!#)5,4#)-!*$N,$M!4:!-43)-!<$N$-4H7$#56!)#<!6$*N,3$6!
54!/$-H!H$4H-$!M,5/!7$#5)-!/$)-5/!H*42-$76!/)6!2$$#!
347H-$5$<F!D/,6!,6!2$,#A!:,#)-,6$<!,#!34#P1#35,4#!M,5/!
-43)-!)15/4*,5,$6!)#<!M,--!2$!H12-,6/$<!,#!5/$!#$)*!
:151*$F!_)*-9!:,#<,#A6!,6!5/)5!5/$*$!/)6!2$$#!)#!
,#3*$)6,#A!<*,N$!54M)*<6!2$55$*!H)*5#$*6/,H!M4*E,#A!
2$5M$$#!/416,#A!)#<!7$#5)-!/$)-5/C!M/,3/!,6!
<$74#65*)5$<!5/*41A/!)!*)#A$!4:!A44<!H*)35,3$!
<$N$-4H7$#56F!!

!

·! ;4*E!4#!H*4745,#A!5/$!)HH-,3)5,4#!4:!A44<!H*)35,3$!
M,--!,#5$#6,:9!)6!)!*$61-5!4:!5/$!3477$#3$7$#5!4:!5/$!
+$#5)-!K$)-5/!V;)-$6W!+$)61*$!B@&@!)#<!5/$!-)1#3/!
4:!5/$!34#61-5)5,4#!4#!Together for Mental Health.!

!

Page 66



! e!

!"-)99"*#'.0)*$ D-.0)*$.'S"*$)&$0*$5'*#$'*#$'##0.0)*'6$-)99"*.:$
[*).":$

·! 8$M!<$-,N$*9!7$3/)#,676!:4*!7$#5)-!/$)-5/!M,--!2$!
,#5*4<13$<!M,5/!5/$!,#5*4<135,4#!4:!5/$!:,#)-!7$#5)-!
/$)-5/!)#<!M$--2$,#A!65*)5$A9!)#<!61HH4*5$<!29!)!
<$5),-$<!<$-,N$*9!H-)#F!

!

<! 74#,54*6!<$-,N$*9!4:!
8)5,4#)-!R$*N,3$!
>*)7$M4*E!5)*A$56!29!)--!
5/$!*$-$N)#5!)A$#3,$6!54!
*$)-,6$!5/$!<$6,*$<!
,7H*4N$7$#56!:4*!H$4H-$!
M,5/!)!7$#5)-!,--#$66F!

·! D/$!8)5,4#)-!+$#5)-!K$)-5/!0*4A*)77$!=4)*<!M)6!
)6E$<!54!5)E$!)3341#5!4:!5/$!;)-$6!"1<,5!U::,3$!
*$H4*5C!)#<!34#6,<$*!/4M!/$)-5/!)#<!643,)-!3)*$!3)#!
61HH4*5!5/$!,7H-$7$#5)5,4#!4:!5/$!*$3477$#<)5,4#6C!
M4*E,#A!M,5/!/416,#A!<$H)*57$#56F!D/$!0*4A*)77$!
=4)*<!,6!2$,#A!*$H-)3$<!29!)!#$M!0)*5#$*6/,H!=4)*<!
M/,3/!M,--!34#5,#1$!54!)<<*$66!5/$6$!,661$6F!

!

·! "!61*N$9!4:!-43)-!)15/4*,59!/416,#A!<$H)*57$#56!/)6!
2$$#!347H-$5$<!54!1H<)5$!5/$!H46,5,4#!4#!-43)-!
6$*N,3$6S!<$N$-4H7$#56!:4*!)<1-56!M,5/!7$#5)-!/$)-5/!
#$$<6F!R$$!)24N$F!

!

·! D/$!8)5,4#)-!R$*N,3$!>*)7$M4*E!/)6!2$$#!*$H-)3$<!
M,5/!)!#$M!H4-,39!:*)7$M4*E!M/,3/!M,--!2$!6$5!415!5/$!
#$M!7$#5)-!/$)-5/!)#<!M$--2$,#A!65*)5$A9C!)!<*):5!4:!
M/,3/!,6!31**$#5-9!415!:4*!34#61-5)5,4#F!D/$!65*)5$A9!
M,--!2$!61HH4*5$<!29!)!<$5),-$<!<$-,N$*9!H-)#C!M/,3/!
M,--!2$!<$N$-4H$<!4N$*!5/$!6177$*!)#<!M,--!,#3-1<$!
E$9!<$-,N$*)2-$6!)#<!7$)61*)2-$!415347$6!:4*!
6$*N,3$!16$*6!)#<!5/$,*!:)7,-,$6!)#<!3)*$*6F!!

!

B! ;$!*$3477$#<!5/)5!5/$!
"66$72-9!L4N$*#7$#5!
$#61*$6!5/)5!A1,<)#3$!
,661$<!54!/$)-5/C!/416,#A!
)#<!643,)-!3)*$!H-)##$*6!
)#<!H*4N,<$*6!4:!6$*N,3$6!
:4*!H$4H-$!M,5/!)!7$#5)-!
,--#$66!$#341*)A$6!)#!
)HH*4)3/!5/)5!,6!
345$*7,#416C!P4,#$<T1H!
)#<!7151)--9!61HH4*5,N$F!

·! Q$N,6$<!65)5154*9!A1,<)#3$!4#!)--43)5,4#6!)#<!
/47$-$66#$66!M,--!2$!H12-,6/$<!,#!5/$!6177$*!)#<!
M,--!34#5),#!65*$#A5/$#$<!A1,<)#3$!4#!3-46$*!
34--)24*)5,4#!2$5M$$#!/416,#AC!/$)-5/!)#<!643,)-!3)*$!
H-)##$*6F!R$$!&!V)W!)24N$!

!

·! +$#5)-!K$)-5/!V;)-$6W!+$)61*$B@&@!*$I1,*$6!
34#6,<$*)5,4#!54!2$!A,N$#!54!)334774<)5,4#!#$$<6!:4*!
5/46$!,#!34#5)35!M,5/!6$34#<)*9!3)*$!7$#5)-!/$)-5/!
6$*N,3$6F!D/$!.4<$!4:!0*)35,3$!M,5/!*$6H$35!54!0)*56!B!
)#<!'!/)6!2$$#!H12-,6/$<!)#<!<,66$7,#)5$<!54!
*$-$N)#5!65)E$/4-<$*6F!D/$!<*):5!7$#5)-!/$)-5/!)#<!
M$--2$,#A!65*)5$A9!,6!415!:4*!34#61-5)5,4#F!D/$!:,#)-!
65*)5$A9!M,--!2$!61HH4*5$<!29!)!<$-,N$*9!H-)#!M/,3/!M,--!
)<<*$66!5/$!#$$<!:4*!P4,#5!H-)##,#A!)#<!<$-,N$*9!4:!
6$*N,3$6F!!

!

·! Sustainable Social Services for Wales: A Framework 
for Action‘!)#<!5/$!#$M!R43,)-!R$*N,3$6!=,--!M,--!/$-H!
<*,N$!74*$!$::$35,N$!P4,#5!H-)##,#AF!!

!

Page 67



! h!

!"-)99"*#'.0)*$ D-.0)*$.'S"*$)&$0*$5'*#$'*#$'##0.0)*'6$-)99"*.:$
[*).":$

·! 012-,3!K$)-5/!;)-$6!*$3$,N$6!:1#<,#A!:*47!K416,#A!
(,N,6,4#!54!*),6$!)M)*$#$66!4:!5/$!/$)-5/!#$$<6!4:!
/47$-$66!/416$/4-<6!)#<!54!61HH4*5!,7H-$7$#5)5,4#!
4:!5/$!K$)-5/!)#<!K47$-$66#$66!R5)#<)*<6F!!

!

·! D/$*$!,6!)!3477,57$#5!,#!5/$!;/,5$!0)H$*!54!
*$N,$M,#A!5/$!K$)-5/!)#<!K47$-$66#$66!R5)#<)*<6!
M/,3/!M$*$!-)1#3/$<!,#!B@@?F!D/$6$!65)#<)*<6!H-)3$!
*$I1,*$7$#56!4#!-43)-!)15/4*,5,$6!)#<!`43)-!K$)-5/!
=4)*<6!54!H*4N,<$!)33$66!54!H*,7)*9!/$)-5/!6$*N,3$6!
:4*!/47$-$66!H$4H-$!

!

·! D/$!,7H-$7$#5)5,4#!4:!5/$!#$M!R1HH4*5,#A!0$4H-$!
H*4A*)77$!<$N$-4H7$#56!,#N4-N$6!*$H*$6$#5)5,N$6!4:!
5/$!8KR!)#<!012-,3!K$)-5/!;)-$6F!

'! ;$!*$3477$#<!5/)5!5/$!
"66$72-9!L4N$*#7$#5!
6/41-<Z!

!

)! *$I1,*$!)--!H*4H*,$54*6!4:!
2$<!)#<!2*$)E:)65!
5$7H4*)*9!
)334774<)5,4#!54!/)N$!
)#!1HT54T<)5$!)#<!
H46,5,N$!.*,7,#)-!Q$34*<!
=1*$)1!3/$3E!,#!H-)3$!
H*,4*!54!5/$,*!
$65)2-,6/7$#56!2$,#A!
16$<!:4*!-$55,#A!54!
/47$-$66!3-,$#56O!

·! D/$!.4<$!4:!L1,<)#3$!4#!"--43)5,4#!4:!
"334774<)5,4#!)#<!K47$-$66#$66!65*$#A5/$#6!
A1,<)#3$!4#!5/$!H-)3$7$#5!4:!/416$/4-<6!,#!
5$7H4*)*9!)334774<)5,4#!54!$7H/)6,6$!5/$!#$$<!:4*!
H*4H*,$54*6!54!2$!61,5)2-$!,#<,N,<1)-6F!R$$!&!V)W!)24N$F!

!
!

2! *$I1,*$!5/)5!-43)-!
)A$#3,$6m!3-,$#5!
)66$667$#5!6965$76!
,#3-1<$!)66$667$#56!4:!
5/$!5$7H4*)*9!
)334774<)5,4#!2$65!
61,5$<!54!5/$!#$$<6!4:!
,#<,N,<1)-!3-,$#56O!)#<!

·! D/$!H*4H46)-6!:4*!#$M!-$A,6-)5,4#!)6!6$5!415!,#!5/$!
K416,#A!;/,5$!0)H$*!M,--!:1*5/$*!65*$#A5/$#!)35,4#!29!
-43)-!)15/4*,5,$6!54!H*$N$#5!/47$-$66#$66!,#!5/$!:,*65!
H-)3$F!D/$!)66$667$#56!M/,3/!M,--!2$!1#<$*5)E$#!54!
,<$#5,:9!)#<!)<<*$66!5/$!H*42-$76!M/,3/!H$4H-$!:)3$!
6/41-<!5)E$!)3341#5!4:!5/$,*!7$#5)-!/$)-5/!#$$<6FF!$

$
!

3! 3*$)5$!)!7$)#6!4:!
74#,54*,#A!5/)5!)--!
5$7H4*)*9!
)334774<)5,4#!16$<!29!
-43)-!)15/4*,5,$6!7$$56!
5/$!7,#,717!65)#<)*<6!
6$5!<4M#!,#!5/$!B@@f!
K47$-$66#$66!U*<$*F!

!

·! G#,5,)-!<,63166,4#6!M,5/!-43)-!)15/4*,5,$6!/)N$!,<$#5,:,$<!
)!#172$*!4:!H*)35,3)-!,661$6!)*41#<!5/,6!)6H$35!4:!
31**$#5!-$A,6-)5,4#F!(,63166,4#6!M,5/!-43)-!)15/4*,5,$6!
4#!5/$!-$A,6-)5,4#!)#<!,56!,7H-$7$#5)5,4#!)*$!4#A4,#A!
)6!H)*5!4:!5/$!<$2)5$!4#!5/$!H*4H46)-6!:4*!*$:4*7!,#!
5/$!;/,5$!0)H$*F!

!

!

e! ;$!*$3477$#<!5/)5!5/$!
"66$72-9!L4N$*#7$#5Z!

!

Page 68



! f!

!"-)99"*#'.0)*$ D-.0)*$.'S"*$)&$0*$5'*#$'*#$'##0.0)*'6$-)99"*.:$
[*).":$

)! 6$56!7,#,717!65)#<)*<6!
:4*!5/$!I1)-,59!)#<!
34N$*)A$!4:!H12-,3!
,#:4*7)5,4#!4#!-$55,#A6!
)#<!)33$66,#A!/416,#A!
54!$#61*$!5/)5!N1-#$*)2-$!
H$4H-$!M,5/!7$#5)-!
,--#$66!)*$!H*4N,<$<!M,5/!
5/$!,#:4*7)5,4#!5/$9!
#$$<!54!$%$*3,6$!5/$,*!
*,A/56O!)#<!

!

!

·! D/$!34#61-5)5,4#!4#!5/$!.4<$!4:!L1,<)#3$!:4*!`43)-!
"15/4*,5,$6!4#!"--43)5,4#!4:!"334774<)5,4#!)#<!
K47$-$66#$66!M)6!H12-,6/$<!:4*!34#61-5)5,4#!,#!
+)*3/!B@&&F!!D/$!.4<$!*$I1,*$6!-43)-!)15/4*,5,$6!54!
H12-,3,6$!,#:4*7)5,4#!4#!643,)-!/416,#A!-$55,#A6!54!
$#61*$!4H$##$66!)#<!5*)#6H)*$#39!)*41#<!
)--43)5,4#6F!R$$!&!V)W!)24N$F!

!
!!

2! $#61*$6!A1,<)#3$!:4*!
/416,#A!)6643,)5,4#6!
,#3-1<$6!6H$3,:,3!
7$)61*)2-$!65)#<)*<6!
:4*!)33$66!54!/416,#A!:4*!
N1-#$*)2-$!H$4H-$C!)#<!
54!-,7,5!5/$!16$!4:!
$%3-16,4#6!:*47!/416,#A!
M),5,#A!-,656!,#65$)<!4:!
5,7$T2)6$<!616H$#6,4#6F!

!

·! D/$!*$N,$M!4:!*$-$N)#5!A1,<)#3$!:4*!Q$A,65$*$<!R43,)-!
`)#<-4*<6!4#!_%3-16,4#6!)#<!R16H$#6,4#6!:*47!
M),5,#A!-,656!M,--!5)E$!H-)3$!):5$*!5/$!34#61-5)5,4#!4#!
5/$!K416,#A!;/,5$!0)H$*!$#<6!4#!&[!"1A165!B@&BF!!!

!

·! D/$!;/,5$!0)H$*!*),6$6!5/$!H466,2,-,59!4:!)!<159!4#!
4*A)#,6)5,4#6!54!34T4H$*)5$!4#!/416,#A!7)55$*6F!G:!
5)E$#!:4*M)*<C!5/,6!341-<!/$-H!,7H*4N$!5/$!P4,#5!
M4*E,#A!#$3$66)*9!54!7$$5!5/$!/416,#A!#$$<6!4:!
H$4H-$!M,5/!7$#5)-!/$)-5/!H*42-$76F!

!

·! "6!6$5!415!,#!5/$!;/,5$!0)H$*C!H$*:4*7)#3$!,#<,3)54*6!
)#<!5)*A$56!:4*!-43)-!)15/4*,5,$6!M,--!2$!5/$!612P$35!4:!
:1*5/$*!34#6,<$*)5,4#F!G5!M,--!$%5$#<!2$94#<!7$#5)-!
/$)-5/!,661$6C!5)E,#A!,#54!)3341#5!5/$!#$$<!54!<*,N$!
H$*:4*7)#3$F!!

!
!
!
!
!
!

h! ;$!*$3477$#<!5/)5!5/$!
"66$72-9!L4N$*#7$#5!
5)E$6!65$H6!54!$#61*$!
5/)5!,56!*$A1-)54*9!
*$I1,*$7$#56!4:!/416,#A!
)6643,)5,4#6!,#3-1<$6!5/$!
*$I1,*$7$#5!:4*!
)6643,)5,4#6!54!<$-,N$*C!,#!
34--)24*)5,4#!M,5/!45/$*!
-43)-!)A$#3,$6C!)A),#65!
5/$!*$-$N)#5!>*)7$M4*E!
/416,#AT*$-)5$<!5)*A$56F!

·! 8$M!*$A1-)54*9!:*)7$M4*E!,6!2$,#A!,7H-$7$#5$<F!G5!
/)6!)!65*4#A!415347$!:4316F!_%H$35)5,4#!,6!5/)5!
)6643,)5,4#6!M,--!2$!)2-$!54!<$74#65*)5$!)#<!H*4N,<$!
$N,<$#3$!/4M!5/$9!/)N$!)3/,$N$<!H)*5,31-)*!415347$6!
$FAF!5/)5!5/$9!$#A)A$!M,5/!)--!*$-$N)#5!H)*5,$6!)#<!
4*A)#,6)5,4#6C!$72*)3$!5/$!H*,#3,H-$6!4:!H)*5#$*6/,H!
M4*E,#A!54!$#/)#3$!6$*N,3$!!<$-,N$*9C!5/$9!M4*E!
34--)24*)5,N$-9C!)#<!:4*7!)HH*4H*,)5$!)--,)#3$6!54!
<$N$-4H!)#<!<$-,N$*!415347$6F!!

!

·! D/$!8)5,4#)-!R$*N,3$!>*)7$M4*E!:4*!+$#5)-!K$)-5/!
/)6!2$$#!*$H-)3$<!29!5/$!#$M!65*)5$A9C!,#!M/,3/!
/416,#A!:$)51*$6!H*47,#$#5-9F!G#!51*#C!H*,4*,5,$6!
,<$#5,:,$<!,#!5/$!H*4A*)77$!4:!)35,4#!6$5!415!,#!5/$!
;/,5$!0)H$*!,#3-1<$6!7$#5)-!/$)-5/!)#<!5/$!
<$N$-4H7$#5!4:!74*$!,#5$A*)5$<!6$*N,3$6F!D/$!

Page 69



! [!

!"-)99"*#'.0)*$ D-.0)*$.'S"*$)&$0*$5'*#$'*#$'##0.0)*'6$-)99"*.:$
[*).":$

*$A1-)54*9!:1#35,4#!M,--!5)E$!,#54!)3341#5!613/!
H*,4*,5,$6!,#!,56!M4*EF!

!

!!

!

f! ;$!*$3477$#<!5/)5!5/$!
"66$72-9!L4N$*#7$#5Z!

!

)! <$:,#$6!,56!,#:4*7)5,4#!
*$I1,*$7$#56!M,5/!
*$6H$35!54!/416,#A!)#<!
7$#5)-!/$)-5/C!54!$#)2-$!
,5!54!74*$!$::$35,N$-9!
1#<$*5)E$!,56!*4-$!,#!
6$55,#A!H4-,39!)#<!)66$66!
5/$!,7H)35!4:!H4-,39!
,#65*17$#56!613/!)6!5/$!
8)5,4#)-!R$*N,3$!
>*)7$M4*EO!!

·! +)#<)54*9!:*)7$M4*E!:4*!34--$35,4#!4:!<)5)!4#!
R1HH4*5,#A!0$4H-$!415347$6!/)6!2$$#!!,#5*4<13$<C!
M/,3/!,#3-1<$6!,#<,N,<1)-!6$*N,3$!16$*6m!H$*3$H5,4#6!
4#!H*4A*$66!,#!*$-)5,4#!54!5/$,*!7$#5)-!/$)-5/F!

!

2! $65)2-,6/$6!)!61,5$!4:!E$9!
H$*:4*7)#3$!7$)61*$6C!
54!2$!16$<!-43)--9!)#<!
#)5,4#)--9C!4:!/416,#A!
)#<!*$-)5$<!6$*N,3$6!:4*!
<,::$*$#5!3-,$#5!A*41H6C!
,#3-1<,#A!5/46$!M,5/!)!
7$#5)-!,--#$66!)#<!
/47$-$66!H$4H-$C!54!
34N$*!-$55,#A6C!$%3-16,4#6!
)#<!616H$#6,4#6C!*$H$)5!
/47$-$66#$66C!16$!4:!
5$7H4*)*9!
)334774<)5,4#!)#<!
5$#)#39!51*#4N$*F!

·! R$$!H4,#5!)24N$!*$-)5,#A!54!H$*:4*7)#3$!74#,54*,#AF!!
!

[! ;$!*$3477$#<!5/)5!
-43)-!)15/4*,5,$6Z!

)W! 2$55$*!,#5$A*)5$!
#$$<6!7)HH,#A!
6965$76!:4*!
,<$#5,:9,#A!5/$!
61HH4*5!#$$<6!4:!
<,::$*$#5!A*41H6!
4:!H$4H-$!M,5/!
45/$*!*$-$N)#5!
<)5)!*$-)5,#A!54!
/416,#AC!/$)-5/!
)#<!643,)-!3)*$O!

2W! 3*$)5$!
,#:4*7)5,4#!
6/)*,#A!H*45434-6!

·! "--!5/$6$!H4,#56!)*$!2$,#A!)<<*$66$<!5/*41A/!
,7H-$7$#5)5,4#!4:!5/$!*$3477$#<)5,4#6!:*47!5/$!
*$N,$M!4:!!R1HH4*5,#A!0$4H-$!29!R,*!+)#6$-!"9-M)*<FF!
R$$!&!V2W!)#<!f!V)W!)24N$F!!

!

Page 70



! Y!

!"-)99"*#'.0)*$ D-.0)*$.'S"*$)&$0*$5'*#$'*#$'##0.0)*'6$-)99"*.:$
[*).":$

M/$*$29!*$-$N)#5!
-43)-!)A$#3,$6!
)A*$$!54!
H)*5,3,H)5$!,#!
#$$<6!7)HH,#A!
$%$*3,6$6O!)#<!

3W! ,7H*4N$!5/$!
*42165#$66!4:!
<)5)!29!)N4,<,#A!
<412-$!341#5,#A!
)#<!<)5)!,#H15!
2)3E-4A6F!

Y! ;$!*$3477$#<!5/)5!E$9!
-43)-!)A$#3,$6!54A$5/$*!
<$N$-4H!H*45434-6!:4*!
7$$5,#A!5/$!/416,#A!)#<!
61HH4*5!#$$<6!4:!H$4H-$!
M,5/!)!7$#5)-!,--#$66!5/)5!
34N$*!5/$!H-)##,#A!)#<!
3477,66,4#,#A!4:!
6$*N,3$6C!5/$!5),-4*,#A!4:!
6$*N,3$6!54!7$$5!6H$3,:,3!
#$$<6C!*$:$**)-!6965$76!
54!$#61*$!5/$!$::$35,N$!
H*$TH-)##$<!<,63/)*A$!
:*47!,#65,515,4#6C!)#<!
,#:4*7)5,4#!6/)*,#A!54!
61HH4*5!H*47H5!)#<!
*$-,)2-$!<$3,6,4#!7)E,#AF!

;$!/)N$!3477,66,4#$<!5/$!<$N$-4H7$#5!4:!A1,<)#3$!4#!
)334774<)5,#A!H$4H-$!2$,#A!*$6$55-$<!:*47!,#65,515,4#)-!
4*!34771#,59!6$55,#A6F!D/,6!A1,<)#3$!M,--!2$!:,#)-,6$<!
:4--4M,#A!H12-,3)5,4#!4:!5/$!:,#)-!7$#5)-!/$)-5/!)#<!
M$--2$,#A!65*)5$A9F!D/$!65*)5$A9!,56$-:!M,--!H*4745$!74*$!
$::$35,N$!)**)#A$7$#56!:4*!-43)-!34--)24*)5,4#!)#<!
H-)##,#AC!M/,3/!5/$!<$-,N$*9!H-)#!)#<!0)*5#$*6/,H!=4)*<!
M,--!$#61*$!)*$!,7H-$7$#5$<F!D/$!65*)5$A9!415-,#$!5/$!
34#5*,215,4#6!*$I1,*$<!:*47!`43)-!L4N$*#7$#5C!5/$!8KRC!
D/,*<!)#<!,#<$H$#<$#5!R$354*6C!)#<!)!*)#A$!4:!45/$*!
)A$#3,$6!i!)#<!5/$!2$#$:,56!M/,3/!3)#!2$!A),#$<!:*47!
5/$7!M4*E,#A!54A$5/$*F!!!

!

D/$!.4<$!4:!0*)35,3$!54!0)*56!B!)#<!'!4:!5/$!+$#5)-!
K$)-5/!V;)-$6W!+$)61*$!B@&@!A,N$6!<1$!34#6,<$*)5,4#!54!
M4*E,#A!,#!H)*5#$*6/,H!M,5/!5/$!*$-$N)#5!)A$#3,$6!
,#N4-N$<!,#!)!H$*64#m6!3)*$F!D/,6!M,--!7)%,7,6$!5/$!
61HH4*5!)N),-)2-$!54!5/46$!M,5/!)!7$#5)-!,--#$66!

!

·! "6!H)*5!4:!5/$!R1HH4*5,#A!0$4H-$!,7H-$7$#5)5,4#!
H*4P$35!7$$5,#A6!/)N$!5)E$#!H-)3$!M,5/!(,*$354*6!4:!
012-,3!K$)-5/!54!,<$#5,:9!/4M!54!:1*5/$*!<$N$-4H!-43)-!
H-)##,#A!)**)#A$7$#56!:4*!7$$5,#A!5/$!/416,#A!#$$<6!
4:!H$4H-$!M,5/!7$#5)-!/$)-5/!H*42-$76!)#<!45/$*!
N1-#$*)2-$!A*41H6F!!!

!

?! j_%5*)!*$3477$#<)5,4#!
:*47!.477,55$$l!

G#5*4<13$!65)5154*9!
A1,<)#3$!54!$#61*$!5/)5!
-43)-!)15/4*,5,$6!)#<!
/416,#A!)6643,)5,4#6!
<$-,N$*!5/$!)35,4#6!5/$9!
)*$!*$6H4#6,2-$!:4*!,#!
*$6H$35!4:!;$-6/!
L4N$*#7$#5!5)*A$56!
613/!)6!5/46$!6$5!415!,#!
5/$!8)5,4#)-!6$*N,3$6!

·! R$$!*$:$*$#3$!$)*-,$*!54!A1,<)#3$F!D/$!8)5,4#)-!
R$*N,3$!>*)7$M4*E!/)6!2$$#!*$H-)3$<!215!5/$!#$M!
7$#5)-!/$)-5/!)#<!M$--2$,#A!65*)5$A9!/)6!65,71-)5$<!
,#3*$)6$<!P4,#5!M4*E,#AF!>1*5/$*!A1,<)#3$!M,--!2$!
,661$<!):5$*!34#61-5)5,4#F!

!

Page 71



! ?!

!"-)99"*#'.0)*$ D-.0)*$.'S"*$)&$0*$5'*#$'*#$'##0.0)*'6$-)99"*.:$
[*).":$

>*)7$M4*EF!

!
!

Page 72



$ D
*
*
"
Q
$\
$$

B
'
6"
:
$D
4
#
0.
$L
77
0-
"
$!
"
?
)
&.
$)
*
$N
'
,)
&$
@
&'
*
:
?
)
&.
$+
&)
,"
-
.:
Y$
H
?
#
'
."
$)
*
$?
&)
(
&"
:
:
$0
*
$0
9
?
6"
9
"
*
.0
*
(
$&
"
-
)
9
9
"
*
#
'
.0
)
*
:
$$

!

!
"
-
)
9
9
"
*
#
'
.0
)
*
$

H
?
#
'
."
$

G#
:4
*7
)
5,
4
#
!6
9
6
5$
7
6
!)
#
<
!)
#
)
-9
6
,6
!4
:!
H
*4
P$
3
5!
H
$
*:
4
*7
)
#
3
$
!

!
"
-
)
9
9
"
*
#
'
.0
)
*
$G
$

W
e

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

 A
s
s
e

m
b

ly
 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t
s
h
o

u
ld

 e
n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 n

e
w

 
[m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
] 

s
y
s
te

m
 c

a
n

:

a
)

re
c
o

rd
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

ra
c
k
 t

h
e

 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
f 
a

ll 
m

a
jo

r 
tr

a
n

s
p
o

rt
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 
a

t 
k
e

y
 s

ta
g
e

s
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 d

e
liv

e
ry

b
)

in
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 t
h
e

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 n

e
e
d

e
d

 t
o
 

fa
c
ili

ta
te

 b
e

n
c
h

m
a

rk
in

g
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
e

rf
o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
g

a
in

s
t 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 i
n
 o

th
e

r 
p

a
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 U

K
;

c
)

re
c
o

rd
 a

ll 
c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 i
n

 p
ro

je
c
t 

c
o

s
ts

 t
h

a
t 

o
c
c
u

r 
th

ro
u

g
h
 t

h
e

 l
if
e

c
y
c
le

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

je
c
t,
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

h
a
n

g
e

s
 i
n

 l
a
n

d
 c

o
s
ts

; 
a
n

d
 

d
)

fa
c
ili

ta
te

 t
h

e
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 a
n

d
 s

h
a

ri
n

g
, 
o

n
 a

n
 

a
n

n
u

a
l 
b
a

s
is

, 
o

f 
th

e
 r

e
a

s
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
c
o
s
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e

s
 a

n
d
 d

e
la

y
s
 o

n
 i
n

d
iv

id
u
a

l 
p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
A

s
s
e

m
b

ly
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
.

D
4
!$
#
6
1
*$
!5
/
$
!D
*)
#
6
H
4
*5
!(
$
H
)
*5
7
$
#
5!
/
)
6
!)
<
$
I
1
)
5$
!,
#
:4
*7
)
5,
4
#
!5
4
!5
*)
3
E
!4
1
*!
H
$
*:
4
*7
)
#
3
$
!4
:!

)
--!
4
1
*!
7
)
P4
*!
5*
)
#
6
H
4
*5
!H
*4
P$
3
56
!,
#
3
-1
<
,#
A
!5
,7
$
!)
#
<
!3
4
6
5!
M
$
!/
)
N
$
!6
$
5!
1
H
!)
!6
H
*$
)
<
6
/
$
$
5!

6
9
6
5$
7
!)
/
$
)
<
!4
:!
5/
$
!,
#
5*
4
<
1
3
5,
4
#
!4
:!
)
!:
1
--9
!:
1
#
3
5,
4
#
)
-!
H
*4
P$
3
5!
)
#
<
!H
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
!7
)
#
)
A
$
7
$
#
5!

V0
0
+
W!
6
4
:5
M
)
*$
!6
9
6
5$
7
F!

! U
H
5,
4
#
6
!)
*$
!1
#
<
$
*!
3
4
#
6
,<
$
*)
5,
4
#
!:
4
*!
5/
$
!-
4
#
A
$
* T
5$
*7
!6
4
-1
5,
4
#
C!
M
/
,3
/
!M
,--
!$
,5
/
$
*!
2
$
!5
)
E
$
#
!

:4
*M
)
*<
!)
6
!H
)
*5
!4
:!
)
#
!,
#
,5
,)
5,
N
$
!5
4
!,
#
5*
4
<
1
3
$
!6
5)
#
<
)
*<
!0
0
+
!6
4
:5
M
)
*$
!)
3
*4
6
6
!;
$
-6
/
!

L
4
N
$
*#
7
$
#
5!
4
*!
,:
!,
5!
,6
!<
$
5$
*7
,#
$
<
!5
/
,6
!3
)
#
#
4
5!
7
$
$
5!
5/
$
!6
H
$
3
,:
,3
!#
$
$
<
6
!4
:!
7
)
P4
*!
*4
)
<
6
!

,#
:*
)
6
5*
1
3
51
*$
!H
*4
P$
3
56
C!
)
6
!H
)
*5
!4
:!
5/
$
!D
*)
#
6
H
4
*5
!(
$
H
)
*5
7
$
#
5X
6
!G
#
5$
A
*)
5$
<
!Q
4
)
<
6
!G
#
:4
*7
)
5,
4
#
!

R
9
6
5$
7
!V
GQ
GR
WF
!!
!

! !

Page 73



!
"
-
)
9
9
"
*
#
'
.0
)
*
$

H
?
#
'
."
$

0
*4
P$
3
5!
)
#
<
!3
4
#
5*
)
3
5!
7
)
#
)
A
$
7
$
#
5!

!
"
-
)
9
9
"
*
#
'
.0
)
*
$E
$

W
e

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

A
s
s
e

m
b

ly
 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
ta

k
e

s
 a

c
ti
o

n
 t
o

e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t:

a
)

g
a

te
w

a
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 c

u
s
to

m
 a

n
d

 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 f
o

r 
a
ll 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 f
u

tu
re

 m
a

jo
r 

p
ro

je
c
ts

;

b
)

a
ll 

m
a

jo
r 

tr
a

n
s
p

o
rt

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

s
in

c
e

 t
h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
2
0

0
6

 a
re

 s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 a

b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 r
e
a

lis
a
ti
o

n
 r

e
v
ie

w
; 
a

n
d

c
)

b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 r
e
a

lis
a
ti
o

n
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 a

re
 s

ta
rt

e
d
 

w
it
h

in
 1

2
 t

o
 1

8
 m

o
n

th
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

 
o

f 
th

e
 m

a
in

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 w
o

rk
s
.

;
$
!/
)
N
$
!5
)
E
$
#
!)
!#
1
7
2
$
*!
4
:!
6
5$
H
6
!5
4
!6
5*
$
#
A
5/
$
#
!5
/
$
!)
H
H
*4
)
3
/
!5
4
!A
)
5$
M
)
9
!*
$
N
,$
M
6
!)
#
<
!

2
$
#
$
:,
56
!*
$
)
-,6
)
5,
4
#
F!

L
)
5$
M
)
9
!Q
$
N
,$
M
6
!V
"
6
6
1
*)
#
3
$
!Q
$
N
,$
M
6
W!
)
*$
!#
4
M
!7
)
#
<
)
54
*9
!:
4
*!
)
--!
7
,6
6
,4
#
!3
*,
5,
3
)
-!
)
#
<
!/
,A
/
!

N
)
-1
$
!H
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
6
!)
#
<
!H
*4
P$
3
56
!,
#
!;
$
-6
/
!L
4
N
$
*#
7
$
#
5 F
!!
!

D
$
#
!7
)
P4
*!
5*
)
#
6
H
4
*5
!H
*4
P$
3
56
!/
)
N
$
!2
$
$
#
!3
4
7
H
-$
5$
<
!6
,#
3
$
!B
@
@
f
!)
#
<
!)
*$
!6
1
2
P$
3
5!
54
!)
!2
$
#
$
:,
56
!

*$
)
-,6
)
5,
4
#
!*
$
N
,$
M
F!
!

! U
:!
5/
4
6
$
!5
$
#
!H
*4
P$
3
56
C!
$
,A
/
5!
/
)
N
$
!)
-*
$
)
<
9
!2
$
$
#
!6
1
2
P$
3
5!
54
!)
!*
$
N
,$
M
!4
:!
5/
$
!$
::
$
3
5,
N
$
#
$
6
6
!4
:!

<
$
6
,A
#
!,
#
!)
3
/
,$
N
,#
A
!4
:!
5/
$
!H
*4
P$
3
5!
4
2
P$
3
5,
N
$
6
F!
! !

! "
!:
1
--!
2
$
#
$
:,
56
!*
$
)
-,6
)
5,
4
#
!)
6
6
$
6
6
7
$
#
5C
!M
/
,3
/
!3
4
#
6
,<
$
*6
!:
)
3
54
*6
!2
$
9
4
#
<
!5
/
$
!$
::
$
3
5,
N
$
#
$
6
6
!4
:!

<
$
6
,A
#
!*
$
N
,$
M
C!
5)
E
$
6
!-
4
#
A
$
*!
54
!3
4
7
H
-$
5$
!2
$
3
)
1
6
$
!4
:!
5/
$
!#
$
$
<
!5
4
!3
4
--$
3
5!
*$
-,)
2
-$
!<
)
5)
!)
2
4
1
5!

H
*4
P$
3
5!
,7
H
)
3
5 !
3
)
#
!2
$
!3
4
--$
3
5$
<
F!
!>
4
*!
5/
$
!5
$
#
!3
4
7
H
-$
5$
<
!H
*4
P$
3
56
C!
5/
,6
!H
*4
3
$
6
6
!/
)
6
!2
$
$
#
!

6
5)
*5
$
<
!4
#
!:
,N
$
!H
*4
P$
3
56
!)
#
<
!*
$
H
4
*5
$
<
!)
6
!H
)
*5
!4
:!
5/
$
!D
*)
#
6
H
4
*5
!;
)
-$
6
!L
)
5$
M
)
9
!Q
$
N
,$
M
!6
5)
A
$
!

'
!*
$
H
4
*5
!:
4
*!
5/
4
6
$
!H
*4
P$
3
56
F!
!U
#
!)
!:
1
*5
/
$
*!
5M
4
!H
*4
P$
3
56
C!
5/
$
!2
$
#
$
:,
56
!*
$
)
-,6
)
5,
4
#
!/
)
6
!2
$
$
#
!

3
4
#
6
,<
$
*$
<
!)
#
<
!*
$
H
4
*5
$
<
!)
6
!H
)
*5
!4
:!
5/
$
!0
4
6
5!
U
H
$
#
,#
A
!0
*4
P$
3
5!
_
N
)
-1
)
5,
4
#
!*
$
N
,$
M
F!
!Q
$
N
,$
M
6
!

)
*$
! H
-)
#
#
$
<
!:
4
*!
5/
$
!5
/
*$
$
!*
$
7
)
,#
,#
A
!H
*4
P$
3
56
!,
#
!!
B
@
&
B
T&
'
F!
!

! L
1
,<
)
#
3
$
!,
6
!2
$
,#
A
!H
*$
H
)
*$
<
!5
/
)
5!
M
, --
!*
$
I
1
,*
$
!)
!0
4
6
5!
U
H
$
#
,#
A
!0
*4
P$
3
5!
_
N
)
-1
)
5,
4
#
!*
$
N
,$
M
C!

M
/
,3
/
!,
#
3
-1
<
$
6
!6
H
$
3
,:
,3
!*
$
I
1
,*
$
7
$
#
5!
54
!)
6
6
$
6
6
!2
$
#
$
:,
56
!*
$
)
-,6
)
5,
4
#
C!
54
!2
$
!1
#
<
$
*5
)
E
$
#
!4
#
!)
--!

3
4
7
H
-$
5$
<
!H
*4
P$
3
56
F!
! !

!
"
-
)
9
9
"
*
#
'
.0
)
*
$]
$

W
e

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
th

a
t 

th
e

 A
s
s
e

m
b

ly
 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
s
h
o

u
ld

 e
n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 t
h
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

a
c
o

m
m

o
n

 s
e

t 
o

f 
k
e

y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
m

a
jo

r 
tr

a
n

s
p
o

rt
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 i
n

 W
a

le
s
 

a
n

d
, 
in

 d
o

in
g

 s
o

:

;
$
!/
)
N
$
!5
)
E
$
#
!)
!#
1
7
2
$
*!
4
:!
6
5$
H
6
!5
4
!$
#
3
4
1
*)
A
$
!5
/
$
!1
6
$
!4
:!
)
!3
4
7
7
4
#
!6
$
5!
4
:!
E
$
9
!

H
$
*:
4
*7
)
#
3
$
!,
#
<
,3
)
54
*6
F!

U
1
*!
A
1
,<
)
#
3
$
!)
#
<
!3
4
#
5*
)
3
5!
<
4
3
1
7
$
#
5)
5,
4
#
!7
)
E
$
6
!,
5!
3
-$
)
*!
5/
)
5!
M
$
!M
,--
!5
)
E
$
!)
3
3
4
1
#
5!
4
:!
a
0
G!

<
)
5)
!,
#
!)
6
6
$
6
6
,#
A
!2
,<
6
!:
4
*!
:1
51
*$
!H
*4
P$
3
56
F !

;
$
!1
6
$
!6
5)
#
<
)
*<
!.
4
#
6
5*
1
3
5,
4
#
!_
%
3
$
--$
#
3
$
!a
$
9
!0
$
*:
4
*7
)
#
3
$
!G
#
<
,3
)
54
*6
!V
a
0
G6
W!
)
#
<
!A
1
,<
)
#
3
$
!

Page 74



!
"
-
)
9
9
"
*
#
'
.0
)
*
$

H
?
#
'
."
$

a
)

e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

c
o
n

tr
a
c
to

rs
 a

re
 c

le
a

r 
a

b
o
u

t 
th

e
 

w
a

y
 i
n

 w
h

ic
h
 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 
s
y
s
te

m
 g

iv
e
s
 c

re
d

it
 f

o
r 

th
e

 
d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
p

ro
je

c
ts

 e
a

rl
ie

r 
o
r 

a
t 

lo
w

e
r 

c
o

s
t 

th
a

n
 p

la
n
n

e
d

, 
w

h
ile

 e
n
s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
q

u
a

lit
y
 i
s
 

n
o

t 
c
o

m
p

ro
m

is
e
d

;

b
)

fo
r 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 u
n
d

e
r 

it
s
 d

ir
e

c
t 

c
o

n
tr

o
l,
 q

u
a

lit
y
 

a
s
s
u

re
 t
h

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
s
c
o

re
s
 

g
iv

e
n

 b
y
 t

h
e

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
p

ro
je

c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

r 
(e

m
p

lo
y
e

r’
s
 a

g
e

n
t)

; 
a

n
d

c
)

s
h

a
re

 a
n

d
 a

n
a

ly
s
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r 
p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 t
o

 h
e

lp
 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

 
a

n
d

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 c

o
m

m
o

n
 a

re
a

s
 o

f 
u

n
d
e

rp
e

rf
o
rm

a
n

c
e

.

4
#
!/
4
M
!5
/
$
6
$
!)
*$
!)
H
H
-,$
<
!,
6
!H
*4
N
,<
$
<
!5
4
!3
4
#
5*
)
3
54
*6
!,
#
!5
/
$
!a
0
G!
7
$
)
6
1
*$
7
$
#
5!
7
)
#
1
)
-6
F!
!!

"
5!
)
M
)
*<
!4
:!
3
4
#
5*
)
3
5C
!5
/
$
!7
$
)
6
1
*$
7
$
#
5!
*$
A
,7
$
!,
#
!$
%
H
-)
,#
$
<
!,
#
!<
$
5)
,-!
)
#
<
!3
-$
)
*!
7
$
)
6
1
*$
7
$
#
5!

H
*4
3
$
6
6
$
6
!)
A
*$
$
<
!M
,5
/
!5
/
$
!3
4
#
5*
)
3
54
*!
M
/
4
!*
$
3
4
*<
6
!/
,6
!4
M
#
!6
3
4
*$
F!
!D
/
,6
!H
*4
3
$
6
6
!$
#
6
1
*$
6
!

5/
)
5!
2
4
5/
!H
)
*5
,$
6
!3
4
7
7
1
#
,3
)
5$
!3
-$
)
*-
9
!4
#
!5
/
$
!I
1
)
-,5
9
!*
$
I
1
,*
$
7
$
#
56
F!
!

G#
!)
<
<
,5
,4
#
!M
$
!*
$
A
1
-)
*-
9
!7
$
$
5!
M
,5
/
!5
/
$
!.
,N
,-!
_
#
A
,#
$
$
*,
#
A
!.
4
#
5*
)
3
54
*6
!"
6
6
4
3
,)
5,
4
#
!V
.
_
.
"
W!

$
%
$
3
1
5,
N
$
!)
#
<
!$
%
H
-)
,#
!/
4
M
!!
a
0
G!
)
*$
!1
6
$
<
!,
#
!4
1
*!
3
4
#
5*
)
3
5!
H
*4
3
1
*$
7
$
#
5F
!

;
$
!)
*$
!)
-6
4
!7
$
7
2
$
*6
!4
:!
a
$
9
!0
$
*:
4
*7
)
#
3
$
!G
#
<
,3
)
54
*!
=
$
#
3
/
7
)
*E
,#
A
!.
-1
2
6
!)
5!
M
/
,3
/
!)
--!

;
)
-$
6
!a
$
9
!0
$
*:
4
*7
)
#
3
$
!G
#
<
,3
)
54
*!
<
)
5)
!)
*$
!<
,6
3
1
6
6
$
<
F$

!
"
-
)
9
9
"
*
#
'
.0
)
*
$R
$

W
e

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
th

a
t 

th
e

 A
s
s
e

m
b

ly
 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
d
e

v
e

lo
p

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
te

s
 t

o
 

lo
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 t
h
a

t 
s
e

ts
 

o
u

t 
it
s
 e

x
p
e

c
ta

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 g
e
n

e
ra

l 
g

o
o
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 
in

 t
h

e
 p

la
n
n

in
g
 a

n
d

 d
e

liv
e
ry

 o
f 

m
a

jo
r 

tr
a

n
s
p

o
rt

 
p

ro
je

c
ts

. 
P

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
is

s
u

e
s
 h

ig
h

lig
h

te
d

 b
y
 o

u
r 

e
x
a

m
in

a
ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 m

ig
h

t 
b
e

 a
d

d
re

s
s
e
d

 i
n

 a
n

y
 

n
e
w

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

:

a
)

th
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 i
n

fl
a

ti
o
n

 i
n

d
ic

e
s
, 

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 m
a

te
ri
a

l 
c
o

s
t 

in
d

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 
o

p
ti
m

is
m

 b
ia

s
 w

h
e
n

 e
s
ti
m

a
ti
n

g
 p

ro
je

c
t 

c
o

s
ts

;

b
)

th
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

p
ro

je
c
t 

ri
s
k
 r

e
g

is
te

rs
, 

! ;
,5
/
!5
/
$
!$
%
3
$
H
5,
4
#
!4
:!
5/
*$
$
!H
*4
P$
3
56
!5
/
)
5!
)
*$
!)
-*
$
)
<
9
!1
#
<
$
*!
3
4
#
6
5*
1
3
5,
4
#
!)
#
<
!-
$
A
)
3
9
!*
4
)
<
!

6
3
/
$
7
$
6
!M
/
$
*$
!5
/
$
*$
!)
*$
!4
1
56
5)
#
<
,#
A
!-
)
#
<
!,
6
6
1
$
6
C!
5/
$
*$
!M
,--
!2
$
!#
4
!:
1
*5
/
$
*!
7
)
P4
*!
-4
3
)
-!

)
1
5/
4
*,
59
!5
*)
#
6
H
4
*5
!H
*4
P$
3
56
!:
1
#
<
$
<
!2
9
!;
$
-6
/
!L
4
N
$
*#
7
$
#
5!
5/
*4
1
A
/
!5
/
$
!D
*)
#
6
H
4
*5
!L
*)
#
5!

H
*4
3
$
6
6
F!
!!
!!

!!
!!

L
,N
$
#
!5
/
)
5!
5/
$
!D
*)
#
6
H
4
*5
!L
*)
#
5T
:1
#
<
$
<
!H
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
!M
)
6
!3
4
7
,#
A
!5
4
!)
#
!$
#
<
C!
M
$
!/
)
N
$
!#
4
5!

H
*4
<
1
3
$
<
!#
$
M
!A
1
,<
)
#
3
$
!:
4
*!
-4
3
)
-!
)
1
5/
4
*,
5,
$
6
!,
#
!*
$
-)
5,
4
#
!5
4
!7
)
P4
*!
5*
)
#
6
H
4
*5
!H
*4
P$
3
56
F!
!!

G#
6
5$
)
<
!M
$
!/
)
N
$
!5
*)
#
6
:$
**
$
<
!-
$
)
*#
,#
A
!:
*4
7
!4
1
*!
7
)
#
)
A
$
7
$
#
5!
4
:!
5*
1
#
E
!*
4
)
<
!6
3
/
$
7
$
6
!5
4
!

5*
)
#
6
H
4
*5
!A
*)
#
5!
6
3
/
$
7
$
6
!2
9
!)
--4
3
)
5,
#
A
!)
!H
*4
P$
3
5!
$
#
A
,#
$
$
*!
54
!)
--!
-4
3
)
-!
)
1
5/
4
*,
59
!7
)
P4
*!
*4
)
<
!

H
*4
P$
3
56
!5
4
!)
<
N
,6
$
!4
#
!<
$
-,N
$
*9
!)
#
<
!H
*4
P$
3
5!
7
)
#
)
A
$
7
$
#
5!
)
6
!M
$
--!
)
6
!4
N
$
*6
$
$
,#
A
!:
,#
)
#
3
,)
-!

3
4
#
5*
4
-F
!!
!!

;
$
!/
)
N
$
!)
-6
4
!$
#
6
1
*$
<
!5
/
)
5!
5/
$
!<
$
5)
,-$
<
!Q
$
A
,4
#
)
-!
D
*)
#
6
H
4
*5
!.
4
#
6
4
*5
,)
!L
*)
#
5!
(
$
-,N
$
*9
!0
-)
#
!

Page 75



!
"
-
)
9
9
"
*
#
'
.0
)
*
$

H
?
#
'
."
$

e
n

c
o
u

ra
g

in
g

 t
h
e

 p
u

b
lic

 s
e

c
to

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
e

r 
a

n
d

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

r 
to

 a
g

re
e

 a
n

d
 

m
a

in
ta

in
 a

 j
o

in
t 
ri
s
k
 r

e
g

is
te

r

c
)

a
d

v
ic

e
 o

n
 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

d
if
fe

re
n

t 
ty

p
e

s
 o

f 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
m

o
d

e
ls

; 

d
)

th
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

k
e

y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
;

e
)

e
x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
p

ro
je

c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
; 

a
n

d

f)
h

o
w

 t
h
e

 s
c
o
p

e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 
W

e
ls

h
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 P
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d

A
p

p
ra

is
a

l 
G

u
id

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 g

a
te

w
a

y
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e
 

re
la

te
 t
o

 e
a

c
h

 o
th

e
r.

L
1
,<
$
-,#
$
6
!6
$
5!
4
1
5!
4
1
*!
$
%
H
$
3
5)
5,
4
#
6
!,
#
!*
$
-)
5,
4
#
!5
4
!*
,6
E
!7
)
#
)
A
$
7
$
#
5!
)
#
<
!!
H
*4
P$
3
5!

7
)
#
)
A
$
7
$
#
5F
!

D
/
$
!;
$
-6
/
!D
*)
#
6
H
4
*5
!0
-)
#
#
,#
A
!)
#
<
!"
H
H
*)
,6
)
-!
L
1
,<
)
#
3
$
!,
6
!2
$
,#
A
!*
$
N
,$
M
$
<
!6
4
!5
/
)
5!
,5
!3
)
#
!2
$
!

)
H
H
-,$
<
!)
H
H
*4
H
*,
)
5$
-9
!#
4
5!
4
#
-9
!5
4
!7
)
P4
*!
6
3
/
$
7
$
6
!2
1
5!
)
-6
4
!5
4
!H
)
3
E
)
A
$
6
!4
:!
6
7
)
--!
6
3
/
$
7
$
6
!)
#
<
!

54
!7
,#
4
*!
H
*4
P$
3
56
F!
!$

;
4
*E
,#
A
!M
,5
/
!1
5,
-,5
9
!3
4
7
H
)
#
,$
6
!

R
e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 5
:

W
e

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

A
s
s
e

m
b

ly
 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
e
n

g
a
g

e
s
 w

it
h

 l
o

c
a

l
g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 u

ti
lit

y
 c

o
m

p
a

n
ie

s
 t

o
d

e
v
e

lo
p

 s
o

m
e

 
c
le

a
rl
y
 a

g
re

e
d

 p
ri
n

c
ip

le
s
 i
n

te
rm

s
 o

f 
h

o
w

 t
h
e
y
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 w

o
rk

 t
o
g

e
th

e
r

th
ro

u
g
h

o
u
t 

th
e

 l
if
e

c
y
c
le

 
o

f 
m

a
jo

r 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

p
ro

je
c
ts

. 
O

p
ti
o

n
s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 

A
s
s
e

m
b

ly
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
c
o

u
ld

 e
x
p

lo
re

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

:

a
)

d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 a
 m

o
re

 f
o

rm
a

l 
m

e
m

o
ra

n
d

u
m

o
f 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 w
it
h
 u

ti
lit

y
 c

o
m

p
a

n
ie

s
,

fo
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
 t

o
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

re
g

u
la

r 
m

o
n

th
ly

 r
e
p
o

rt
in

g
 o

f 
a

c
tu

a
l
a

n
d

fo
re

c
a

s
t 

c
o

s
ts

 a
n

d
 t

im
e

s
c
a

le
s

o
f 

u
ti
lit

ie
s
 

;
$
!)
*$
!5
)
E
,#
A
!:
4
*M
)
*<
!)
!#
1
7
2
$
*!
4
:!
)
3
5,
4
#
6
!5
4
!)
<
<
*$
6
6
!5
/
,6
!*
$
3
4
7
7
$
#
<
)
5,
4
#
F!
!!

;
$
!)
*$
! )
!7
$
7
2
$
*!
4
:!
5/
$
$;
$
-6
/
!K
,A
/
M
)
9
6
!"
1
5/
4
*,
5,
$
6
!k
!d
5,
-,5
,$
6
!.
4
7
7
,5
5$
$
!)
#
<
C!
5/
*4
1
A
/
!

5/
)
5!
.
4
7
7
,5
5$
$
C!
M
$
!)
*$
!<
$
N
$
-4
H
,#
A
!)
!R
5*
$
$
5M
4
*E
6
!R
5*
)
5$
A
9
F!
!D
/
$
!R
5*
$
$
5M
4
*E
6
!R
5*
)
5$
A
9
!M
,--
!

6
$
5!
4
1
5!
)
#
!)
A
*$
$
<
!)
H
H
*4
)
3
/
!5
4
!)
!*
)
#
A
$
!4
:!
,6
6
1
$
6
!,
#
3
-1
<
,#
A
!$
::
$
3
5,
N
$
!7
)
#
)
A
$
7
$
#
5!
4
:!
1
5,
-,5
,$
6
!

M
4
*E
F!
!!

;
$
!/
)
N
$
!)
-5
$
*$
<
!5
/
$
!*
,6
E
!4
M
#
$
*6
/
,H
!:
4
*!
5/
$
!3
4
6
5!
4
:!
1
5,
-,5
9
!<
,N
$
*6
,4
#
!,
#
!4
1
*!
7
4
*$
!*
$
3
$
#
5!

3
4
#
5*
)
3
56
!)
#
<
!5
/
,6
!/
)
6
!H
-)
3
$
<
!7
4
*$
!*
$
6
H
4
#
6
,2
,-,
59
!4
#
!3
4
#
5*
)
3
54
*6
!5
4
!7
)
#
)
A
$
!5
/
)
5!
*,
6
E
F!
!

! ;
$
!H
)
*5
,3
,H
)
5$
!,
#
!)
!#
1
7
2
$
*!
4
:!
d
a
!$
%
H
$
*5
!A
*4
1
H
6
C!
:4
*!
$
%
)
7
H
-$
!5
/
$
!d
a
!8
$
5M
4
*E
!U
H
$
*)
54
*6
!

L
*4
1
H
!)
#
<
!5
/
$
!d
a
!8
$
5M
4
*E
!+
)
#
)
A
$
7
$
#
5!
=
4
)
*<
C!
M
/
,3
/
!H
*4
N
,<
$
!)
#
!4
H
H
4
*5
1
#
,5
9
!5
4
!6
/
)
*$
!

A
4
4
<
!H
*)
3
5,
3
$
!!

!

Page 76



!
"
-
)
9
9
"
*
#
'
.0
)
*
$

H
?
#
'
."
$

w
o

rk
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t
h

e
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 p

h
a

s
e

;

b
)

w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 U

K
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t’
s

D
e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

T
ra

n
s
p
o

rt
 t
o

 u
p

d
a

te
th

e
 

e
x
is

ti
n
g

 g
o

o
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 g
u

id
e
 t

o
m

a
n

a
g

in
g

 
w

o
rk

s
 i
n
 t
h

e
 s

tr
e
e
t 

to
 r

e
fe

r
m

o
re

 e
x
p

lic
it
ly

 
to

 t
h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
m

a
jo

r
tr

a
n

s
p
o

rt
 p

ro
je

c
ts

;

c
)

w
h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
re

 i
s
 s

c
o

p
e
, 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y

w
it
h

in
 

a
n

 E
a

rl
y
 C

o
n

tr
a
c
to

r 
In

v
o

lv
e
m

e
n

t
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

, 
fo

r 
th

e
 c

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

c
o
n

tr
a
c
to

r 
to

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 m
o

re
p

re
p

a
ra

to
ry

 w
o

rk
 o

n
 

b
e

h
a

lf
 o

f 
u

ti
lit

y
c
o

m
p

a
n
ie

s
; 

a
n
d

<
W!

if
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
, 
th

e
 s

c
o
p

e
 f

o
r 

a
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 i
n

th
e

 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
in

g
 l
e
g

is
la

ti
o

n
 (

th
e

N
e
w

R
o
a

d
s
 a

n
d

 
S

tr
e
e

t 
W

o
rk

s
 A

c
t 

1
9

9
1
 a

n
d

th
e

 S
tr

e
e

t 
W

o
rk

s
 -

S
h
a

ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 C

o
s
t 

o
f
W

o
rk

s
 

[W
a

le
s
] 

R
e
g
u

la
ti
o
n

s
 2

0
0

5
) 

to
p

la
c
e

 a
 

g
re

a
te

r 
o

n
u

s
 o

n
 u

ti
lit

y
c
o

m
p

a
n

ie
s
 t

o
 

d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
ir
 w

o
rk

 i
n

 a
w

a
y
 t
h

a
t 

is
 c

o
s
t-

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 t

im
e

ly
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 p

e
rs

p
e

c
ti
v
e

 
o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
s
e

c
to

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
e

r.
!

;
$
!$
#
3
4
1
*)
A
$
!4
1
*!
3
4
#
5*
)
3
54
*6
!5
4
!1
#
<
$
*5
)
E
$
!<
,N
$
*6
,4
#
!M
4
*E
!4
#
!2
$
/
)
-:
!4
:!
1
5,
-,5
9
!3
4
7
H
)
#
,$
6
!

M
/
$
*$
!)
H
H
*4
H
*,
)
5$
F!
!D
/
,6
!,
6
!<
4
#
$
!4
#
!)
!6
3
/
$
7
$
!2
9
!6
3
/
$
7
$
!2
)
6
,6
F!

;
$
!<
4
!#
4
5!
H
*4
H
4
6
$
!5
4
!7
)
E
$
!)
#
9
!-
$
A
,6
-)
5,
N
$
!3
/
)
#
A
$
!)
5!
5/
$
!3
1
**
$
#
5!
5,
7
$
F!

U
N
$
*6
$
$
,#
A
!5
/
$
!<
$
-,N
$
*9
!4
:!
-4
3
)
-!
)
1
5/
4
*,
59
!7
)
#
)
A
$
<
!H
*4
P$
3
56
!

R
e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 6
:

W
e

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
 t

h
a
t,

 t
o

w
a
rd

s
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
2

0
1
1

-1
2

, 
th

e
 A

s
s
e

m
b

ly
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t
s
h

o
u

ld
 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 e

a
rl
y
 

c
h

e
c
k
 o

f 
th

e
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
it
s
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 

fo
r 

o
v
e

rs
e
e

in
g

 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e
g

io
n
a

l 

! G#
!*
$
6
H
4
#
6
$
!5
4
!5
/
$
!*
$
H
4
*5
C!
M
4
*E
!M
)
6
!1
#
<
$
*5
)
E
$
#
!M
/
,3
/
!/
)
6
!-
$
<
!5
4
!)
!6
5*
$
#
A
5/
$
#
,#
A
!4
:!
5/
$
!

4
N
$
*6
,A
/
5!
4
:!
<
$
-,N
$
*9
!4
:!
Q
$
A
,4
#
)
-!
D
*)
#
6
H
4
*5
!0
-)
#
6
F!
"
6
!H
)
*5
!4
:!
5/
)
5!
M
$
!/
)
N
$
!,
#
5*
4
<
1
3
$
<
!a
$
9
!

0
$
*:
4
*7
)
#
3
$
!G
#
<
,3
)
54
*6
!5
4
!7
$
)
6
1
*$
!H
$
*:
4
*7
)
#
3
$
!,
#
!<
$
-,N
$
*9
!4
:!
Q
$
A
,4
#
)
-!
D
*)
#
6
H
4
*5
!0
-)
#
6
!

)
#
<
!5
4
!<
*,
N
$
!,
7
H
*4
N
$
7
$
#
56
F!
;
$
!)
*$
!*
$
N
,$
M
,#
A
!5
/
$
!*
$
H
4
*5
,#
A
!7
$
3
/
)
#
,6
7
6
!)
#
<
!M
4
*E
,#
A
!M
,5
/
!

5/
$
!Q
$
A
,4
#
)
-!
D
*)
#
6
H
4
*5
!.
4
#
6
4
*5
,)
!5
4
!6
$
3
1
*$
!)
!7
4
*$
!6
5*
$
)
7
-,#
$
<
!)
--4
3
)
5,
4
#
!)
#
<
!:
1
#
<
,#
A
!

Page 77



!
"
-
)
9
9
"
*
#
'
.0
)
*
$

H
?
#
'
."
$

tr
a
n

s
p

o
rt

 p
la

n
s
.

$ $

7
)
#
)
A
$
7
$
#
5!
H
*4
3
$
6
6
!:
4
*!
:1
51
*$
!:
,#
)
#
3
,)
-!
9
$
)
*6
F!
$

R
e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 7
:

W
e

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

 A
s
s
e

m
b

ly
 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
s
h
o

u
ld

 e
x
a

m
in

e
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e

 
te

c
h

n
ic

a
l 
c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 i
t 

e
m

p
lo

y
s
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 

d
e

p
lo

y
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

s
t 
e

ff
e

c
t 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t
h

e
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 
tr

u
n

k
 r

o
a

d
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
n
d

 t
h
e

 
A

s
s
e

m
b

ly
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t’
s
 o

v
e

rs
ig

h
t 

o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 m
a

n
a

g
e
d

 p
ro

je
c
ts

. 
In

 d
o

in
g

 s
o

, 
th

e
 

A
s
s
e

m
b

ly
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
s
h

o
u

ld
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

th
e

 
ri
s
k
s
 a

n
d

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 o
f 

d
e

le
g

a
ti
n

g
 m

o
re

 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
m

a
n

a
g

in
g

 t
ru

n
k
 r

o
a
d

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 
to

 t
h
e

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

r’
s
 a

g
e

n
t.

!

! D
4
!7
)
#
)
A
$
!5
/
$
!*
$
7
)
,#
,#
A
!7
)
P4
*!
5*
)
#
6
H
4
*5
!H
*4
P$
3
56
!2
$
,#
A
!<
$
-,N
$
*$
<
!5
/
*4
1
A
/
!D
*)
#
6
H
4
*5
!L
*)
#
5!

:1
#
<
,#
A
C!
M
$
!/
)
N
$
!)
--4
3
)
5$
<
!*
$
6
4
1
*3
$
6
!5
4
!)
6
6
,6
5!
-4
3
)
-!
)
1
5/
4
*,
5,
$
6
!5
4
!7
)
#
)
A
$
!5
/
$
!-
4
3
)
-!
*4
)
<
!

,7
H
*4
N
$
7
$
#
5!
H
*4
P$
3
56
!5
/
)
5!
)
*$
!6
5,
--!
1
#
<
$
*!
3
4
#
6
5*
1
3
5,
4
#
F!
_
%
)
7
H
-$
6
!)
*$
!5
/
$
!0
$
*,
H
/
$
* )
-!

(
,6
5*
,2
1
54
*!
Q
4
)
<
!0
/
)
6
$
!B
!,
#
!8
$
)
5/
!0
4
*5
!D
)
-2
4
5!
)
#
<
!5
/
$
!;
*$
%
/
)
7
!G
#
<
1
6
5*
,)
-!
_
6
5)
5$
!"
3
3
$
6
6
!

Q
4
)
<
F!
D
/
$
!H
*4
A
*)
7
7
$
!4
:!
7
)
P4
*!
-4
3
)
-!
*4
)
<
!,
7
H
*4
N
$
7
$
#
56
!:
1
#
<
$
<
!5
/
*4
1
A
/
!D
*)
#
6
H
4
*5
!L
*)
#
5!
,6
!

#
4
M
!3
4
7
,#
A
!5
4
!)
!3
-4
6
$
F!

!

! !

Page 78



������	
���)�������	�	
	���	����������	����	����	
�
���	����������������
�������������������������������

�� 	����
������!�	�����"�)�	��"��#�)���	
���������

����)������
��	����������$%�)���#���&!"��	���

�����	�
���)���	�
���)�����
	����������	������

	��������

������������������ ��� �!��""
��#��$)�))���%&'���)$%)�$%(#$)�

*'������ '�+)�
�,�'''$'���)$%(#$)�

�������	
��������)�
������
�������)����
����������		
�����������
�������
�������)

 ���!	� "��#$%�$&'&

()�#	*�	��	��(+�(

�	�������	


�������	
�
�)	�)��
����������	����)�����	
���	
�������
���������������������
�)	�
���	

&��
,���������������	��	�����-������(+�(��	.����
.���	���	�,�
.���	������	����)�/#�
)����
����
0��1��*���.��	�������	��	�����
��	�*�
��
.0

�����2�
.���	�*���������
������	�)�������3	
	��������4��	� !	*�����
���5	��	��(++���
�
#	�5��	������������	
��
��6��
.��	�*�	�2����7�����
����
���	
����/	������		��8�2	�
*������	���
�)����
����
�9��:��	�,�
.���	������	��"���		��
.���	������	
.	�;��
�%�
	�(+�+0��
��	�,�
.���	������	����	����������
.	�����������	
�������	��	��5	�	�������.�����(+�+��
��
(+��0��&�	���
���	������/	������
��#������#	�5��	��*������	�����	����	���	*�����
�*��.�	��
�
��	�	��	��(+��0��)���*�������	��	*��������5������	��
��
	���"��
���*"$$2��	�0.�50�,$��*���$�	����$*���������
�$�	����$�	*����$�����	��$<��
.=	


&��	
���	��������	
����**�����
��������2���.�5	
�2����
�4	����3�5	�
�	
������	��5	��
.���	�
�����
�*��
8���
	2��	���2���	��������	��2����
�����	*����	
��2���������.��������������
�
��������	
>���	
�����	�����*����������	����.	��	�0��&�����5	���*��5	�	
����
���	��/#��
��
���	��,	���	�5��	���������9�.	
����	��5	���)�����
�	�3���*�?�)3@���������
�2��
�*���	
2��������
.����.	��	������	��	�*�
����	������	��5	��
.��)/�#��	�5��	��2�������	��,	��
���,	����	��0���	�����������	��	��	����*��
��2��,������	��)3��
����	�	A*	���.���*������
��**���������2��,����.�5	
��
���	��

�����	*���0

 5	����8�1�������	�����	*���������.����*��.�	��������		
����	���
�	���	�)�������3	
	���>��
�	*�����
�(++�0��1
�*���������8���	���*�	�	
�����
������	��	
����/	������	����	�2������5	���
��.
�����
����*�����
��)�/#�2������	��
���������
����*����������	�2��,	����
�����*�������
���	�*��
�0��/�2	5	�8�������	���
���������	
.�
.��.	
����
��2	 �	��.
��	 ��	�	�������	�
��0��)������2�����	��2��	8���	���
���	�����/	������
��#������#	�5��	��2������������*�������

"##$%![!

Page 79



;&�.	��	�������	
����/	����; 9���
	2��	
����/	�����#����	.������4��	���������5	��������.	
.���*�0�����

&�	�
	2�#����	.��2�����	�������
����������8�������	������	��5����
�������	������	�����	
����
�	������	�5��	���
�4��	�0��1����������
���	���
��
.�������	�)�������3	
	���>���	*������
������
�)/�#��
��)�����#	�5��	�0��1��2����	
���	��������.�	��	���������
�*�	5	
���
8�	�����
�
�	�5	
���
��
��������
.��	����	
�	8��	��.
���
.��������	����
�����
��	�2		
�������	
>���
��
�����>���	�5��	��
		�������	���*��5	�0��4	���5	����	������5	�����	
���	�������)�/#�
�	�5��	����	�
�2��5������	���������B��
���C��	�������0��4	������
		�����	
���	����	�
��
��
��������*��5����
��
��������)�/#��
��)�����#	�5��	����	�������D��
	���*�2�����������
D��
��*���2�����
��*��������������**������	����
.�*	���
������	����5	��
������������0��&�	�
#����	.�8�2�����	�����	����
���	����	��
�	�	���2�	
����2�����
����	���
�����
.���	�����	�8�
2�����	������*�
�	��������	����	���	��5	���*��
��	���
.�������	������
��2	�2������,	����
����	5	���	���*��5	�	
���2	�2�
������		��
��	
�����	������	�5��	�0�

6�������
�	�	��

������������	�

"##$%![!

Page 80


	Agenda
	2 The estimate of Income and expenditure of the WAO for the year ending 31 March 2014
	4 Papers to note

